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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC., NEW DELHI

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) was set up in 1995 as a section 8 Company
(erstwhile Section 25 Company) under National Informatics Cenfre, Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology, Government of India fo provide total IT solufions to Ministries,
Departments, Organizationsin the Central Government, State Governments, UTsand P S Us.

Vision

"Achieve leadership position in the technology enablement of India and other developing
counfries thereby conftributing effectively to accelerate socio-economic growth”.

Mission

"To promote and provide transparent value added Information and Communication
Technology on end to end solutions including procurement services and business solutions to
customers at competitive prices with a focus on socio-economic development".

Objectives

To provide the economic, scientific, tfechnological social and cultural development of India
by promofting the utilization of InNformation Technology. Computer-Communication Networks,
Informatics etc. by a spinoff of the services, fechnologies, infrastructure and expertise
developed by the National Informatics Centre of the Government of India including its
computer-communication network, NICNET and associated infrastructure and services.

To promote further development of services, technologies, infrastructure and expertise
supplementing that developed by NIC, in directions which will increase the revenue earning
capacity of NIC.

To develop and promote value added computer and computer-communications services
overthe basic infrastructure and services developed by NIC including NICNET.

In furtherance of these objectives, NICSI has been providing following Products & Services to
Ministries, Departments, Organizations in the Central Government, State Governments, UTs
and P S Usetc.:

=  Hardware

= Systems Software

m  Application Software

= Software Development
= |nfra-Networking

= Wide Area Networking
= Video-conferencing

= Customized Software

= |T. Training

= |T. Consultancy

= |T. Implementation Support

= Data/Membership Services

NIC Services Inc. is truly a Total ICT solutions
Company in the Service of the Nation.
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NICSI:

Is truly a total ICT Solutions Company j
in the Service of the Nation.

Creating Synergy for Technology
Diffusion in e-governance.

Neitworks people in Government,
Industry & academia to permeate
the technology benefits to the
remotest part of India.

Harnessing Information &
Communication Technologies.
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feRoll # AT ) yga T 7Y Terd fGaRoT & JTd BT JeAIdhT R & oY AETEHD ARl SR OIS HRDI
W faaR a=d F |

T I HIGl |, oA | UIRT AEEl | oa-udien & FEfea &5 iR 99T 3R Aeaqul olRaT-uNien fsput @t
I o &, o AR A § o dTell ®I% Agcaqul HiAt W WS 7, I 89 o1u ofkar ST &

SRTE U8 BRd B |

B9 aaRoT qoT WA pwIRd 9 fdeRer 1 geM aRd § K@ gE WaAdr & dag § O ariie AIferd aruetsi
BT AUl fhar 8, 3R Heferd YRem SUrd S8l o 81, R BANI oAl 9 Gdftd Sfd farl @ wdfed af
Hay 3IR 3T Al DI ITDI FAAT a1 & | IABT JJUTA (BT © |

I S AR e siemsl ) Rad

1.

FHUAT IR, 2013 BT TRT 143 B I GRT (1) B G & FTAR IRA B b5 AWHR gRT ORI BT T
BRI (eRaTaNIerds @l RUIC) 3Mae, 2016 (M) & RN 3 iR 4 # ffde A9t gw =81 fby 17 7, Fife
BT BT B ARTIH 2013 B gRT 8 b 3fiF uRenferd w1 & forg arsdw fear T § s9ferg U @I
IUAE BT Pl & H I@J Y I 3N HUN W AN el 8 © |

39 ARTH B gRT 143(3) B FRT oA S T ® 5 %

(@) B 1 I SR WEIHR A & 3R U By € Sifds g9 98aR SIMeRI 3R faear & AR AR
T TR B AT A MALISF o |

(@) SR Fedr U< fT=R IRETh & SMER H aivid AHel & J91dl Bl Bledhs, AN [JaR  H, B gRT J7
JUTET SUYST ol qieAT DI BUH GRT W] AT 8, Rl I8 I JKIDI HI AN W&l dR1 4 fa@rg
o B

(M) goud, M AR ¥ o AR 39 Rurd ¥ Hafta sfaact § uRads fdavor qen 9&dl yarg faeror o
qId B Y B |
(@) TR AR H oEar Ui [deR & R H aftid AMal BT BISH, Jaih ARG odidbd A (o< faavor

39 ARTH B aRT 133 @ S Ffde IRAT d@ia AaFal, g HuAl (of@n) emae, 2014 & a4
7 ¥ 7T UST SR, ST IgUTel B & |

(%) TR faaR #, SWad R H Ry 7Y T W a9 & sMuR H afvfa arfel &1 Huil B BRI Ol
TR Ufide 94T TSI |

@) IfF T8 FA UF ORI G 2 el (ed & 3l W 7 & & 6eg § Hrel 1, 2013
DI GRT 164 DI SU URT (2) fATH 05.06.2015 DI AT FAT SNTANR—463 (§) B HIH! & ITAR HFIAI
TR AN el B8Rl 7

(6) 3AY WA 39 AMal 3R oI@T EREE § Had ean Suge RRMG 4 Ay Y eedr u< =R &
MR H Far Y AR 2 |




3.

() o @ o RAfdT w sraRe fadiia s @s & qafaar iR v e & aRared el
JHTERITSTaT & Sae H, Y & H & T8 BANI el Rule ¥ 3% | fawig Ruifér R wu+l &7 fiaRe i
fRiE0T 3@ @1 uREres paaRiiedar iR wafadr & Hag 9 gl Rud oedr o iR oga &%l 2|

() TR faR # iR 6 & T8 o T LRI & JJAR HUAl U AP HUAl 3, AfIY 39 Ifef-s
DI ATYAI T S A1 UfST ORI 197 & UG &I 05.06.2015 DI RIS HRT SITANR—463 (3) & !
H ATAR AHN HH R AN el B 2 |
(31) DU DI (- AR TE—wRieTd) FREEe], 2014 B FRH 11 & AR o@l Wiee Ruie § wnie
fobU I aTel o= #rHell & e H, g9R faeR H SR gANI 48R YAl AT 84 AT 1Y WEHRT & ATARG
i BYA T RGN e AMe [ el & Hey # o1 IRAR dEied Ae A faaweit @
facia Refa (TR oaies A9 faaig faxor o fewh e 22 ) R <fdq el & wara &
gdhe far 2|
i.  ®on A fed dafafd dfaeRl of wga T2 e @ R wior dJfaer wfta @ e fog i o
UHR B Hedqol Yd <l g BT 1 emie off |

ii. fedr ff ypR @1 WY IRRIT T8 off O sl gRT v BT Sk wRetor A By SfiaRe wRAT
Iruferd o |

HUAT JARTH 2013 BT IRT 143(5) & 3ENT WRA & 7D R AT Wietd gRT SR Qe & Hefda gamy
3T A & TS R argay &t # Hord 2 |
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A SHIR [cFH AR AlAAS b D 31 A 2019 Bl TATA
au & AU AR ctstisa Aee fafax faazut a3 Fads asn
qtates Rai @1 stgay ‘®’

(@ TR @ TR RUic @ a9 B oI fafv e el ST
R RAé & a9 Rnmw F <)

U R 2013 (“srfdifae)

T S9 IRIG B T 99 & folU 9RO oGl AFd Hul & O fqaRol & o=l ofer 9iel & Aagdior
W 31 A1 2019 B RAA & AR e SHRCHT Hex diddel 5. (Hu) B faxig RuifdT w snaRs =i
forRI=IoT I B AT B 2|

e faxf Ao & fog wdew & e

B BT Y9ET RT P T¢] TGIHR GRF gRT SR &) T8 faxia RaiféT wR eraRe fadia foizor <@+ & Gt
T SE-—TRe W ArTee fewoh § IfeaRad smdRe fra=or & sifard daea! wr faar o=d gy Hu gRT efua
faxia RUIféT AMes W MaRe® FEF0 e @ MR WR TaRa faxia fF=ol &1 R $)A iR SHS! T
& B SRR 71 39 fSeRal # 96 Srf AuR &F 99dl S0 | Tl 9T SHa! el B gifad awe
Tg 99l WU A uREIeld qaie NidRe < FRi=vr uishar &1 (ST, Sraiad BT 9T IHS] IEREME BRAl
YA 8 TAT S/H HUAT T AT BT ST BT, SHD! URFURTIT BT 9T BT, SRE—eL1 FoT FfeAT HI A
TAT ST U] o 3R iar Reprel @ aermefdr qen S9a! quidr Ugd &A1 9 Su+T Ifafaw 2013 & s e
anufera favawsig fOi ET &1 999 W TIR ST M 7 |

AE-REs B e

AN ORIER) 89N SE—uRIe & SR R R Ruifé w duet @1 siidRe faxiia FRiFer R AR sRga &=
2| TAY IMSHTITE GRT SR B TS oRIT—ONel W sfod AFel qorr ardRe fada Raifdr @rfees fewefl) w
idRe i PRl & Hefe Ares feufdrl & SrgarR Ul olRaT—uRiel SRR & 3R WRA & Fal @b
HRIH gRT ORI R T dorr ofidRe faxiia FrIFmn @ oRar wdien & & forg g W any affaRe foxia fFion
DI G W IR S Y AN AT Tb HUAT SIRIREE 2013 B gRT 143 (10) & i FiRd fd o1 & forg
SRS AMT SIRATT | I AMDI 3R ARfeel fewfori # I8 arerm &1 Sl & 6 &9 Ta Jfetiail &1 gureld &-d ©
ST AT g9 8 o foxi RuiféT w uaie oifaRe foxia Fiaor wee & aR 9 SR smeara o< &) 8
G- HRA B 3R SHBT THIOIG AT IHHT IR@Ta fhar Srer € w9 {6 O FRiEeh o ot gggeit § gy
wY 9 gReErferd fear war 81|

AR E—uRiE ¥ faxi Ruifds & Haw # aiaRe <y v yomell &1 gemefdr 3 Sdfe ded g o= qein
IADT FHTAT WU W AR B DI Ugdl BT U b1 1 e © | =i Ruifér w aidRe < FEaor @
& foy TR oRaT—ule ¥ foxi RUIfT & Hafa onaRe =i F=or @ F9st T AT 3R FHT BHGIRT 8
& SIRgA P IRV AT T2 MR TIRed & MR WR S7dRe M3 I & JHraRiierar &l edl dR] &R,
IHHT TRIET0T HRAT, SHS [SOIST BT HedIh HRAT MMASA & | R—qRieTd & Ao R iR Hd gU gl T8
vgfoal # faxfi faavoil & Tad amer, @e 98 gt a1 I & FRO B, & SIRGH B R S A i 2

& fiva ® % e9R gRT o fRY M eka—wenm Wiy vafw € SR fRf Ruifdt w wuh @ aifdRe facha
fRIF0T JoTTefl TR BAR STEAT W HRA F AR BT MR USRI FRAM B SUGD ¢ |




facira RaféT w stiaRe i fgaoi @ @rnfies G

foira RaiféT R sriaRe foxia = @ w@rfdes Wil & SR do fFRI=eT & Srgfd Jeed sreEr SHeT IRga

BT BT FHEARIT & BRYT FfS AAaT HERIS! Bl golg I Teld ahed YA [hd S Fahd & MR DT Ul Tl Fefdl
2| 39® A1 B A1) Ay & ey # facira RafdT w sriaRe foxira afthar &1 &8 qeaie far S doar 8, aernd

fr g SRaw = 71, & i Ruifdy w eraRe faxia o ufthar aRRefdaer o2 9gea o1 & ®ROT 32T

ifcrn srerar UGl &1 ST 89 ® PR, AUATE B Tl o |

IEar u e

AR oGl TRIET & SR WR 3R gH &1 78 Il 3R WRIGRU & AJAR, 31 A/, 2019 B FAG d9 & folg gA7
fFrfaRad el & dag d Sigl aadE fidRe FRIF0T Jomell @1 G5 by S & sawaedl &, ficia faarol w—

U orET g faaR U fhu @

AET TG TN DT

el & S

(@) faeoar &1 2w RMET &1 e / gite &=, e e
IRUTREGHY IS Y RN BT Tead =0T Igd e
B AT BT TS|

TRGT URIETT 31l Al B foTg MY & 3R fasharer &1
Ay IREAT BT e/ gfte w1 & forg wfass #§ o3 W
STRIAT |

(@) faswaml @ fured d& TRE SR &=, Fbifs s
BRY &b B arel fagmareil & eferl @ axgelt 7 89 @l
HITET BT TS |

oG] TRIETT JaAlhd Ale ®) folg T ® iR g
feres & TRA@ESN) | Heafta Refa @ afien o
SIRAT | 99 QMR WR, qdol & forg if¥r, s
o fApragdr smafiear qare 8 TS 8, &) gl @
SRAESS SN fhar STRATT |

(1) Sueter AR & FWIfId Tad ST &R § 999 ©
It Aed! /Tl §RT Sul & 9% W H gelagid
[U F WEART B TS /A ST By T8 ARRT B oram
NG |

AT faWTRT /F e el BT soldei=ie add |
e SaRT BT | STafds T 984 91 AR HARYl |
JSI S B, ST A | DI 980 I Y PR D AA9[Q
W gge TE BT UlS 2| ol UNiE Jadie Al ax
forg 77 & 3iR a1fdre vy wfasy # by SR, arfes o=
IR 1 e fBar S @ |

() fashermall 1 1A 3R UTEshl ¥ < R BT augell

T TET Jdelid Aie Bx forg Ty ¥ &k U R

g I W I HRATS B, Rifh [ d TROTHERY
fammarett & fou v 1RH &R D! A IH1aT <7 R &
e faaReT IR R B AT YT '/ T |

& fFUe o aqell B B Fag H YEd! AR Al
T W BRATS B TG 99 H IR 7F wa™ by
SR |

(S) HURT, §IF AT IUFHR DI T FAYT BT, T

ydud ARt 9 3l gRMuUdadl b1 goue gt

qafh i, BT 3R FHTIHROT W JH1G TS Hhdll

g |

UAd ay fhar O R8T | 9fl, ofidhd, a¥fidxor 3R
9P THSIHU & Faa H 9fasy # 3R 31fdre a9 war
TR |

| 39



40 |

RO olgid A faxig RaféT R sraRe foxia fFRiE0 @9 & dey § "eaqul HAeiNIge U1 HH1 8 3T
HAIT BT T VAT FANH & o 6 981 U& S |9maeT o+ J8dl & & Su & aifies foxiig faaxon & Terd awhel
BT THI YR BT AT ITDBT AT Te| ST SR |

AR AR A 30 I & I B I B & Jag H HWR M0 Aedq0l HAANRGT & YHE /F9G JH1G Bl
BISHR, BT+ g RUIfET R U analRe faxira o qor faxig Ruifér wR gaie aiaRe faxia fFaEor -
@ T HEYUl U3l & AJAR IERWNE fhar 2 AR facig RUIféT w U ariaRes fa<ig @1 &1 ufshar 31.03.2019
B R & JTAR JAE] ®U I Il &1 o | 9RA & ] oRITDR AT gRT SR Bl T8 faxirg RUIfET wr anialRe
=i fFrIzor k@ @1 oRg—weler 9 wafe Anieel fewol # SfeaRad sridRe @A @+ & d8cyel HucH IR
fIaR ®=d 8Y HUT R MG =iy RUIET & AMGSl R AARe FRIF @ & AR W U ffaRke faxi™
Iz gomell afkenfera o |

B BUS B 31.03.2019 B AT fAaRON & SRET—uRIe BRI Y AN GT—UIe STiE Bl AHET 3R SHD! TPA g
Y BT R BRI T FW s T8 TAT UgdM $I Ts Feayol Sl R aR f6ar 2 ok 57 Sl &1 duh
@ foxfrr faaror 9 Hefrd gR R R @Ig wwra =8 s 2|




31 ATA 2019 Bt AATE a¥ B A0 AR SHIACER AeR
AfdAS 56 B ARAA ctHiDat faazn b fadi= faazot a2
Taaa st atan @t Rl w1 ey ‘=

FHUT AMRFTA, 2013 B URT 143 (5) B W WRT B FRIFD 3R TWeO@T WD
R ORY fd A Fde @ wdta Rard

1. T DTN D YN A ANl & T1eq A G oG el e+l R PRAE oR- & U gomad
womrelr &1 afy &, o oxar faser qen faxia wifecranst, afe g 8, & Hau & s yomel & aER
T e A TR BRATE B Bl Sfeaarsil BT Seoid fhar Wi |

BUAT B U SARUT oGl ATCdIR & AIH F Y o T Faefl oFedl IR HRAlS d)d & o1¢
IATIT oIRIT YoTTell SUel 2 O 1 Gallg 2017 & Ud a¥id QR Sl fdbar war| qey,
YOIl oIET URIETT §RT defihd BRI 941 gd aul & SR SoMRYT WitedIR &l a1dl Wad oidl &
ERT Brif~aa fhar 7| Sfel (AT § 918 T8 Yollell &1 HIfad SRl & BRUT IRA™ oRgidh
AMe i fAaren # qar T AR IRAURET /Il iR / 3ferar 1™ /& AR W ae
qrell IS UWTG, IfS BIg 8, BT S GFI Udl -8l & |

SHD AT, A /AT /e @ Hay | e URFURE & el YoTell R 39 |GAd
Aere ®U A HRATS B Sff &1 8 3R Taeamd 39 SIRUI Jumell # srars fhar S i
5 SR H BIg WATT A U 4 I8 | I8 Flg ol oIl & [ Iugeh Ufshar &I germsfg
Tarterd fhar S st {6 Agere w9 9 1 dTell warac] & $HRYT 8 arell |wifad Ffea
J 991 O 9 |

2. T ®Y P I AEREN PR B I FUN B R B SR RURKT §RT SU a1 Qg Y
FOll /Bl /TS JAfE DY 92 @I H STel /I3 Blgd & ol IFa9 F0T IF@r /el & G
WG A B DY ATRT U & ? IR & ar faxiia wo1a &1 Seerg fdar SR |
UE ANL A8l B & Rifdh DU & UM a¥ 2018—19 & IR iy b1 9T el o | deaR,
T B G A BRA B Y BUHAl B rqHAl & BRUT [ TR §RT HUT Bl fad
T T/ Bol /ST 3T BT Bled /98 W § ST BT DIg HHAT 2l © |

3. b D%/ ol § faRre Jermel & fag mitq drgera o ¥ FAftRi @ Seer e
%%WWWQW—WWWMW?WWWWH%W
[

qY 2018—19 & SR Bl DA /ST TOIRTAT | YT GIRT PIs (=i wrfed I a1 oY arerar
UT el BT TS | 37 BT SUGth U A oIl G AR IHHT SUIRT B BT YT el Iod |

A PRifee Hex Ifdas 56 &
feve e @ fow 8k S99 IR 9

TR : 30 GalTs, 2019 rezet
M ;g Rt




ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

Huet afgferrer 2013 & sgER grer 8 & srdiar AR GeHR @ fororfara 3gorer

HIeMTET: 7489914 cT1995TTUIT072045
31.03.2019 3 R & SER FauA

3 o H
w9 faRor ey 3 A1, 2019 31 A4, 2018
. @ o fRefis @ Rafis
IR PR
Rkl D)
R =rq] uRawfmi
URY, I SR SYBRT 3 5,405.80 5,741.46
el gRFART 4 7,065.06 3,693.68
fa<ira aRewafrat
(=0T 5 72842 686.16
(@) 3= fo<ig uRewafr 6 325.06 322.62
IR B Fufrar (Freret) 7 3,516.83
31 IR—=Te] gRFwafrat 8 1,650.48 2,539.99
=re], aRFFRRE
fo<im  gRewafrn
(@)MIR iR 9 1739808 28835.15
(@)FHal T THA & TAG Rl 10 62,678.42 40,298.20
(7T) SR (@) & ITATdT 9 Y AR 11 8735017  114,724.37
(@)er= o< uRewfra 12 4,612.67 3,923.41
le]. B URFA T (Feret) 13 14,034.31 11,164.64
3= Aref yREwTT 14 23,947.46 2794712
gl aRHRTET 228,712.70  239,876.81
gfaadt iR qgag
sy
Sl AR Yol 15 200.00 200.00
=g gfdacy 16 49,937.83 63,682.41
TIATG
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Ao

AR =19 <ga]
[ESIREERRIN

(@) 3 fa<iia <Famg
IRART B <A (Faer)
=Te], JIATY
[ESIRECRRIN

() @MUR g IR

(@) o= faxig gam
3 =Te], QY
BIGEIE]
el e iR Ay

AUl o At

o fewfordt fa<i faaron &1 sif=1 9T 2

AR |4 AR RUid & AR
Fd AT VS IR
RECURSECIEAR
BH TOIhROT HIT 002405771
80/ — 80,/ —
e /I S FAR s
HRIER y§e feere
AT 9. 539439 SI3MEUA: 07652553
80/ —
Sf. frdrer gar
Ul Afea
THHIUT: 6468
I : A3 faeetl
f&T® : 30—07—2019

oy 31 A, 2019 31 9, 2018
IR d AR

=1
INR IR
17 4045 4045
7 - 14562
18 3493217 47.192.00
19 1.466.94 132117
20 14206079  127.220.64
21 7452 7452
228,712.70  239,876.81
2
WA sHrifey Hex afiik 59 &
fAcere ded @ fov 3R S IR 9

80,/ —
GBSl AR
IEYET

SIRASTA: 08176055

80/ —
B T
ERIRESEIREIN
q A4 AGHR
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

31.03.2019 B TATE A B T M T T FT faaxor

3 o §

A
4.

v

Vi

Vi

Vil

faaxor

gRATE | TR

3 3

BT 3 (+(i)

Cee

IR H Kb Bl TG
[IT FERIAT &

TN 3R gRenfea ==
3 Y

T =4 (v)

PR A UgA o™ (B1) (iii-iv)
IR I

(1) =g X

(2) MRARTA IR

(3) g@ a9 & fory FHRIRTA &R/ (ReT d)
9Te], uRaTeq 9 a¥ & forg @/ @) (v—vi)

I IUdH AT

(it sifdfererar 2013 & srgaTe arT 8 & e aTTed TePIe Ir ferarfara 3coraT)
AT T: J74899S17cT1995TTIITE072045

feuoft 31 @A 2019 31 99 2018
TR P d e B e ay
22 114,952.84 125,836.36
23 9,080.50 7.806.36
124,033.33 133,642.72
24 24,139.51 39,571.03
85,252.84 76,779.95
25 1,092.63 828.84
3 5,086.44 4,020.75
26 18,248.79 7377.05
133,820.21 128,577.62
(9,786.87) 5.065.10
(1,263.53) 1,960.83
75237 226801
(3.662.45) (361.69)
1,646.55 54,51
(8,523.35) 3,104.27




X' orafy & forw o @mue e (e af & forg
M / (BT IR 39 &Ud 3 M )

X  gfy sfaad) TR SueH (AWAE Je U IR

100 HUY):

HEayul of@ic=T ifcr

o feaforat o1 fodia faaror &1 = o 2|

AR 94 AR RUie & AR
Fd AT TS IR

TG TETHR

BH USITHROT AT 00240591

80/ —
T /ST
RIRITAN
HEdT . 539439

I : T8 el
fedT® : 30—07—2019

feaqoly 31 AR 2019 31 9Td 2018
& A gEE ¥ B 9Er 9y
(8,523.35) 3,104.27
27 (4,261.67) 1,552.13
27 (4,261.67) 1,552.13
2
AW sHifeey Hex afidfke s &
fcee Hed & foy 3R S99 IR |
g0/ — g0/ —
AT AR s Yol FAR
U4y s IregeT
@WZ 07652553 @mﬂé’q:r 08176055
g0/ — g0/ —
<f. e gAR ques T
HU Ffd <N TaEPR
UHAITH: 6468 g 4T AEDHR
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

Huet afgferrer 2013 & s grer 8 & srdfiar AR Gee o7 ferorfia 3gorer

HIATETT® G74899S1Tc11995TTET072045
31 A1 2019 & WATW q¥ & fOQ TP yars faawor

=T

gRere il | Tod) yarg

PR § I8 TN SRR Hal & forg sty / (&men)
W%WW:

e URFURMEN R 2™

et gl @1 I W) e (319)

TSl g

TSl 3T

Hiewer ol g HTaem

I @ forg wraems

It @R 3R A IR Sog W A et & forw e
P Yoit # gRacd=l § ugel uRara SRy / (amer)
N & forg:

IR il H§ gia: (FH)

FOT g 3fRH g 3 uREURE H gig / (F+)

IR &7 SR o e ¥ g/ (@)
afere & giora Toar fn

Ucd 3T PR

g qu & foy JMIax

SRSy YRGS ¥ Hafed g ay &1 &7l
IRare TRRRRT (@) ¥ faed 94 sidals / (@Rale)
e fafaftral ¥ 64 yaw

e URHFURE & BRI

e uRsufral a1 fam

T TSt

e wffaftel & faa T sidats /sfRals @)
fori wfofaftl & THd war

3 o H
31 ¥4, 2019 BT 31 HId, 2018 P
RikIic L] ik iCL]
9,786.87 5,065.10
5.086.44 402075
(1.49) 3.06
5.434.04 77772
(9,094.45) (8,285.61)
9,588.17
1,712.20
120.04
3,058.08 1,581.02
184891 (705.02)
(546.65) (5.940.70)
2,726.08 19,786.19
7,086.42 14,721.49
(75237) (2,268.01)
(1,646.55) (54.51)
(4,766.01)
(78.51) 12,398.97
(8582.47) (5,728.25)
6.59 1.10
9,094.45 8,285.61
518.57 2,558.46
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e T
< et & Fae o4 siqafs /«fzafz @)
Apd T ARG GHHet J faa afE / @) (@E)

¥ B LS A TP T ADST GHDE
¥ H FHEIT IR D4l T DAl AADE
feaofy

feaofy

(5,434.04) (777.72)

(5,434.04) (777.72)
(4,993.98) 14,179.70
155,314.18 141,134.48
150,320.19 155,314.18

1) a9 P FAET R Ads IR 6 99 ARRT #§ §6 # /) TS T qur Ay ARt e 21 Y

faaRor F=TgaR &

faa=or

THQ T ThQ! DT
ot # o
U Yrdr
g §o § 9y IRm
RIEIERSEI

AR W4 AR Ruid & AR
Fd AT TS I

I AETHR

TH GOIIhROT T 002405701

80/ — 80,/ —
&g | S FAR s
IR ydy Qs
FEIdT 9. 539439 SI3MSUH: 07652553
80 /—
Sf. frdrer gaR
HUAT afaa
UHHITH: 6468
I : A9 faeel
fad® : 30—07—2019

31 A/, 2019 P 31 HTE, 2018 B
fuft & sqErR Rl 3 sIgER

28,395.00 13,294.98
0.50 0.07

121,924.69 142,019.13
150,320.19 155,314.18

WA sPHifeqd Hex afdR s @
feve ded @ forg 3k S99 AR A

80,/ —
9ol AR
JEGET

SIS 08176055

80/ —
ud T
foria FaEdR
q A4 AGHR
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

Huet afgferrer 2013 & sgER grer 8 & srdiar AR GeHR @ fororfara 3gorer

HIATETT® G74899S1Tc11995TTET072045

31 ATE 2019 B TG 9§ & forg 3faady ¥ uRads fawor
F. 100/— TR TAF & R 3fET 3R vea $fad IR & fag st I”R golt

3 o #
faraor feuofy wfdr
1 3T 2017 @ Rafd & AR 15.00 200.00
994 & IR gRadH - -
31 AT 2018 &1 ReIfd & AR 15.00 200.00
q¥ & SR uRacH - -
31 919 2019 B Rafd & ™R 15.00 200.00
@ g @d (feuft 16 <)
3 o H
faawor IRffY sk Ry | g e
AR SUTSH
1 30 2017 H ReIfd & IR 60,578.14|  60,578.14
¥ & forg faat sma /(@1 3,104.27 3,104.27
31 A1d 2018 a%’r Rl & IR 63,682.41 63,682.41
gahﬁr e &
QU @ Tl ol 3T|’sf U gRIATSTHRT & Feftd = (feweft wwem 50 <) (3,351.27)
Waﬁsﬁaﬁqwﬁaﬁwﬁw@aw(ﬁmﬁwsoé@) (1,414.74)
94 99 & fory Jegerd ((fewoh wvam 52 <wd) (455.22) -
31 91d 2018 O ReIfd & SFAR Y7 Seoia far m | 58,461.18  63,682.41
¥ & forw fraat ema/ (@M (8,523.35) (8,523.35)
31 91 2019 I RIfy & srgarR 49,937.83| 55,159.06
AR H g RUie & QIR YA §Prifead dex Afdi 59 &
Fd FYATA TS I fce® Asa & fag ok S99t oIk &
RECURSECIEAR
BH TUSHHROT HT 002405
80/ — 80/ — g0,/ —
e | S FAR s IHS FAIR
TR y&er e reTeT
JERIdT 9. 539439 SIRMMST: 07652553 SI3MTST: 08176055
80/ — g0,/ —
<f. e AR e FET
HUAT Afed ERIRRSEIREDN
UHHIU: 6468 J IS AGHR
I : T3 faeel
e : 30—07—2019
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(it sifdfererar 2013 & srgaTe arT 8 & e aTTed TePIe Ir ferarfara 3coraT)
31 A, 2019 P TG ¥ & forg A=l faawoll o wewayel saie -ifoan ik fewfor

IEUIGCRG R

e ShiHcad Hex AR g& (M) & ISR Ye—asm= s (THegdl), §aR 3R Il
YN #37e, YR WRGR & ded fFiH 29 N, 1995 BT HF1 AfRATIH, 1956 BT TRI—25 (371
HUATST ITATTIH, 2013 B GRT 8) & TEd IAMAA HaT AT AT | R DI RGN AATASIIRIH TS
DI Fhel A5 < AIREPE U™ R & o1 Fifora far 1 2|

f<ia faaRoll & 30 JeITS 2019 & Ha3d HSdl & Hhed & IFAR SIRI B & foIY Wiferpd fbar 1 |
1. AEwaQol e Sfadt

() =g el 1 IR [ F7 MR

FHUN & O fAaRel &7 IRT # A FU W WG 3 ofdT Rigldl den Saa i S wue
(TR ol AF®) (Feied) FaHmEet!, 2016 T HUAT (AR oRaT A196) e, 2015 @& 399 3
& AT UfSd Ul STAFTIH, 2013 &1 €RT 133 & ded T B FATed (THHIY) §RT IO STy
ST ABI & ITIAR (S8 918 § "RA i A9d” <) TR faar a1 €

foir faaron &1 UfsIfRie arTd & oMmR R fA=ferRaa aREuRRT iR dRt & Brear, e Sfud
g R AU AT 8, AR fhar war g

B foxig aReufrl &R qgdrel o Sfd ea W #1a1 a7 © (A< Al & Hey § ofdic -
<) |

O faaRoll &1 9Rd § AH WU ¥ Widhd @b Rgidl ® AJaR I Y8 G & IMER W
dIR frar T 2

foRig faavoil @ YR Tuai (INR) # oga far mar 2 S &0 &) sriors ga1 o 21 faci
fqaRor iR fewfOr # qars T8 |/ ARRT BT STl Il &1 et & IR Mdhedd g 30
# quiifhd fHar a1 2, 59 9 & 9T Seoiw@ A fhar S | FfeAai o1 gurifd &1 & foly 99 W
& el faam T g

(i) uRTRRY iR <Farl & 3 §9M IR aTe Ffidmwor
el uRewafxy &7 =are] uR¥=RT /91 SR <14,

°  JE I B N © b I MR uRaEred Rerfd § ua fhar S1Q sferar IHS! 99 Bl
AR a1 SR iear S9a! @ud & o |

*  UNUR PRI B Ie¥d ¥ S & WY A W G |
o RUIfT @l & uwarq 12 718 & HIoR W URAd HRT D 37Ul & |
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°  TdHdl AT ABG] B AHGE WY O T b S RUIfET mafy & uvarg o8 F $F IRE Al B
forg o™ a7 Bq SS9 sRATd 9 fhar SRy sferar S\ faffma & w afady 7 o &
ST |

3 a1 uRewafral & iR are] aR¥wREl & wU 9 afied fHar @1 2|
TEH SIAT BT AT AT AT STl § ofa:
°  JE IUET P I ® b BT A uRares Reafa § fAuem faar S|
* U IUR TRA P 9o W & WU A AT T |
o I RUlET @y & gzarq 12 A8 & AR MU HRAT ST BT feral

o Ul Bz Al AT 36 ANBR o T 81 oy Ruifde o@fyy & yeearg &9 | &9 12 918 & oy
drRll & e @1 ufhansit &Y et 9 |

g 1 aREHRRN @1 R e uRemRml & wu # aified faar 2|
IR PR IRFAARTIT T AR BT IR =Te] UREFRIAT TAT ST & wU H qHipe b1 7T 2 |

aRare Refd Fad iR F6dl & wwaHe IRRN & IRgd & iR ST A TR D S |
aRIARET @SS @ drF @1 Jfafd Bl 8 | I A Sel aRererd o Refd & w9 § 12 918 @
Jqfer b ggd @l € |

(ifi) wufy, €47 iR SuwaR (fids) e Jeuzra

@) U R URRS AUE
MRAR SRATh AMd & URITAA 81 R, BUA1 o 94 SIUQl & R g3 (SR ANTd UR) (=T |41
IRHAYRT, HIF 3R SUBT DI AT |

SN H WIS H{ed, SUR o ®I ANTd e Bl 2, IS Yoid wErel &1 gid &1 Sl 7 iR [9
A & AT W B & oy SHa Bl Refd & AR aREURAl & oM @ arTa garfad
gl 21 fBell ft R @ Be ol R¥dSe & Tlie o W U e W FHEkdl dl Il 3| 9@
I DI AR BT IRAURT B UG AR H MRS [HIT SIar 2 A7 Iqd! A3l T IRAURET &
wU H UFAE B SR &, ST fb SUYRh 81, I8 ddel a4l H9d BT Said Al 9 e e i @
HUAT B AT H A BT | T HIH SR TR B AgAYul goll Bl AR W I& S DI oI’
B 8, 09 U D! SYAF 37afy & MR TR SAGT 3T A 2T dxell ¢ | 31 a¥E, o9 =
FRIeToT fohar SITaT &, O S9! dANTd B AT YIS A sl ¥ AT 8 O W, I 3R SURSBR Bl
e DI U AR H A UGAM DI Sl & | 3 T HRET AR ERWTEG AN bl g8 fby 1Y
S T B fdaRer § g @ o € |

(@ SRad AU (RN 3R SUAnl oafd)

Urdig @1 A&l W HeIETd Bl HUl M, 2013 B gl H MRS &= w sreEr Red seA
qed Ugfd & AR Ugd fbar wam 2 | e 1 wel A 2013 @1 gl |l & srgeR qidE
@I 1 7]l @1 IUART Ay &1 FerRer faar 2 |

JFafRre Jei, TR Al 3R U &l Ugfd &I e O 99 & AT R FHeT & Sl 2 |

50 |



(M ugEHE S

IREART, HIF 3R UGV 1 [l A8 @1 IR URY H yga™ fdhy S arel {6l Aeaqel gol &l
fUe™ &= TR g9 A8l B Sl 8, 31ra] ofd 9fasy H I9db 9Tl By 31raT fAue o I fhel)
e o™ @Y FITET 2T RE & | Sld UREURT @ U Fal @ Sl 8, 99 gR\uly @ ugad |
B | S~ BF dTelT Dl |1 o I1 819 (Faer Mues wmiftdat ik aRbufky @ o1 iy @ §=
M dTcl TR & U H SHH! MU HI A 2) B M fAaxer § wnfie foar Smar 21 srafne ge,
IUIRT Gy iR yRFURT, FIF 3R UGV & I B UGl ol Tdd fa<iig ay & |FEIe )
FHIEAT B SA 2 IR A IUYH B WG9 w9 A FHARNS b Sram 2 |

gRAURT, GIH IR SYBRUT BT U B9 A I~ o9 3fdT BN bl GRIURT &1 ST 3T
IR et e wiftaal & <19 819 dTel IR @ ®™U | 3MhT Il & IR SUHT IRFURT &1 ugard J
B UM & RfY &, ST o 3R 819 faaror § ugam= &1 9 ©

(iv) smcuer aRe=RET &k aRees

e IRFRTT BT Y& H AR WR 3fherd (HIT TAT & | AUTeT IRAFRHT B Jeaeara |fad
JTeThal BT der <ferd aRenes g1fel @1 1T B &F BRD 319 dTell ANTd UR 3ffhard fohar Tar
2| mcgel uRGURT &1 SYTRT Irafyy AT ey RAHd &1 Iahal 21 AIfad afey arell arvrceT
IRAFRR B Rew S99 I UG & AR S+a! IuARl fdfe @y & wdy # yRenfea fear
T B | AT Sy srafey arel el uREufr & fore uRened ugfa o aRenes eafyy & &9 |
$H TS RS rafdy &1 A IR FHem &1 S & | uR¥afrat § e e 7o wrdy anfies @i
DI GUT S YATRIG Ye AT AR SUAR aey § 89 drel uRdci WX JAT SUYh UGIa Hefdl
gReNe 3rafdy & gReNfEd &= @& forw fauR fhar a1 € don S ol Uiadhad § uRdd+l @ wu
H 7ET T © | AT 3rafer arell el uRFuRRIT W BM arel uRIEE @ @1 9 dd I IR Y
fIexoll # gga™ @ S & 99 9@ 6 O g Al oy uREuRiEl @ qedl w1 ua i S A 'l

HUN AAFRH & ATAR HRYER AR AR FaR W FafId NG BT HHRs BE qul T O au]
DI IDB JAFANTT SUATN i 3rafe & Hae 7 el Ugfd & AR IR AT e & qAqT IAD!
TRENET fhar ST & | SIRUT AWiFedaR | HafSd AR dI Yoildhd fhar Sl 2 3R IH &9 auf &l
SD! AT ISUART AT srafey & waer § A ugid & JgaR yReNER fbar ST & |

(V) fo<ia e
focig dee O dfaer Bl 8 S f ve i @l o aREuRiat Sk fa<iig Sadretl srerar o= =t
o1 sfaadt arE & forv gfg wem &l B

o<l o

RS gEe SR A

4l fa<i aReuRRl &1 [ aREUTl &1 1St BT UHIId HRA aTell ofFiqd oIlTd, o™ AT 81
& AT W ST o7 R RBIE 7 &1 S G+ arent foxig uReufrl o Rafd # SRa 9o o1 Jieax
3 a7l Hod W URY H U8 &1 ol 2 | facira aREuRil &1 @kig srear @), e aoiR wme
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(FrafT geR & @MUR H) WORET 312l [ gRT i @99 X@r & Yiak REuRidl o gyadi
oY Taeg €, Y89 &l 9l 2 |

JeRadt AT
IRad! A & I ¥, foxig uReukl &1 fafaRaa aftral § affed fear

gReNfT SIRTd UR K0T I1eH
"FEOT AT BT GRS T o) Ao fhar Srer ® afe fefaRad <Fr ot 91 8 o @

(@) uRAUREl e Afed @ HIaR g1RT @1 Sl 7, oH®T Ieey Afderdid Adhal gare IRy &f
(@) uR¥uRrEl & dfaaeres @l § S99 Adbal yarg IRM o Afde a’El W) M arell gig @
I fhar 1 2 FTHdT ol gHb1ar IRR & Fdg H ol 3R Aol (THUTIRMS) b1 UhHrH
YA fHar e 2 |
T foxirg <Tamit & IRME TeaM @ MR R S Hed W ygad &) el 2 | fa<ia Saameit &1
SR AR & foy WY ywifad 81 arell ofFed oFTd, Sl {6 o a1 81 & Ared 9 Sfd 4o W
TE F@Tell S &, SS9 URMS UgaH $3- W A dldd SR Jed R wifid far w8 | aRfie
A199 B & gedTd, Ul Ol qaamil & doaeard UHTdl 79T &) (SIMSIIR) UG BT SR HRD
R dmTa IR A fhar ST 21 uRenfad arTa &1 {6l ge sfear onid R ara MM &Rk
Yo JAAAT AN DI AT H IGDHR U BT SIRAT &, I [P TSR BT T AN~ 9T 8 | S3MAR
aReNed &I o 1T g1 # faxig emg # wnfier fhar Siam 2| srehar & 89 dTell &1l & ofrd
Jerar B ¥ U @l Sl 2 |

T S 3 & ARIH A IAd eI W FT ARA (THATCIATTS)

"FOT A" DI THACIAIRE & AR aiidpd fhar oar & afs f=foRaa 1 swifeat a1 gfd
EHRSIRE

(@) I Alsd B 32T B faxiy gRAuRrEl & A w-a IR Afderds Tod) yare ¥y g=i
H FWIT TRD Yfd o Al 7 AR
(@) uR¥uRT @ AfdETed THar vare § gadidies o gear Tar 2|

THATCIAATSTS S0 & IR el o T 0T |RET BT IR H 01 3d 9o IR udd RUifT ol
AR W A9 fhar ST & | Sfd Jod SaTSel &l 37 &S 3 # (IRAIeTS) Ugam &l Wil &
AT, SN A9 T B | AT 31T, 31eTh BT o7 yamaa ey iR fagefh ge1 # 89 aret o™
IT B B U89 Bl 2 | IRTURET @Y ugad fhd o W, 3iiles # ugel Ugdd &l s Gl
ST 3ferdT BRI BT gfdacl | o™ g B # Yo aeiipRol fhaT ST © | YhalcIiileng ol |rer
gRUT B TR, AT TS B FIATRIAR USRI BT SKATS B ATST IMMF & ®Y H FAAT &l I 3 |

T A7 B @ AE | SRd o R kT AR (THAIET) wRdd fRa STd 2
THAIEIYIUS 0T ARl @ oy Udh srafdre Ao 8 | fosdl o |, St fh ghdicieiRileng & wu #
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arerar gRENIT AT & SR SO0 B 2g Harel &I gfid T8 aell &, 32 ThdlieNea & w
# it foar T 2

D SR, DU I 0T AEF] I UGANAT DR & ol T, ST b 3r=a2m ghaiddivel & 1R
THAICIRNRAITE & AGS! 31erar URENET arTd @ gficf o=t 81| qenfl, T8 ga7d a” &1 a1 orgAfa
& SIRAN A T AR gY A AT UgA JwudT (Y "ofdm & A’ & wU H Hafid fdhar
T 8) BT HH BT & AT I FHIW Bl & | DU - THACUA & wU # il Fo1 Aee &l
UeAIAd el fhar 2|

THAIEATA St & WidR wfAe B T o ArE BT A A1 B H ugeE By T 9 aRadd
$HR gV SFUd g W A fhar ST 2 |

gfeadt & faawr

IRAT SEidHT AFG 109 & &F # 5 1 ¥ 3fdady fae &1 Sfoa qeu W woe far w2
SfFET WA ST IR BT SMHET BRA B ASTADRdl §RT U HI T3 AR AT MHRHAD
ufiher =g oTRd fhy S 8, 89 IR MR oid AFd 103 (G &1 AfFs707) R 8lar 2, o
AT & W0 H qHigd [BAT AT € | $H BN Bl TRWS I8 & YR TR IR (AT ST
2 3R I8 HaT U A1 el o |

Ife BUN THAICIARNRTE & ®U § sfdad] A b1 aiffexor R &1 vy ot 8, 99 e @
BISH WEHAT R U 89 dTel 94 SR g & aRad=t & i=fiens # ugar &) o | e
A A g B o H e @ e we wR s arell IR @1 g uRcdeRor T fhar S 2 |
T, Bl sfaac! & HdR ol o A7 BT BT JAART B Fhall B |

THAEGITS o & HidR oiel Y T sfaad] AeEl &1 o 9 89 ol 8 ugad fhd T Il
aRads #Rd gY Sfud o W A fhar ST 2 |

REEIG]

forir afR¥fufRy (srerar ST1 @] 81, ¥gel faxig uREURRIT & U &1 91T srerar <y alReufRy &1 9m)
o 99 Rfd d ge7 wu & ugar &l Sl 8 o9

gREURT | Fhal JaT8 3T UTK HR- BT ABR THE 8 ST & JqdT Fafeid wu-1 = gRguRrit
J TPl TaTg NI U B b AU BRI BT JAdRT fhar 8 3ierar g sregar HuiRa &1 g fb a8
TR FART & I AT U] B AT a7 ¥ fdefd By 991 & urad &1 g Thal yarg
3TaT N 3R
I @l HYAT

(@) uRHAURTAT & Ufhel ferar T SIRgAT Bl qai wu | AqRd fhar 2 sferar

@) uR¥uRrEl & ufdwe srerar ft SIRGAT & 7 dr 3faRd fear € ik 9 & S waia wu 9
AR fhar @ wRg aREuREl & fFRiFr &1 ofaRa fear 2|

9 oAl BT aRAURT | AHET Jarg R U He1 BT SMABR AART Hxell & 3fefal Ia1 ol
FERAT 1 B, T I8 T HedIdhd Bl © [ Fa1 F9a A1 & 39 Wi & dfawel 3R SIIRa
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B ISRAT & | S HURT & 41 SIIRIA 3R Uil T deaedrd =1 ar faRd favar Smar 8, 7 &1 ufensor
fpar SraT &, ok 71 & uReufRy & u=vr &1 SfaRa fhar Sier €, 99 HUH TagaRT ®ul & faarfera
B @ Rafd g faRd &1 78 aREURT &1 ugam= &A1 9IRI gl & | 99 Rafd §, duAl dag <ual
P W) ggAE BT B | IfART ®I TS uR\uRT IR Fag <ALl P 99 MR WX A9T fhar Sirar g
S f pu gRT ufenRa SfeRT iR aregdmsii o <wfar 2 |

JART IRAURT & Fae H TRST & ®Y H Fad RGN IRI & & 1T aReuiy &1 Fr=aR qa
T ¥ 9O ufwd @1 SifSedd IR WR 3MideT fhar Sar 8 fT9a! Bu-l gRT ISR R+ &I
JTUETT BT ST Fhdl B |

fo<ia aReaRRrar @ afa

IR ST AFD 109 & AR FrfeiRad faxiia gR|ufRl 3R siee SRad & ddg # A 3iR
3T BT @1 U & & oIy duel Jard wise g (S¥0ud) #dfse & or] axal 7, foraH
frfaRaa &1 Seerg fdhar T =

(@) fxia aREuft S & For ArE & S8R fSae aRenfea arra srifq skor, &ol ufcnyfa, <
IR, SR wiftaal iR d% 9w IRl @ MR R Sfidhe fhar ST 7 |

HUAT DT URMAD TgaET B A T b RUIfET TR BT 3oiiad ¥R ST UR IR g1+
AT B U8 BT ¢ |

Ay & SR U Y T SHIVS B w1 (312dT FATdc=) & o1 3R 1+ fqavor (G vs val) #
MR B HY H YA P TS B

(vi) Sf q&a &t A=

FUA IS Jo U D ARG Bl 3T eI R RN A=l &7 sfided w2 |

ST He T8 e BT & Sil [h3il URHURT BT Io & Ty T fhaT ST AT /19 &1 TRIG Bl FelR
@ AfoTRTal & 419 U FaRerd ofad &1 H QIdl Bl WIFIARG R & folg e fbar S |

ST eI AU AN §H HAhedT R ARG BIaT & b URFURT BT do IT ST BT RAIART B
& foy fy S a1er oiFe 1 w9 OR g Bl AT

e RYURT A7 I & AU yqE 9oIR H, AT
I IR Pl IGURARY H, HURT IT TAA B oIy Ha AR ToTR H |
DU GRT ol AT FIH SATGT AR IISIR BT Ul T S |

el aReulRY a1 <aaT &1 ST eI $9 AN WR 3Ndl SIal © b IR & YRl 39 gREudT
3feraT SIAT BT Hed R $Rd gU SRATA B3I, NAH I8 AN SR ST Wbl b iR &
et 3o aTfies BRI @ forg Bl BN | IR—fawi aReuly & Sfed geg A9 § S9 aeiR
il &1 ea= #§ g7 Sar €, FE aREuda @1 o S iR wWalkid SYIRT H ATh) a1 fhd)
I IIOTR & JforarY &, ST aRFURT &7 319" Soadd iR qardH WA § SYART BT, dahR 3Nfefd
AT U DR Pl AT B |

HUAT HeI AR &1 IuANT SRl © o fo 39 uRRefadl # Suged @ &k e fog sfa e
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B H9 & forg, Hafda Sfer &1 SATRT | SATRT WA B AR fQEms 7 <7 arel §7Y¢ & &F | $HH
SWHETT B B U galfg €fer Sy« 8|

T aRvulral &R uamwrl, Rme forv foia faavet § Sfaa qeg &1 enidew fhar mr 8, S
ol I Heg 3ol & IFAR Heayul 719 WR & $Ye R MR F=TgaR aftid Sfra 9o
& WIeR i fbar 1T 2

o WX 1—ygAr T uREURTT Jrar IRl b foTy Alhy IR H Ieyd QIAARITST) TR o

R 2—qu AR fSe forg 1 TR & $Ye IRAT Hed Nidver IR B @ foTy Ageqdyqol
2, SIHT AT Y I7AT AT ®Y A ATAIBA fHAT Sl 7 |

WK 3—Heud UfAfRR, e forg 9 wR @ 39Ye W1 Sfa qeg wod & forg Ag@qu 7, S
3faclip &1 fobar ST € |

ST T BT THCIHROT B & eI W, HUI 1 TP & MR W, faRryarsii dorm aReuRrl sferar

IR & SRIH T ST eI HH F Hdd WR & AR R YREURTIT TAT Idq181 H1 SHORIT B

ferfRor fpam 2 |

T RUIfET IR o=, o= & gae aR¥uRl iR gl & Jedi § 8F drell 3fTarairel &l fIgeryor
&R B, Ol o BU B i et & AR G /IO A7 G Hodihd bR @ forg s gl R
ATl MR WR R faa=o # ygar & S arell aRFuRmdl der gl & oy, su g8 Had
Rl B b ;1 gde R s@fd & Fwifta W SofiaRoT &1 g Jedidhd da UGHH § 8 ard
TRl & drF 9T PIS RATCACARY AT & (F HH VR P $74C d MUR W Sl b Bol Herax I

I & 19 & oIy Fgagel 7)

9 fewel ¥ IR qeu &1 MERT ST @7 okar T BT AR I HAT T & | IHSIBRIT | Fafdd
I I g Bl AR Hag fewforal # faar w1 2

*  HAE@Yl WFheHl IR AT & oIy UHSIHROT

e SR YoF & WY UGHH Bl YUIHD THCIbROT

o i M (A s emmeie™ orTa 1 enfidt )

(vii) Tl & T SRRl ¥ I

RIS &1 U8 F9d HHAT T Bl ST © dlih DUl bl 3 i a8l iR Yiar by S i)

&F feu 997 o BT favaa=g wu W 31T S 9o | [F=forRad fafdre J=aar #a1dT & oiRa &
U B W Usel gfd Wl Pl Srf—

A1l /5T B 30t & ey F o

RISE & F9Ifad M1 T Uga™ &1 oIkl & fordd FRrT &1 anfdies o™ 8 &fiR rorea 0T &l
e wU 4 3THT ST GBI | MGG Bl ARBR DI 3R A IGel [hy MY Yehl feral BRI DI BIgdh
AT YT B Ffdragdr gob MReEd eal o1 e d gd 8U U by T srerar wifld Ird ufase
@ ST Hed W 3BT ST B |
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A1 Bl {91 / i iR S 7al & Fdg H IO BT AR ATl bl JYadl dRd FHI 31dT Jyaiil
BT JEI0T S 9T 99 AT BT FRIF0 BIGER & UM Fell Ol &, S9 G9d JAFal dioid IR HR
I YA DI Ol & | AT dl [9ep | 9 o IR1 &7 9 {6 T srerar Wit Iy gfata
& ST ou, Fae o™ dor 9, AR H B dH MR A3 H 82 & IR b fhar Sirdm 2 |

JAT fIT & e H IR BT 5T TAR B FHY AT AR HAT BT TAIT TR PR TR TRIGAR
D A R B & FFI W TSI B ST 2 | FaT 961 9 Iod Bl 9 fby Tg ar w1 arg
Ufreer @ Sfad Jou U= AT ST ¥ |

A, gRATSHT @1 arTd WR R BRd gU aHg—a9d R iR -0l R aReres did ik @
UEA PRAT B | AR YR HHAIG IR BT N IRASHT AR & AU H Uil 8l @ JAeAq
ARATSHT BT ARG ATET 8 I &, TREAT AT IR B &N HH 81 Sl & | IRITST Bl dART o
giE B9 & BRI GRETer AHid IR & &R0 H ITRAAT BHAT 81 ST 2 (7D uRISHT G 819 &
AT R AYAT 9§ Bl GG W degoul dfee TRl IR d-a oRIT—SIET @M ST & | 39 IR
SR @ T wiee fewforat w1 Hdfta g o | wRd AT e 2

1o A

=T IS AT S ARFH RN N R AT IRT oI WR 37 7Y F91 0T FreAl & oy, =raf
T BT TG ATST &R (FRNMERIR) BT SYANT PR Gof (T ST & | SIMSIR I8 &% Bl & o fa<fig
<Al o1 aReNfET orTd A1 faxiia aRFuRT @1 Fehel 3= IRT & forg gorm Suygsh fa<iia ameHr ar
HH A b Ty, smferd srafr H wiftqal a1 wiasy # fby S arel AT e AT § Iug<h
ge Al o | Y9l IS &R BT IUFET B A, HUAI A< |red (ISTeRr & fofg gd Joram, O,
HAT 3R S UPR & AgY fddbey) & T Aidardd wal WR [daR $xe Juferd Joal Jars 1Rl &l
UIFhed SR &, IR, 98 Jfuferd sfec IRl R faR T8l &_dl § | <1 oM | o™ iR 81 &
faazoer # & 7 faha omy N wfie Bl 2

(viii) WoR & faf=r wErel /fami 9 srgem werar uRaeEmRt & fog el

et 7 WReR & A= HJ=reral / fawET 9 91t iR a1 & sl & forg ifie afdr ura @) 3
oFe T & R ARG oiFed 81d = | faxig faaren § gamw v d=meral 1 ure 13 <3 &r
A ATe] <A’ MY & A UEH W UK AN WERr, Sl A ARG o[ e 8
g, D ©U H ST W TN AT § | 37 AAT BT SGANT Hfd uRAroHet & A ued &y @
fore fopar Smar € 8ik afe wefda aRae T @ A 89 W, e @ 9 99 137 Suete g ®,
TREGAT WA B Aol (A DI &) Afed 39 IRT B e Sar & | 94 e werar IRri
DI B IRITSHRN & U U fhar e €1

A BRdIR / ATICdIR B WIE B 3R SR Ue™ = &l Q9 § WReR) faurn / et
¥ fAfT smeel @1 FrEifad R 2 | 98 39 FRwe Asd gRT JgAIRd -1 & SR, 9 — §HY
W YD AT DI Hol AN IR IR=TAT AHAid M el & | el faarnt / wdvrel | s ifd
@ BY H S 3N & forv A ura wxclt 8 1 el gRT fddl o IR &) SRGRT Aeral U T8l
B S B, R 91 e o fHerar ® | et a1 snfdfe a1 Ik—anfefe uRwufy & fore Rarah
W W AT FYed BIS e i 8 & T 2|




Ml JaTeral / faMmT §RT o 3TgaT™ eIl SR R4 & Hae ¥ YRS AgAreTe JoRal |

Hefdra w faed iRk wral & )1 el 7|

(ix) gt
TEIGRT B AN H RIGAAT DI [AD! IAAM R TAT W W AN H 98T DI g 3 AN,
WRIE DI T NI, IR AT WA B | avg T (s Aitedd’l @1 avg & Al e 8) o
ST W AT ael aRIeg Jed WR, S fl IRe — $7 —c MMST (THIMSUH3I) Bl U0 & MR W
$H 81, & qod FEiRa fHar a1 8| SuHIsg YUSR & 0 M & A WNIE 9§ H JoRd & 3faid
o farar T 2|

(x) TRy <

TF Mg W D AT B T FARAT b AR, el daq g UM IR IR DI ARG ARBR GR]
FaiRa afted @ R R ddg FaN & a0 dad AR IS Ia9 W TN B Sl 8 iR S
T o7 Hl DI UG fhar Smar 81 98 SRl 9 HHAIRAT Bl DIs A HAINGRT A 37&T dR &
forg SR =€ B, g 9fasy # g aRE 9 UHesl §RT 98 fhdm SRR |

(xi) gafafer 7

qaiafer Al # W D gd Fay & RN [Feron #§ A M T fGaRor dorn g et Bl 7, forH
T UH BT TTeTd aHpROT BRAT Al WA & | ARG I@ih A-h—8 H Uga Jd ae & forg foraH
TARKRIT 8 &, ol RN BT Seoid PR IAdI YdT oW+ & UL rgAlfed i faavon &
Ugel We # yMrdl wU 9 Sl Y qafafd FfeAi o aReied wRer oruférd © | denfl, Y4 Tad faaver
JIIER BT SIAT B AT Sd VAT BT DT UAD S T IR & ggarq |l I S W AT el
DI ST Fhell, T IRATI oRIIbA AH § Yd @Ml &I JolIHd dal H YT qaidiey &1 #al & IR d
Y% daROT S Y UL TRl Bl S |

(xii) RAfET sl & s & TeTr™

% Ay H st Rufé o@fd & qre Ry s@af | G4 go g dioie &1 Wit &=ar & | Rurfér
Al | e =g ot o1 RUIfST @l & gwarg weg weed @l rgHifed MR@d akg | ugd
gerer o & Qe Hed gRT ofdr wRiferd fderell & srgdred | ugel, i g1 ured fobar Sirem 8
R 31 wafta Raifée srafr # orar—<iar <@r ofrar 2 @ik Ruifés @@fy & uvarq aAioe &
wY H IR =R fear Srar 21 09 = i | Haa dI9el W) dagedl A Bl S RuIféT srafyr
H SIE—SIRET 1 T 1T = | RUifr s@afeyy 9 Hafea <3 it i gRT Ruifsr s@fyy @ ggenq iR
I8l T b yaed &1 gAIfed MiRed dRkg & a1 Y ferar i & (Feed Al gRT okam uRiferd
i faaRon &1 srgHie e & uwend wr {6 S & el R @y & uwarg gwm e 9
B ST dTell gemsll & wU H AR &A1 S1ar & iR 396 39 RUIfST @fe # oRgr—SiRar @1 STl
g g a8 o< 21 1 degedl o &1 39 RUIféT oafyr # o ff w@r oran 2 o a8
IS U<l BU & SR IAD IG—SIRdT I@T T 2 |

(xiii) oiics — @ USGR @ WU A
ciIoe Bl aRETe oS 3ferar fa<iig diive & ®U § IHD! YRS dRRg TR e [Ha1 ST ¢ | dive

| 57



58 |

@I foxig ofice @ wu & affga fear a1 2 S aoawerq Ut & @i & oy aasfee w9 4 8
qrel T SIRFAT 3R YREBRI BT WIFIART Bl 8 | fa<ig slive 31 ofive aReufi & Sfd 4 &
R TRIG R AT oI HH 81 R cilvs & <AdH YA & aod Jod R Yoildd (b Sl
2 | olise YA Bl R 99RI IR oIS <adl § &4 819 @ 44 sfguifae fhar Sirar & drfd oIl
S Y R W AN P Fad &% A< 8 G | ORI g9RI B a9 iR 81 fdaver # R armi
& A YA Bl Sl & ofd dob fb I= AE 8 Iugeh URHURT U<l 9 81 W, $9 AW H IS5
JYR BT ANTAT IR BUAT DI AR AT & AR Golihd HAT ST © | MHRAD [HR1Y B I dfe
¥, o1 orafer § 7 &g fby M0 €, I P v § ygAH bl Sl |

oiive aRR¥ufRT &1 aR¥URT & TR 3afy R Hederd fFar Srar & | 9nfy, o &ig Sfaa Mfeadr
&I 8 1 DU Ug DI AT D FHG B db WA I BRI, IRFART BT aREURT Bl AT
3fafer 3R gl I 3fafd BH B WR JeIerd [ha1 S ¢ |

IR Siios Al B oilos afY FHI 84 IR Y ER W A 3R 81 Jarvr 4 =19 & wu
LRCECIE GRS IS

ST IRV A=A 6 a1 rawer @ 18 & (U7 I9H WA ©), T9 llvs & P& 8M R ollvs Jal TR
JATETRT BT & | Il Y S 312rdr IFH e fhy S wR, FeRer g_1 81 o &1 Rfd # diss
gR¥FTfRT a1 IRFURRI &1 WA B TR R SRl 8 oIk 39 oeelT § yR¥EURT srerar uReufrad
BT TRETA B BT ARNGR AT ST 8, 9ol 8 S AfTPR BT Jawel § we wu 9 fAfdse 7 87|

lIoS BT WA B dTell T BT IH AR DI U qedi 3R aRRIfEl & AR wRd™
AGIHT D DI P& BRI D ARG DI ORI sfrar gReme ofise & wd H qfaror )+ & foy
YRTT olglb A 101 YH IR YR oldlb A Dl AU B IJIHR URTHA bl TRIG 3fIid
1 39 2016 B RAMT & AR Heaidw+ fawar T 2|

(Xiv) mgHx

qle] AP

7] AR B URFURTAT 3R IATS BT PRI WABINAT F I DI S arell T e fdhy
S & forg rufera R wR g ST 2| T @ TUET SR & foy SUART @t S arell 9 e SiR
IR B X BF BT 7, o9 W) 9 9Ra H# Ry aie R sfafafha @ Miea w5 9
sfarfrafaa foear S 2 |

T AT B & IR ATl T a3l § Hafdd dref MR bl & AT 1+ (I1 T 3779 AU AT
Jrrar  sfdaeT #) | 9TER U™ @7 S ® | U6 JMafd w9 W B Red # o T8 S9 Rerfadt &
e B 8, o Rerfrll @ ddy # o o) e @ aaren &) S |Gl ® iR I urawl, Sigt
A1 IWH B, BT GeIIHT B © |
afe 9@ FueE &1 & fog B8 SIHl ©U A R MEGR Aiog €, df dle] MFax aR¥udl iR
T B BT fHar S B |




AT R

IR PR BT RUIET IR R R RUfST &1 & 2w A IFa! AR BT TG B a2l
IRGIRIIT qor IdRll & BN MR & §1 37 dTel IR 3(aR & MR TR IdT Ugfd Bl SwIAT]
HD grae= fpar Sirdar 2 |

ARG BR IR B AW R AT SRR IFRT & oI U= &1 ol 2 |

IR B gRFURT BT T Bkl I SRR iRl @ foly, SWIATl & @1 Y &) STAT Ifer
T foell sxaETe 9 @ R BRI B A o O 6 oI ggare @ TR 2 | ReIfig R @ 8
TG AT IF Uga B AT § STEF 9 B AT A, Beldl HR- AT IRART R & FAe, SUTT
BT 3R SRIATA 9 &1 s B SfF T IR0 BT M Aol IR SHIATAT 9 &1 s B SfFl BI=idi &l
ST far ST T |

IRIATT B IRFIRTT &1 ERT I o ydd RAfET IRRg R e &) Sl ® 3R S9a! 39
AT dF Bl DI S & STal ddb fb I8 oH 1 31afYy db vd 9 8, Rifeh Tl HR AT ¥ dl
Jraem 1 srerar it IR o aR¥uRml &1 sHTea B @ fory Sueter grft | uge T @ T
IR Fx aRFURTE & gd® RUféT aig W g% Jeaiad fhar Siar 2 iR Al §va A
Th TSI DI Sl & Silfch WA B IFT A H ARG R IRAURTAT BT el HRA Dl A
T ey |

S99 aRRufAT °, 98T R du= 9Rd # FfRafd smaer fSfwd, 1961 & d8d STTHIY B TheR
2 I8 B GBI P AT & IR YIGid 81 dTel IR R & FaeT # fvdl RIfrd o
(@R¥URT 3ferar <an) @1 g A8l @ Sl 2 |

SRAT AN b Hee H BN BT Bl AT B 915 YATdicd 8IF dTel IRATT B bl 39 99 § ygam
P STy 8, f7 99 # SR siar Bl &

T, BUAT JIRAATT B IRFURIAT B Tgar= BT I Iad AT T Ufaafeid wxal & o9 I db
AT 7T R AT AR Ut Bl Rords oy Uil IReIfia & uRAURRIT @1 9l @ ST 9 |

IR BR URFURTAT 3R IIATAT BT I BR &I TR MDA [HAT ST 2 Sl 39 a9 § AN PR+ b
o srufera &1, St UREURRIT 99 &1 Sl & 3ferar qadl &1 RuIfy aRE wR AT &= srerar
T SMAFTIHAT B W U B S (3R PR PBIA) & IMER IR I BT 9eH fhar Srar g |

AT AT B @ qTeR Ugard &l T Aal & Fae H SRIAIT R Bl o™ AAdT B & dTex (37
ATIEH S H 37qdT fAaeT H) Uga™ &1 Sl © | SRR HR AT &1 RAIemS # arerar e & gfaac!
H oFed PR B HdY H YA B A 2

IR B URFURTAT TAT AR PR <Iqrd ATHAT Bl © UG AT PR IIAB_H D He, @], PR
UREURTIT DI IR DR TAT TG PR NI WA I G RAAT BR AR AT BRI TADBR

IR B B oY BT FU | AT IR A5 B |
RATH dPHfeqd IR

PR B D JTAR UG AT dobfedd B (THTS!) ST ATdl 3IHR Il Bl FHRIGTT BRI & [Ty

| 59



a1 TS T UeTH PRAT B, IU YT eI UK 84 W, U FURT & wd § A4 Sl & b Huh
AT 3TIDHR BT YA B | TEIAR, TAUST Bl Jaa—9a H T IRAURT & wU H Ggdr Bl Il
g 94 I8 §9a BT 2 b SN Haftrd W) onfdie o HuHl Bl T B |

(xv) IR ek # s

SU IS RAFET aRg IR 39 T2 &1 FaRo ol & & a1 oI 0ar dad & fb aReuly &
g B Fhdl 2 | TS BIs Habd AT 8, a1 od fhedl aRFuRy & forw arffe == wieror oxar smfera
BT B, A ST URFURT @1 agelt Arg IR H7 A e 2 | fe aReufy & agel ara
gReufs & 31fde & il 2 31T A7 JAda) Ul HRe dTell sdhigdl (Hoiy) &1 Ifd o 39 Jaferd
Tod 3R fue™ @ JrTd & &9 81 a2 | Hefed aREuda @ fog e I &1 99 9@ iR
qHE! YaT8 UG 1 B of | 5d URFURT 372dr ISR Bl A AR IHDB! g1 R0 A AfH &
STl 2 A aRHUT @1 81 g8 AFT ST 8 3R S S9! xR # QRifdhd ([1s¢ S164) faha
ST % |

vafeld Hed &1 MERY wRd 9, STFATNT WId Fdhal ¥ag H &R Jd B &% &I KA Bb AT
qrell ITDH! A oI @ ATAR BE & il & ol [ gR|ufd & falre Sikew ik iy 4e9 &
ITe], ISR BT 3MThel R gY fadallg <dl 8 | S Jed &1 MR R 99, MUeH &1 &H arTd
I, B &1 & qIOIR & ofdadl &l Wil H foram S 2 | e U el el &1 g w8l 8l dahall
2 Al SUYF Hedd Aled BT SRS [T AT 2 | 39 TR $I |asiivie ©U ¥ TR R drell
HUFl Tl 3 IUAY I eI & Fbddl & foly Iqgd IR eI, a9 HI 0N IR A8
Hefdra frar S 2|

3reg) wferssT arell uREUy @1 Biear, uReufadl & foy s Rufdr o R a8 MR fear
IEH B oS B | AR U Had fAed 8, A1 SuHl uRuRy ar Aofig @l agell Ay iy &1 e AE
ST B | Ugel UgA &1 TS B Bl dhad IS4 WA H g8l Sl & o9 3Sifcd g1fy a1 g g
qh URFUT BT G-I AR BT FIROT A & IFAM H Blg daelld BT © | YAraad bl Hifd
o S @ arfes aR¥ufed & R IR S9! I IR | e 9 & 9 @ik 9 & feiRa
I R et Hederd ¥ ¥ 8 SR d™ifs gqd aul d uReufd & forg fedl a1 &1 ug=ma
TE DI TME T | A AAT B faaRer # ¥ R gdmEacs IR @ ugEs 98 # TS § o9 d@ (b
URAYTET DI G Fedifdd IR WR NG 7 fhar o, 39 Rerfd # S9! Jedrac= [T bl g e
¥ gfg & w9 § A9 SRAT |

(xvi) facha aReudfoal ) afy /e siR <6y ol & forg wraum™

TR Wl & Hag 7 5% @ % | waee &A1 Srar g S {6 gomus &) dRg $F 39 9 1S
st & oy 9o 2|

(xvii) Sursi uft gt IR

I SUTeA Ui gfdact MR B Fad ™ A 39S )b URSSATT ST Il 8, Sl a9 & QR
BT St AR BT AR ST AT §RT DUl S Sdac! UReDbl DI YT BRell & | HegH TSI

60 |



g Sfdact BRR & Fadt o™ | e[ dRe IREGET & Sl § Slifd Jet SuteiA i gfaad! R
Pl T B B fo1v A= sfaad) IR & RT NId WRAT §RT BU-1 & Sfddcl eRBT bl gqTfad
HRAT 2 AR S ) 7y GUIfad fdad] IRRT &7 gRadd HRa TR SR U S dTel Sfdac! IR &l
TIRT T T BT AT v9ifad Bl B | Hegw qurfad sfaad) IRRT BT Ui 31 & folv IHaieA fhar
ST 2 Sidfh gfaac! TRR ardd H SRd e R N {6y O & (3rrid g gfdac! 2Rl & &fid
IOIR ) | A & Y& H AegH AHIad sfdac] WARI BT uRafia fhar Tar a9 e 59 9@ 6
de @ AN H STl SN AT 9R Q1 SN | Is R4 @i & forg #egm vifaa sfdadl IR &t
d= g ¥ fAeiRer fear S 2

| IR DT T3 ARl & oy fhdl WRR 9RT 7 Sfaadl TRl @ | qn Svifad #egH gfdec
YRR} BT HHL: ARG [HAT ST 2 R 999 TR SR Y o & o e ded g1 faxi
fIaRoll &1 STFHIGT T FR | Ugel TWIfAd 8 dTel gRade ) enfie 2|

(xviii) e &R s

9 raeTe fhar Sirar & o9 sl Sed @ a1 ol gl & uRumARI®Y o[ areadr gl © 8iR
I8 [HIfAd BIaT © b SAEAl & dfgals ol S99 dednsil & e &R suferd g, f5ee dag o
fIeaa=-1 ST ST ST |WehdT 2 | ATafd T BT Bekdl dl T &R DI FHRING XD SUI
SIRgH TR ST IHE el & AR B I SIRAM | fcUTafe Uaem=l bl 8 & &l SiRexd T8l & |
ARl B AT U B T-AD ARG DI FHIET BT S 2 AR DI ATe] FagT Al Bl S b
fore wamfa far Sirar 2| sifvard aregdmil & dee # mraul @ giad a3 @ W Sed Bl 7
qorfy, fm & ar RUIfST oafy § &1 sifart aregar =2 2|

MBS I3 BT 1T TRl I I~ B9 dTell I9d Iegdiell & IR H JhelhRol fhal Hdl &
IR IF@! AT B SR & FRIF0T § qR T8 W T AT drell 91dl geARll & afed Jferar afed |
M W & g @ SR |

(xix) THar 3R TP B wHHE IRMAT

YA H hal SR IfcUTayy ST IRMEN | dbT § ST Tdhal TUT SR Adhal qT dIF AE A 3w
AT A ATE | HF @ | uRuad B dTell ol ATdie STHT |iad JTeqraie ST Iy 1 enfae 7, o
Tog # uRada 8M &1 weayul SIRaq <&dr 7 |

TPl IR Ahal & AHGET PRI H 96 AaRgHe |1 AT 8 Slifd BN & Adbal Jaeq Bl A~
T B |

21 HEAYl oEid AR, Hawe SR qargaE

S & I fAaR0 BT TIR HRA g UGG | I SUeT I Ol & b d I[oiRd, 9, YRFYRT qen
SIARRAT TFAT H THCITHRUT R I IR0l &1 GRRG W SMHRAD SAARN Pl THSIBRIT D
& Reafd T gw1fad o= arell Rl &1 iAoy, wradbere iR aiqAr &1 Jaq wu A Joid
X R I8 YEET & Ha TAT 31T Tl WR IMTRA B foraH Wi sl @1 e e g §
Sife aRReIferl & el S AT SRl € | 97T YaigAT 3R UTddhar ifHiRed 81 & SR 9l
raferat % gwifad <garsil srerar gREURE! @1 SR IR # Agcayul THRINH &R @ fory suférd
aReM 9T 81T & |

| 61



Iy U A, B 7 ST &3 BT USAN DI © S8l AsqdqUl AR, Urddberd 3R qalgAr Sfuferd
21 37 UAD &5 W Hafdd AN o A iR 9 A= orar il wR 5 gaR uWia ST €, g9l
ggfa @ S g faxia fAaxon &) Wdfta fewforat & « aftta far wm 2| wiewas § uRad=i &
TR ®T F @l — Siar A7 a1 77 2 |

it
HU DI T A B AN R g T 7 frferRad ifdfaol fig € Shifes g faa=oi # ugam
@ T AR B yIfad A B oy orcdd weedayet § |

T RHAHATY

JHRHAD AN DU & fdwg ST B TAT BN, SHaR, YA Ugd TAT = @l | Fafed B
AT B AW BRI A H I B Fhdll © | WMIdd ®Y F ATHRABATA Pl ddel adl
T SITQT, 79 Ueh AT U W ARS SfHREd Wil BeARl Sed B AT U T Bl | IMBRABATAT D!
HIS[ET TAT FHIAT JHTAT & i | ATl TSl & YR 3 Gafed UTdber &l RIATe HRAT a7
Hecqayqul ol wxer wnfier ¥

WaHe 3R garga

RuIféT aiig wR i R=d drdderd @ 91dl 9 39 &9 Sdl 9 Gafed %9 qaigas &I A aford
fpar T &, Sife Tl fxi v & fioR gREUREl iR qIdrel @ IR DI 3R of & & folg
Aol ARG & BRI Iq~ AeqdY0l SIRgH ST BRI 8 | B 79 IHS YATgAT UR FRT
B € 3R U URRRAN & 3R W Wabheld Bl & od FHfdbd R fdaver IR & S € |
Ty, 9l faerd ufdhamell & IR 4 A gRRAAT IR qaigdE & SR S & R 9 W
B arell IRRIAT 31T IT9R 3 9&ard A & HROT I URacd 8 Fabdl & | VA IRadl ol S
gfed 8 W gaigae § geiar T34 7

@) IR faxfra aREufml ot srerbar

S gD RUIET TR R I8 Jedid BRAl 2, a8 59 02 &I I8 Ahd 8l (b YRAURTT Ach
B FHdl © | IS PIg Hobd el ST & fal o9 Ui aRAURRT & forg arfies srerham uxiefor =
SR Bl SIAT ©, d9 Hu URFURTE & g IR1 BT AN o el 2 | IRuRiE & axger
R gRAUfRR | 31feres 21 Sl € <erar ¥ St 3 &1 Ifd Heg S9! MueE arTd &k 9 yaferd
oI ¥ FHH BT 1T | 36T g gReAufral & forg fFefkor far Sirar @ o9 as fo aReufrdt Jad
JaTE IR U AT BR < I Sl b aRAURRT & a1l ferar o= yREuREl | g UM IR I9) aRE o
s B ® | SRt gReufrat srerar A Sft g a1 srifya i ey a-geria I | 3w &1 ol ®
I8t aRFuRME! &1 3reh AT ST ¥ QIR SW I@] age iy I # Red Se+ fhar e ¥

Al Hed BT Jedih BRd FHY, JFATT |1l Thal Hars MR H HR Yd Bkl &% BT KA Db
IAD I Hod B JAR beldl DI ol e, o gRAuREl & fog ffdse Sifew e il & |wy
e @ IR dTe] IR i Hfshar # wfafdffad fvar war 2| Froed &1 &9 anra, Sfd g
BT FRIRUT BRI A A GIOIR Al BT ST —SIRdT &1 Sl & | A U {6 el &1 g
TE BT ST © AT SUGTH Hedd Alsdl Bl SRIATA (BT Sl & | 9 TR H UMD Hed , 377
QU] I Hed & Fabd Pl AT AGGh WU I AR PR dlell AelId HURl & o Iggd

62 |



¥RR Hedl &I efier foar T 2 |

(@) i Suw’i @1 Sfea e aMider

g gord uF § Reple o1 1T faxiia uReufral dorr foxig <gdral o |fthy aroR 3 Sggd g™l & e
TR OR AT &1 ST Febdll, 99 SIAIASTA Aiee Afed Jedd AfAfEdl o1 Wl dReb S Sfad oo
&1 3w [HAT ST & | 39 Alsall g74C Bl G- IR F F9G 8 IR foram ST €, IR Sfal
g el e 8 981 I Hed Bl T w § Wk Afafoi sruferd gar 2 | sl 3 sege
&1 gfawet o forfaafedt &1 Sikaw, s SiRaw &fik siRerar enfier €1 371 deaf & IR # gargae 3
g dTel gRacHl | foxfia Suvaxt & e f5a w1y Sfud qou o= wwra g mm |

(m faxig aR¥uRmal & srerpar

i aReufcrl & foy srerchar wae gd @ SiRaH SR JaTRid 81 & &= & 9N ¥ gafgas w®
JTTRT BIA & | HUN RRHAT TOMT A AT $7YC BT 9T B AR 9 Yaigad & IR H Ao
BT TWHTAT BT & ol {6 Bu-1 & U sfde™, ada= aoiR @ Rerfoal don yxe Raifé smafy
P FHIT TR UTdb A= BT TeAlh B TR TR Bl B |

aRfiTa B gREURMT & gga — 79 a1 a6 srefiid s aRYuRigl &) ug== & S Iahd) 2
d 9] DR AR I BT AT BT IR BT IR TR 2, foras forv siRefirg & aREuRiay &1

ST fhaT ST T |

22 B & A ARA AGihT AP 116 ET B YOI

30 |1 2019 HI AT SR A3 (THATY) 9 Husiel (WRA oal AM®) GeeE gAreael! 2019 &
3T WIRAT oRATh A 116 ollvs JAAFRIT @ & 1 fh 1 3l 2019 ¥ N 2 | 1 wiféal & forg
JITT USSR 3R Ul & oy HfdaT 2q, ollse I UhcIdhRul &R+, SHdb! Ugd, A, TRfTdHRor
A @ o aRd @i A 116 H Rigia FeiRa feg g €| 9RdAg o@ied 4 116 d
USER & oy U ofiss ofaide Aied &1 URgd fHaT 1 § 3R U=eR | I8 3fUell @l ol ® &
I8 IIRE A W AP J@T arell I oiivs & forv IRIGURRIT IR olics IdmRl & SKIHA HRA B
ATBR T 519 TH UgAM o, 99 dd (& SRS IRFURTET FWads &F Jed @ 1 81 | 39 994
AT el & R BT 3 IR & i@l § gRa fhar Srar & | MR ofdidd A1 116
DI TATE FY ¥ RA AGiHT A49F 17 H & TS UgaR DI @i el H ried fhar war €

YR oGl D 116 & ITAR USER Bl URAURTIT BT SHHTA B & JTDHR R T2 3iR
I SR Y oIEmRll H ollvs qadRll & Hag H ORI NTal @1 Ygem_ &) @l Jaegdhdl skl & |
diIoe I & I d YgaR NI fhy Y eflse YA &1 UdagRl dive qaamsil & forg FAmeH
T ST | 99 999, BUT 9RARI IGidh A19E 116 BT BRATGIT BT B DR g dlel J4Td BT
HATH PR V8! &, a3y 3R BN T7 Jol s WR (Ui g91d I |

| 63



64 |

3 — Gufy, §IF 3R SuwR

X o #
Yo |69 #R| Wit | aee Pt Y ART
JUER IR SUEHR
Secaul

CIUGE
01 3K 2017 B Reify & ogaR | 1,985.85|  147.37|  561.88 702| 226891 6,589.97| 11,561.01
amae 126.43 3.09 1,443.69 480.57| 2,053.78
faver 1.27 9.17 130.11 140.55
31 W 2018 9 Rfy & ¥guR (1,985.85| 273.80| 563.70 7.02| 3,703.43| 6,940.44|13,474.23
maei 1,028.01 339.72 77.83| 144556
faoer 18.35 88.72 107.07
31 Ard 2019 o ReIfy & g | 1,985.85| 273.80| 1,591.71 7.02| 4,024.80| 6,929.55|14,812.72
TE 962.58| 119.77| 437.92 590| 1,499.89| 3,901.48| 6,927.55
01 st 2017 &t Refr &
IR
af & fory g WR 50.06 8237 3430 0.37 473.93 300.36 941.41
SNESIIE]
BECR] - - 1.21 - 8.79| 126.19| 136.19
31 Wi 2018 9 Refy & ggur (1,012.65| 202.14| 471.01 6.27| 1,965.03| 4,075.65| 7,732.76
a§ & fory Jegem WIR 47.61 51.13| 288.55 0.25 720.61 212.76|  1,320.91
d 991 & foIg Houerd 455.22 455.22
(feweft <= 52 <@ )
STeThaT B
faver 17.44 84.54 101.98
31 91 2019 B Ry & R | 1,060.26|  253.27| 1,214.79 6.52| 2,668.20| 4,203.87| 9,406.92
et 98 71
31 A9 2019 1 RAfT & FTAR 925.60 20.52 376.92 0.50 1,356.59| 2,725.67 5,405.80
31 71d 2018 & Reify & egER | 973.21 71.65 92.69 0.75| 1,73839| 2,864.78| 574147




4 — 3yge gREufRt

T orar |
faaxor TiFeaaR IRT
AnTa
01 3 2017 & ReIfd & IGAR 406434 406434
SICEE] 3,674.45 3,674.45
fgem
31 914 2018 I R & gER 7,738.80 7,738.80
RICEE] 7,136.90 7,136.90
e . .
31 g 2019 &1 Rfd & IrgarR 14,875.70 14,875.70
gfRemes
01 3T 2017 @ R & IFAR 965.77 965.77
9y & forg gReied mWR 3079.34 3,079.34
SRTHAT BT . .
fgem
31 99 2018 &1 Rfd & IrgarR 4,045.12 4,045.12
9y & forg gReied IWR 3,765.53 3,765.53
JIRRHAT BN
fgem
31 99 2019 & Refd & rgarR 7.810.65 7,810.65
e a8 g
31 #79 2019 B R & AR 7,065.05 7,065.05
31 A/ 2018 @1 ReIfd & IgAR 3,693.68 3,693.68
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5 — &I

X o #
faavor R =g
31 919 2019 &Y | 31 ¥ 2018 B
ferft & sigar | Rafd & egar
wfcrafer ST
sfengfer fore srewT wwE T 728.42 686.16
T 728.42 686.16

fewofl: IR =e] IfMfT ST 10.85% URT 99 @1 &R Yd Hekdl &% BT ST B I9D IdAH Jed &

AR Bkl bl T 7 |

6 — 3=y fa<irg aReufr

X @
faaor R a1
31 ATE 2019 B | 31 AT 2018 P
Refy & sigar | Rufd & sgar
|rafe S
AT ST @7 qRexhar fa) arafdy 12 918 A 3t @1 & 291.60 291.60
|Ef S W AR A
Arevd TS 33.46 31.02
I 325.06 322.62
o TR & 72§ AErr S




7 — 3R
9 & Y SRR @9 & §& Fucsd R &

®. 3T g I oIl

X orar #
| faxor 31 W14 2019 B | 31 WA 2018 Bl
UGG A 9

() < &R TIf ST

2Te] STABR TR 752.37 2,268.01

Ud ay & dTef AR d AT H ARSI 1,646.55 54.51

IR Fv:

T SfTRT & Ufahe &R qa1 & Hdg | (3,662.45) (361.69)

o iR BN & fdaror # gfed il T smeR & (1,263.53) 1,960.83

(ii) | (BTRAISTE) =T AP ST FTART

I§ & SR MRS # gae & TN 7Rl & AR o

IR B

AT (1,263.53) 1,960.83

() 31 A9 2018 AR 31 AT 2019 BT FAG fA=NT ¥ & foIg WRA Bl TG PR &R D GRT 0N HRSD

I Tl okl oI 3R T T A

% o §
faa=or 31 919 2019 & | 31 A/ 2018 B
T T

Taq uRemed sl ¥ U B ¥ Ugel oI’ oy (9,786.87) 5,065.10
§g 81 U aRemed ¥ ) ¥ Ul oy
IMTHR A Ug @l TH (9,786.87) 5,065.10
34.944% TR IRT 91 AIAMRE SMAAR X (31 A1 2018 & 34.608%) (3,419.93) 1.752.93
gd gut @1 ATe] IMABR & e H FHIAISH 1,646.55 54.51
B ¥ Y WHNI I
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I gT
PR I A werdl 9 e I arer g 509.85 153.39
12.91% BT T MIHR TR TR (31 AT 2018: 37.34%) (1,263.53) 1,960.83
T 3R B faaRer # giad 5 T R @™ (1,263.53) 1,960.83
Y §g fbu MU gRATaT | U ITIDR
- (1,263.53) 1,960.83
(1) smRIfa &%
frfafed & Gdfda smeafig &= T o #
faRor GRIE I SR e & faRr
31 9rd 31 A/ 31 A/ 31 A/
2019 @ | 2018 BT | 2019 P | 2018 BI
fafos | Rafo s | gorg af | gura af
SR SR
o) SeRedl & qfy far T euEN 20.10)|  (32490)| (304.80)|  (354.32)
R ot & U e 3,455.43 10432 (3,351.11) 0.63
HHATRAT & A D folv e
SRy S BT T e (aRwaRRE) 81.51 74.96 (6.55) 8.00
MR R =TT / (319) (3,662.45) | (345.69)
fraer sRfig &) WuRMi/ (Q9aT) 3,516.83 | (145.62)
TR gomaa 9 qeriar
% orar ¥
faa=or 31 919 2019 | 31 WY 2018
FRafad | A Rafa s
TR S8R
IR R aRFURRT (Ferd aR=rmer) 3,536.93 179.28
IREITIT BRI (AT gReTer) 20.10 324.90
IreIfa #R uREuREt (Qaar), e 3,516.83 (145.62)




8 — 39 IR =g uRwuftrf

T orar |
fgwor 31 91 2019 &1 | 31 9/ 2018 &Y
It & sgur | Rufd & ogaR
I ofise =g 640.41 711.25
gfiieRI Bl 1R 1,010.07 1,828.74
IRT 1,650.48 2,539.99
9 — IR At
T orar |
- 31 9/ 2019 &1 | 31 9/ 2018 &Y
It & sgur | Ruft & ogaR
Juferge | fo78 sreeT |Hsm T 17,398.08 28,835.15
suford, e \fey st a1 9,889.60 301.43
TeRl: G o & foTv UTae=* (9,889.60) (301.43)
T 17,398.08 28,835.15

I a9 2017—18 @1 3,01,43,419 /— wUY B Al ol &I AR v wraem= &1 <A a9 2018—19
¥ gearafid fhar 1 2| $9e ferar ki ay 2018—19 & QR Wiaw ol & oY Uraem 5% @
R, foa dey § orud @ ARG & 3 91 9 W 1 aut @ foy e Ik Suee 7, | R @
IOl |ffT @1 RIeIRE & IgAR a1 11 € 1 puan fewoll | 53 < |

10 — FHGT T THG] THDE

% arar #
fqavor AT, Hafrt

31 W19 2019 @ | 31 WIH 2018 B

fRufd & sgar | Rufd & sgar
& # 9
EENIRCIS]] 28,395.00 13,294.98
I
SpEARIREIG)) 0.50 0.07
TGS ST (3 AT | HH DI URaxhar @y drel) 34,282.92 27,003.15
ART 62,678.42 40,298.20
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11 — 3 9% Ay AR

% arar #
fda=or aTe], afert
31 AT 2019 @ | 31 A 2018 HI
Rufd & sgur | Rufa & sgaR
NIEIERS R 83,073.38 112,975.19
d& RS & oIy dus T T2 |rafey S 4276.79 1,749.18
T 87,350.17 114,724.37
12 — 3 faig aREuRm
% orar #
fqaRor EISERIND
31 9IE 2019 & | 31 A/ 2018 HI
fRufd & sguR | Rafa & saR
| S R Wgd Tl
EIERESIN 4,612.61 3,923.41
AT 4,612.61 3,923.41
13 — 91q B} uREuREl (aa)
% @t #
faaRor 31 919 2019 &1 | 31 1A 2018 N
fufd & sgur | Rufd & sgaR
Ued SMIdR (10,454.36 ARG ®UJ P Hael Urqem™) (q@ a9
9701.99 TRg ®UY) 15,680.86 11,164.64
T —
JMARR B TTaer= (aro=dt fer, S vt & @1 TE) (1,646.55)
T T 59 &I fewfiRn <
AT 14,034.31 11,164.64




14 — 3= =re] uREufE

% arar #
faaRor 31 |19 2019 @ | 31 HIE 2018 &I
Rufd & sgar | Rufd @ agaR
FHHaTRal B AR
Jufavd, o areer HHs 11 36.11 31.19
AT () 36.11 31.19
= A
Juferd, T2 3T FHSI 1
M IR QiR 3T W ShvHd! 20,066.86 19,271.52
9d Ued I 336.28 318.98
ELERIRECTS 3.21 120.04
I (@) 20,406.35 19,710.54
gffpR Bl 1M 5,2217.21 8,205.39
TG —
gfcfRI &1 31 B UTaem (FHRISTAE e T8l @l s) 1,712.20
(oTET ver 59 @1 fewfort <)
ART (1) 3,505.01 8,205.39
B/ ART (H+EHT) 23,947.46 27,947.12
* I IR BT DRI
% arar #
faxor 31 W14 2019 & | 31 WA 2018 @
Rafd @ sFaR | Refdr & R
! B/ TgaIg SAIUCI(1996—97 H 2013—14) 120.71 117.70
Hr WfdaT 2000-2001 TR EIEITH 2.54 234
TG
o B /de & v graem= 117.70
WCT R &1 S U9 & foly Jrae
(oI v 59 @1 fewfor <) 234
AT 3.21 120.04

31 #Te, 2019 BT FHC 9 & oy fa<ii farol &1 Aewayol eeie A iR fewfor
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15 — Sfeact IR ol

% arar #
faaor 31 A9 2019, B | 31 G, 2018 DI
Y 3 sgar | Rafd & sgar
G ¥R Yon
100 / —&T Y% & Sfdac! IR 200,000 (Qd 9 200.00 200.00
200,000)
=TTAG, JAfIE 3R Yoida Uewd AR
100 /— ®0 YAP & 3fdae! IR 200.00 200.00
200,000 (39 Y 200,000)
- 200.00 200.00
$)  NIRERDT B G
] o §
IRYRDI B 4 31 W14, 2019 ¥ Refy & | 31 A, 2018 & Rerfay
SFFER @ AN
oIRa faadY | ftem (%) | enRa sfaadY | v (%)
IR B IR B
e e
HEIQRId, THRMEH! & ARIH ¥ YRA & Tufd 1999951 99.9975 199995 999975
o w1 faer Rig 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
SIS RS 1 0.0005
SICICTCE-R e 1 0.0005
2T Ao RiE T8 1 0.0005
ST 3N HAR 1 0.0005
o fawy == 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
it IR.y.AfT 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
anT 2,00,000 100|  2,00,000 100

* TR WROR B AR A g7Rd
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(@) RUféT a¥ & Yo R FANT W IH1T Jaed AART BT e

IV & YH H BT IWR

T omar ¥
faa=ur 31 A1 2019 9 Rfr | 31 &l 2018 Y
% AR fufy & sIgaR
=T /Y =T R3]
200,000.00 |  200.00 | 200,000.00 | 200.00

Sie — a4 & IRM ORI By U 2R

qY P FHIT TR IHrRT IR

200,000.00

200.00

200,000.00 | 200.00

) 33 IRRT W IS gU AR, a¥iar iR wfode

BN & U b Al & SfdacT IRR 8 RTAdT S9ded o 100 /w0y U ¥RR 2| 3fdact IRRI &7

YJP YRS UfT IR TP Jd < BT I ¢ |

g) 31 A9 2019 ¥ DIt Ut 5 I81 DI (AT H 7 A7 BIg 99 YIR OIN fhar 737 iR = &) Ahal
& AeTEl Ufdhel g Blg IR AT fbar TAT | $HS 37eldl, St A8 B SRTF Dlg AIR d1MH T8

SerT T |
16 — 39 sfdad) :
X orar #
faaxor 31 91 2019 H 31 WrE 2018 B
ffy & sIgaR fufy & sIgar

IR I T T T B AR e 63,682.41 60,578.14
gafafer Ffe &1 e
TAGTA & STTdT SRSy URATSHT & W @arat (fewoft wwem 50 <% ) (3.351.27)
SNRMTET aRATSTHT T T W Hefdd sl (fewoft wver 50 <% |) (1,414.74)
74 adf & forg qegerr (fewoft wem 52 < ) (455.22)
T TG URRS A9 wafn 58,461.18 60,578.14
oS — @ & fo srfeey (8,523.35) 3,104.27
Rl 49,937.83 63,682.41
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17 — 3 i <gag

T o §
fa=or IR—are
31 9/d 2019 91 | 31 9/E 2018 Y
o Rufd & oar | Rt & sgaR
< wfengfcr T 40.45 40.45
IRT 40.45 40.45
18 — AR WIfTai
3 o #
- 31 9/d 2019 &1 | 31 WIE 2018 W
fft & oqar | Rl & sIgarR
IR grfeat
GeH 3R Y SegHl D BRI 466.66
e 3R oY STIH B AT 34,465.51 47,192.00
N 34,932.17 47,192.00
19 — 3y fo<ig <gar
T arEr ¥
fa=or LI
31 919 2019 91 | 31 9/ 2018 Pl
Ruft & sgar | Rufd @ sgaR
>3 ST ST /R 931.11 92136
Y HHANT o 274.45 147.57
T 19.00 9.87
gferor i (ﬁw 3\5 W) 242.38 242.37
A 1,466.94 1,321.17




ool deEm 20 — 379 AT <A™

% arar #
faaxor 31 914 2019 &1 | 31 1A 2018 &Y
fRufd & sgur | Rt & sgaR
FRRE < R o T 413.85 1,992.35
Trewt A i iy Ry 111,852.71 115,804.50
TEd! A I & FeRl 29,518.24 9,225.79
i TRy e 276.00 198.00
T 142,060.79 127,220.64
feuofy H@r 21 — e
% <@t #
feraror a1
31 A1E 2019 BT | 31 HIE 2018 B
fufd & sgur | Rufd & sgaR
Y Yob v TG 7452 74.52
AT 74.52 74.52
feuft H@r 22 — gRaETew ¥ e
X <@t #
fraor 31 94, 2019 &I 31 914, 2018 B
Rk L] A Y
IRaETe | A o
AR &Y AT BT I 19,433.70 38,476.45
JaT M 95,479.47 87,352.48
T (@) 114,913.17 125,828.93
PRIRISCRCEIN 39.66 7.43
T (@) 39.66 7.43
IRETEH | U G IoRd (@)+(@) 114,952.84 125,836.36

75



76

fewof e 23 — 399 I

T orar |
a 31 979, 2019 BT 31 979, 2018 BT
T Iy LI icL]
7T aﬂ' 10} 9,094.45 8,285.60
s W 9ReETerd 598.77 250.56
"N —
™ HERIAT URATSTRI TR TS (TTBYA & ATal) 587.22 428.48
UIHYT IRATSRIT IR &Tel (QTE \Agr) 77.45 349.23
o gl & ggamg = 89 IR oY - 0.65
AT 9,080.50 7,806.36
*ITIHR D] AT TR AT & Ha H 12069 G W (T 99 I BR) A 2 |
fewofy we&ar 24 — @T
3T orar |
P 31 914, 2019 9T 31 94, 2018 BT
LI ACL] A af
TRIG—
ESER 17,145.55 34,239.03
O 1,188.97 2.644.47
T STaR=EAT BT BeATd 5,804.99 2,687.53
T 24,139.51 39,571.03
feuoly e 25 — HHER & fdl deelt =g
T o |
31 A, 2019 DI | 31 ¥ME, 2018 &I
fawor
RIS AGL] RIS AGL]
ad= 9 WIedTEA 1057.11 794.41
TIH BT 35.52 34.43
qnT 1092.63 828.84




fewoly S 26 — N @™

X arar |
fraeo 31 9T, 2019 PT | 31 AT, 2018 Bl
A % LIS

SRAT TR Yo 7.22 7.22
& 9IR 429 13.14
IS o6& DI JI AR 0.20 0.34
e T U 1494 10.05
IR Hael= 8.22
P R TR -
SIUHST (IR gRacir) 2842 2223
BT ARG g 133.99 68.22
ITHIST HER 41.14 43.56
RERURD 7.7 479
et T SeRar =3 176.00 198.00
Il e & forg ot 2.29 4.69
wfee T 9,588.17
ERGIRIEESEICEIN 561.75 613.92
el ga1 # ofR 0.38
0TST IR 7.04
T8 AT g TS YAR 327.70 291.05
T ofiSrs IR 437 7.24
RS TRIT—URIeT Yoeh 0.25 0.60
P HedTT ITHR I Ud W8 IRA HR(R aRadr) 1.28 613.74
G T MG THR 143 1.01
fafder =1 743 13.31
THER 9 0.95 0.86
HrIfed &g 1,804.48 1,289.18
Fratera faxrar 2,186.94 2,585.51
TG g SR A 6.98 9.22
RIS 9 WA IR 220.83 234.56
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diva & forg famman 0.45 045
fobRrar av o AR 9.94 427
TRHET d YERE 597.97 385.88
AaT R (IR TRIGH) 30.49 22237
ST ATeT IMR 27337 328.60
TellBIE 42.72 52.31
g1 I 315.92 348.48
ared — g 1.69 1.45
args Bl YERETT 0.42
gffpRl B M (GRIRINTIERYEE = fhar 1) 1,712.20

fas1 Frede =g sma 117.70 -
Seiicl W AT v S 2.34 -
Bkl 18,248.79 7,377.05

fISTel, 3R STt IR TT T8 aeel dofl 9%Ts Y9RI & foy oY & offie sridel & Mae afayfd &

qTS ST AT 2§ |

feuoft W= 27 — YRAP IR BT SUSH

X orar #

P 31 :i;o;; 3T | 31 :j;o;; G2
Af IRR U
SIS TRNGRGT BT YHIfad B aTel STferey (8,523.35) 3,104.27
SfFad) IRRT &1 9IRa Sivag = 2.00 2.00
oSS 9fd TR (4,261.67) 1,552.13
P SUSH i ¥R (4,261.67) 1,552.13
sifpd qeu Y IR 100.00 100.00




feuof wear 28 — Sfd geg @A

() 2roft # R SuesRor

% o §

faa=or 31 91 2019 31 91 2018
! Rufd & IgER %! Rufy & sgaR
TEddte | oRefa | tediddiva | aRefda
AT GING]

facfra oReafRmt
R ygiftg avg et 17,398.08 28,835.15
Thal IR THST THBET AT 62,678.42 40,298.20
3 9 Y i 87,350.17 114,724.37
AT ATl (c”qi) 4,612.61 3,923.41
;rf%[{ﬁ[ STHT 728.42 686.16
Jrafey ST 291.60 291.60
gred ASIER =ATe)) 33.46 31.02
|/ g aRaufRt -1173,092.75 -1188,789.92
foig <ar
MR g ARt 34,932.17 47,192.00
3= fa<ia Saar (=mq)) 1,466.94 132117
3=y foxira <garl (IR =mep) 40.45 40.45
Egl g <gar) 36,439.55 -| 48,553.62
(i) Sfora qea 1 sHHTG

|1 o= areAl e oy SR o &1 uga= &1 AT & JATal ST FheIdrvl f6ar 11 2 S9!

ST oI & HHdGd & IR aigpd fhar T &
TR—1: AqRY URFUREl  3rerdr <aamsil & forg |fhy aTeRl # o ey (SRETIf) |

TR—2: oI gfaferl s fory Sfa Jed 7109 & S9R Agddyul  ¥9E Wa- dTel 7 &R &

ST BT UTeT ST IUET HU A ST AT 7 |

WR—3: oI AfAferl forde forg S Jou #199 & IR Aewayul JHreg R+ drel 9+ R & g7Ye

FTATHHY IR STeT R TR 81 2 |

Fr=ferRad ARl #, foraH ST Heg &1 I U Hod A STFAM o ST 8, Sl BIShR HUl

& IRAURET IR I &1 ST i ATGT &1 HHIGAT BT UG fHar 1 7 |
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q¥ B SR WR 1, ¥R 2 3R WN 3 P " BIg QAR [8) fhar 17 g |

Thal 3R Fhal FaBE PR, AR YT, Iy AR, 3= Uit rearafyy SR, AR < IRt
qAT 31 Are] fa<i Suamll & foly yeaed I8 MERe &Rar § & 59 GrFEl o rearae uRudadr &
BRI UM WR ST o Sy T IR & 9@ ST oI H A T ST & |

HUAI DI ST TS ITT AT ST & AT Hod BT MR Bk &R BT SRS HID Beldl
T A% yarg (SAIUh) ST B A dxa IR fhar Sirar 2 g Rafé safer & sid # aoR
P YR TR DI AT AT & | 58 90 el Hiee ARH 3T HA IR a7 fBY S ared
$YC Bl 7 SIS & HRYT IAT oI DI HAGGA] H WR 3 D ST oAl & WU H i fbar 171 2 |

20. faxfa SIRew vey Se9y iR =ifort

DU D I R <IArel H AR I IREN, Ui ST, a1 ST IIRT T2 Har) & qgdrd
e 21 dUAl @ ot fa<i aRewufrl § emor wiftadr, gfosifar S, |mafy s, S9a aRkere |
A & 9T B9 aTell Tdhdl 3R da 2w IRET Wi g |

ST gIoTR SRgH, Bfec SIRgy g ferfaafed! TiRaw & IR & gardl © | SUT BT Jeea S SidHl
$ JEEd BT BT @Al & | U b IRNS TdEH BI Qed HSd §RT FERIdT UG & STl 8 S du=l
& forg faxfra SiRed dor Sug faxiia SIReH o ST 99 & G H§ 9l <d & | 9IS dul
@ YEgT DI U8 IMMATAT Il & b BUN & [ARIT SIRGA | FRIET TAfAfERl &1 Sugeh Aifadl qen
Ul & gRT A fHar Srar € iR foxia SiRawi &1 Su=t @1 ifoadl den SIikeq Sewdl & o aR
U &I ST &, SHBT 3Tt JAqT Yded fhar SIar © | yded < |eg # Ay v 39y Shiikgdt
BT YT B B forg AT &7 THeT HRar 8 3R SR FEAfd We™H Bl © |

1.  qoIR ofew

ISR SIIRgA 98 SIRgd 81 & o faxiia |l & vfass | 89 a1l 964l vae & Sfd qeai
IR A1 § B4 drel gRacHl & HR gfg B S | IR SR H 9 bR & Siigd 8 %
T &% SIREH, T SIRW iR 39 ed SiiRgd enfiel 81 € | 9ok SiiRgd & rfaad it et
¥ |afy S et B 2

(@) =TT <R SiRew

TS SR SIRGH I8 SIReA Brar & fored o< et & 9fasy # 89 arel &< varg srerar 3fud geal
# qOIR & @l <=0 H gRads 89 drel gRadHl & BRI gig 8 SRR | Ul St @ o @b T
AER SHT H U @ 9 A J= ®Y A FHERT aOR @ e &)1 | 8F drel uRadl & Siikgd
@ IR H FAdl 8| P DI Frafd SHET DI UG R R o ST S B | A &S 9} SRgH WR R
FRA gY, O b MR o A @ 107 § gRWIRYT fhar a2 fF 7 % omy of S arelt f¥y
@ HRUT AR T & 9 AHA TAE B HROT GOR DI ATl &30 | aRadd 89 & Heawd gfg Brl |

(@) faeeht gar o HagTehera
et ga1 &1 SIRgH a8 SRgA B & e & wfasy § g a1ell Faal yars & Sfua g d Al
_I ¥ uRad 8 & SRl gig 81l | faqel gar SIkew Faa=eiaar & s uReufrdl qer qudamsi
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@ ST Al § B T B Y Ugel IR B S WR BUN & 9 UR FNIG TSl & | HUAT faqeh
TET BIell ¥ |
Il Hfee wifaw

iec SIReT a8 SR BT & 5/ vl urel Ul areararsii &1 71 781 urll | B 33 W0 9 HiST
SIRIH BT = B & oy yrfad Bl 2|

Bfec SRaH w§e=
U fF=falRad & R ) gl sfee gl & forw urgam o) 2

% omar ¥
Bfee Rgw N[BT BT IR IR $Hfee sy &
forg wrau=
forrer @fee wifam o 9w R 12 918 ¥ UG Bfec g
Tegq e SfRkad IR wftaar qor o= fadig | sfee wifv
S

AT & ITAR Wihd FHIEE & WIdR I | IHRIT DI JSRIT B arell g1l &1 &Y aRdfdd
Bfee B BN & Iwa IR I9d ufhe R 3menRa 2|

T o ¥
Bfec B X farawor 31 919 2019 91 | 31 A/ 2018
fufd & oqar | Rufd & ogEr
R wfse SIRgH | AT 3R Adhel & IHGeT IRR, 96 1,50,757.01 1,55,708.74
ST 3R o= db 99 RET
HegY fec SRgH | TR Ui, 20T 3R o= faxi 22,739.11 33,444.72
e

AR W ST GIE0T

IR JIfadl § 9RT & A= I3l & SIfHer U i § 3l st SiRaA &1 dIs Agdqul
HAdg T8l T |

wfse SiRad ¥ gelRd wfee @1 el gg maus wfiea €| wo f=foRaa aReufrl @ foag 12
HIE 1 JATRIA HISS BT 8 UG Rl 2 |
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T orEr ¥

faa=or Tohd T ¥ |yl Bfee gt | fee s A

31 AE 2019 I R & AR
AR e 27,287.68 (9.889.60)|  17,398.08

31 W4 2018 &t ReIfy & AR
TR T 29,136.59 (301.43)|  28835.15

Il & A B Wag™ — YR sfse il &1 safe

R arar §

T W &1 A IR it
31 9 2017 & Refy & srgaR s s 303.28
a¥ @ SR TgA B TS B/ (Feardfcra) qRifebe <R (1.85)
31 A1 2018 B Rl & srgarR =iy = 301.43
¥ & IR TAE B TS B/ (Farafia) wRifed ke 9,588.17
31 94 2019 & Refy & argaR &y s 9,889.60

. fafdafed Sikew

fafdafser SRaq a8 SRaA BT & R U= A< <aamell | F&fd argdmeil &1 gid & # o
qrell BfSATSAl BT AHAT BT, TR THhdl rerar =g foxig aReufial & g1 fRge™ fear mar 2 |
fafaafedt o & fou Su=l &1 a2 99a I8 GRREad &1 B8R {6 SHa I S9! agarsii &l gfd
IR B foy < <7 B @1 Rufa # gara fofafesdt I Suder 2 | ydes genlid Fadl vare @
JMER TR Tha gY Adal FHGET RN TAT U1 B fetfdalfedt &1 Refd & gaigar ufsbar &1 R
PRAT T | DU IR DI fAfFSE &1 ofjar Siam @l @ fgd a1 aReres & q_1 fhar S
g

HAfderde gardil 9 T QI IRRE @ SMHR W Ul Bl ARG gt Bl uRudadr dwige Bl
AR = wrelt # e @ g )




T orEr ¥

ANMR |39 FHF | 3912 (1959 | 598 9 AR
Hig Hlg DH
31 | 2019
B AT I8
TR e 34,932.17 34,932.17
B 40.45 40.45
B 1,466.94 1,466.94
NS 36,399.11 40.45 36,439.55
31 |1 2018
B FAT 9y
TR S 47,192.00 47,192.00
o fad ST ATe) 40.45 40.45
R 132117 1,321.17
N 48,513.17 40.45 48,553.62
30. Yol Hee

PUAT BT Yol Yaee B HREAT BT Ie g GHRAd Rl 2 b qadg B Hrishd Bl UeT3il Pl

Praffrad &7 & foIv o & Gk gaie forfrafsd) Sucter 81| Susl Ty 991 G- a1 S9d
Ieedl @1 gid B T goll EeT H B dTel uRadei &1 UeTRil &1 Jedihd &1 & foly Faar
P A Tehe aTe AUeTRN BT FIRMT &Rl B |

S T Rerfadl § g9 drel URadHl bl &9 H @ 8U S9! Yoil GRIAT DI FaReId Rdl ©
IR I AN Bl 2 | Yol FaT BT IERET B Al IHH FARIG B3l & oy =il Adhal
g T IR TR B D oy, TRREeeN Bl Ufdher gofl, VAT 379 JoI Suged Y ERfera rfafafer

DI Y BRI AT IFD W R T3 301 AU Y& B 2g AT G DI FHRIGT DA |
31 AT 2019 P AW qY & IR Iel, AT fer@ar ufhdl H Hig aRac &1 fbar T3 |
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T arEr #

faaor 3191 2019 & | 3191 2018 I
Ruft @ sgar | Rl & sgaR
P 115,896.44 135,550.58
5 50,137.83 63,882.41
yolt iR Foraet 7o 166,034.27 199,432.99
T (%) 69.80% 67.97%
31. HUAS STAR

T UF DI ARG & AR, DU gRT YA DI T Bl T3 A ASC IRET & AW H i

<Al WR AR T2l fHar T § Jifs aRASHRel & ded g fBd T @ IUSRN Bl aRET Jare
@ 91 FAI—I7T R famamil / qieRt 9 ol & dgad wfie fHar o 2|

ST & 3fATEl Waed = Bl TS MHHAD <aar) -ird & Y AR &

X arar ¥
faaror 31 HTd, 2019 3|31 AT, 2018 B
Rerfr & srgar | Refr & srgaR
HUA | 779, P T B wY F Ggar T8 & W 2 99.66 69.72
TRET 1848.84 1493.32
JMIHR ART (FEROT 99 2010—11) 7.91
JMIHR ART (FEROT 99 2012—13) 14.90
JRIAR AT (ko ay 2015—16) 350.60
IORT 2299.10 1585.85

i. 2009 ¥ 2016 TP Bl AW & foU WaeH YARI & Fdg H 32,383.09 TR “UY 3R ATSHA Yodb
& HaT H 65,445.02 ARG ©UY DI SRICT GRT SRICT ARHT & oy A w9 | FeiRor foar
T 7 (Hew fewell §eaT 44 o) | SWEd fawi ay 2016—17 9§ AN 9¥ @ folY BIS TAMER

&l far T 2|
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ii. 31 A€, 2017 BT FHAl TaRT ST BT FYa BT MU AT Agdd — R & Fag 3§ — de
Jaratl (ATTHRT gRITSTT 3R TASIARYE YRATSTT ) I A WR 2 IR $I &% A AT AT

AT B

v SUJFd & oY IS UTae 81 fBA1 T 7 Rifh geE Bl v § b vfdsy 3 o pIg arafd®

< /AR T8l B8Rl |
32.  gEqEgdl

HUN T RATAIRS AT BT WG B AT ATYfibaiall & Hdrer fhd T HRRT TAT HI AT TR 3T

TTRT ITRA! 37afe § 37 HATAT BT A9 T DR DI qaadgdl & & | §7 JoIdGarsi ol Wigd el
@ JFTAR FENAT A1 fHar ST FHar & | Jfl, SUT BT ARG aRATSHIR & Fag § U o
FEdGARN @ AR 31 A 2019 B WA & IR 2323 G T (Qd q9 21.32 G ©U) B |

s AIfaRad, RfEfa # 9 goft g & Hdy # aqaegar =R § —

X o #
EL| faaxor 31 AT, 2019 W | 31 A, 2018 B
e Refer & srgar | Refd & sgar
1 | STel &g, Ja-iwa” 4,696.00 9,248.00
2 | TS FITSs WAt BT HagH 5,386.00 12,034.00
3 |Rrem 20 — e AT ygd ®1af &1 yaR 1,407.00 7.213.00
4 | R SR De 2,650.00
5 | TR TIET ®g BT AT 816.00
6 |33 <I UTd, TSN Ui H f[ad™T dg 2,480.00
BT 11,489.00 34,441.00

33. HU AR, 2013 B ITLA I H A T T 7 FF GT NIR A D QAT e & WRT

5 (viil) @ IFAR A
i, T 3TS U% MR WR S & I -
i faceh go1 # =g (g IR W)

LA

T amEr ¥
favor 31, ATE 2019 DY TG q§ | 31, A 2018 B FANT Y
AT (faceh) Nl NS
AT ™ ™
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34. OGT Wed IR

X oy §
fa=or 31, A1H 2019 ®T | 31, AIE 2018 Bl
GLISECE] AT I8
PR ST Yo YT R gU ordl ThEd Yo 7.21 7.21
ol A aRgR ¥ 1.99 1.99
AT 9.12 9.12

*HGTHR Pl AMHA BRI Y| $HD AT, 2.30 ARI wUI (Y4 Y 3.42 ARG HU) BT AT aRATST131
@& forg g St & forg A fosam ar € Ry 9 8 wdfda aRareret # <fde fear sar 2

35. WRANY AGHT AMD 19 B ATAR  FHEIHRO — " HHANT o

@) wfss AR sferem

Rl @1 Brg Jfas [ Fromr 81 & aifh 3 A1d,1998 &1 YRA WRBR Bl IAGAT b AR [h
& T USRS T S9d Ug UHsTENl & ufafgie W forg v €| vfasy AR @ 59w 'q
TR R & AR TAS A8 SHS a9 A Heldl BT TS § I IR A Arfeell Rigidl & iR
AT A YS! DI WOl ST & Fifd Fg0l ofdl &1 &AM 39 gRT fhar Siem 8 | gafery
T @1 FHRAl & wiasy A o/ & A @ ddy # BIE g T8 2 |

@) g&

e 3 A1, 1998 B AR WHR B IR & AR UG A DHg & W FHaRT ufatigie = g,
gel Ia 3R R B (FfET HHar) & 909 ¥ FeiRa &= & gaR) Fedl gRT u”e A8 S5
QT H TUET B A SHEH B ST ® T SHG U S YA dg B Ut w1 oy Siar 21 59
THR, N & G a0 ITdE /gE YA & A6y # Big SIar e 2 |

(iii) U sivR™

4fdh 3 AT, 1998 B Ith ARA WRBR DI AT & ITAR, A A dg & I HHar) gfafgie «®
2, gAfory YoM 3iera IR &1 (Wt HHar) & 94 9 FEiRd =1 & o 9R) Idd 918 S 9N
H Bl gRT ITUERIE &1 Sl © 9T IAD ULl S A dg Bl 9ol 337 SI|r 8 | 39 bR
URRY o & Y @ forw el @1 ig <ger e ©

(iv) Sua™

4fdh 3 A, 1998 B I IR ARDHR Bl AR & AR, MG [ dg & I HHaRT gfatgfh
WR §, SAMIY BUAT I B & oy AT 81 & i IADI TF 3Mg Al gRT QI aRE I g8 fba
SIRATT |




36. Gefdd ISt & Yol

et wféar o A
aiét BT T HeE
£ AN AR 871, e Fqers U UEgdHI BIfHD
ii. R WAt ¥ A<
X arar #
ot BT M o S @B TPpha 31 94, 2019 P 31 T, 2018 BY
| € | 9%

3 AT {AR 81 ydgd qiksifes 38.61 34.47

ART 38.61 34.47

Hag UIfSAT BT 31—03—2019 B HAAT & JFTAR I WAV R : 2,59 AT HUI (I 9Y 2.37 ARG W)

ot |

37. uRanfera @ifaRfE) <

ST 7 aRaferd ETIRfET) ofiel @ favid Frfed wra & W9 W o 81 39 T[],  WRA™

AEiHT AMG 17 ‘Ao B Bl bl FAdH dlive YIaH & fJaror Frgar gi—

3 oy i
P . fa=or 31 W1, 2019 H 31 T4, 2018 F
ffd & sar Rufy & srgaR
L v af ol TS 1,425.11 1302.78
i | g o < ol T a9 & B 7,809.99 7,578.28
i |aig as W P 12,275.94 13,932.76

38. RAY W@id AFD — 108 IRATAT TS & ATAR THCIGRI

el fieel # HEHd HEaed | dbad gadr deifial” s W) & War U8 &R 8 2| 839 W)
Th Ge & wU H AR a=d gy, faxig fdarol # IRA oigied A 108 — IR=Eme ©$ & IIJAR
PIs YHCIHROT Tl fhar T T |

39. 9§ gfe

Y gfeavor oo A=t ol & d8d 9N fy U © | S99 IR o1 Hedlel 2 |
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40. GIRI / &% faer® &1 R fAwreq

PUET T ¥ 2003 3R 2001 H HAIE HGH TAONINT foifics o 8fal 9 2 31X 3, 6a1 ddl gAdNIN
TR, WIdTS ST Ueld, T3 el WRIAT | T, IHGT 931,50 RI HU (T IY 931.50 TRI ©I) &
Hag H FaN kg /8 fdoig &I AR §RT BUAl ¥ 980 9 SIRIY UKl 814 & drac[e 41 3
TP Gollged 81 ST AT 8 | HU §RT 371 Al # 99 A 1 Fafia wu 9 g feman <
ET B | 3% WH SIS B AR & e H 7451 G T ([d 9§ 74.51 G TUY) BT TRMAS ATaen
faxirar faaxoll & fobar ar € &R ofcR ¥R, Ife ®1g 81, Arel | Wraer fbar SR SR S goigd
fpar ST |

41. T & faeR 4, e aRAEREL, o7 SR A B Jou A SRIFRAY & SRE aga 4ol
BT 12T Wi SefolRad IR & HA—H—HH F9ged &l |

42. THUAUHS ST SIfAfIH, 2016 P URT 22 & 37eNT UbcIhIol

el fara=or 31 |1E 2019 | 31 ¥E 2018
q o Rufa & | @1 Rafy &
AFER PR
1| Bl A1 syfcierdt @1 g yaa & oy < e IR0 3fR| 466.66 T
Bl
2 |YfiBR &I & T8 A B AR TAT GeH, oY IR 79 3T Nl B
a1, 2006 @1 URT 16 & JATAR WIGER ERT U Bl
UERS ISR ININ
3 |YAE R H QO B A B Y SO &S AR I AR, oAfeb Nl NGl
e, oTg 3R AW S A 1M, 2006 & dga ffdse &
CAESISHER]
4 | WIEd TS T AN I A @ TS AR T T
5 |3, oY 3R Heww Sed fadrd SAferf+aw, 2006 Bl ORT 23 B TR | L Nl
FEAT HRA Tl AF DI A T B YA W, 9 IRE o
SUYTd < TS R BT oY SH Bl aRdd H YA fHa1 ST
2, U8l a9 & Icvadi aut # W &) «reT AR T I® S & QAR
<Yl |

43, IR oIGT AFH—36 “URHURTAT B AT B FTHAR TBSIHRIT

YR Il A —36 “UREUfTAl Bl Sl & AFAR fAcig 99 2018—19 & QIR U Ul &I
H Rerd I SeT ®rg IR el TR H Sfel g & Gy § TSN Farss HaRll & Fad+ 3R
AT UTeb Il H fAebrd el TR e BRe & Hae H IR adl B Treria bl fHeriRor fban w2 g
ST b BRI BT Fhal IR PR dTell IS © AR $9 Hae H BT IR 81 &1 udl T8 <ol & |




44. f&Ai® 20.11.2009 B SN AT Ho 815—100 / B /2000w B 7 —Ac yRAS=wRIT F
IORT ST (Sff IR /Y o 81R) 3R 86 W SRt Y agdd Yob AR Wagd TR ST T
R 7 faTid 25.11.2009 BT TEAR PINT & ATT U ATfOSRId die dATsdd FHsiiar fdhar o &k
RAEAR [T BT TETAR ASHE Yo 3R WagH YART BT YA fhar ST @T & | a9 & SRM 39
AT B e, & RIS T el iR TASIIRTG H1af=ad &1 T & | STdeR, 2015 # =
Ud HeToral WIeTd o g 3h1d fhar o7 {6 9Rd & a9-1g Sadd <-Ted 3 379+ feid 11.10.2011 &
AT H Pal o7 b ARSI Ahel Toied dl g aRamyT, foraHd esdid & uR 1ol eiie 7, 3R
Pl dRE | ASHTIRS P YA AT & Al ASHAIRD] Bl B 7 b 9 AR AfSH & ds
(4) & TEd ATIHA DI AMMATIHAT 1 BF dTel BIAGATY F BN AT VA BRIGATA DI fHAT 31 gafa a1
BH IT BT BT RIFART B < | D, ITd 915 YHSsMsCIdls & dedd 4 RAIR 91T 4 59
A TR HRATS B GREIR [I9RT M6l & Hag 3 dhadd I aRATSIRI | U IoRd W &
TG BT, A & RS Wd i & IR BN & QX o IR IRl ST | AR fI9RT A
a1 10.5.2016 & AELRATHBII H0 32—4 / ARIU—Ieell / 2015—TATHYl (6 Seed—2) ERT G fbar
TSIIBIR ATHAT {helgTel AT Seddd <rTerd | “aidied” & 3fefl< 2 3fiR 29.02.2016 B Gdlg & QR
PIC o HET fh R FE 30N F9 & AR AR ISR 291, BTefifh 39 dIc gRT faarg & 3ifcH
ol 89 9% 39 oF] TE i SR | REAR MR A S wEl & qeuied o, aNifTe s
IR B deT T wral iR IHa—aa R N Arteeft Rigial /rgeel / Tsdiavol & STgdR, 3RTel
IS Th STRI QT STRATT | 9nfy, SIefiel 9 fadid 09.02.2017 & U5 . 7—16 / 2009—TUH /T A<
2015—16 /107 TT &I 09.02.2017 & H. Seegdl TH—1000 / <l /a1forsa &Y 1€ /2010—11 /107
@ GRT 13! DI 2009 I 2016 Th DI AW & oY AHA Yoob & Hae H 65445.02 TRI BUY Il
WagHd TRI & dae H 32383.09 G U BT Bl fARA i Woll | 39 AT & forg et 3
THEIMSCIATS R S8 & A1 §9 e R HRAg Y6 DI | $9 I[AMEL3H dHc H RfT Bisdd
T BT 8 |

Yl ¥ qRER T @1 facfi af 2016—17 & SRTH TEIAR Ugel UATE TS USRI & AR YARI
BT YA /Y& a1 8 | aRArear Rerf Frargar &

(@) oo kAo & o 9

facia 99 2018—19 & SR feATd 20.11.2009 BT SRS ATSAHT T&AT 815—100 / T / 2009—< 0
& A YaiaR RIS H HIgadl 8 9 9 Iod & ¥U § I OU (Qd 99 IR Bu) Bl AR e
@ T 2| s e R § -

X arar ¥
w4, faraeor 31 A= 2019 @Y | 31 AE 2018 BT A
AT 9 Gl
(@) | BTN B M AR T AT & AR ol ol 1,24,033.53 1.33,642.72
@) |SwWa ;M AREF 9 HaOd I wasi Mgl Nl
(Aol aRAren) 9 3y
@) | (@) & sremar aRereETST X A Ko 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72
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et o R 39 RIS & Hey H Sudad osdd @ A SR & SfaRad e rerar AT
BT GRITSTAT T=AT 80752 / SISUH /U<l & UIRd fham SIRAT |

N URIIST § 1 3T &1 §RT I S dTel JAH, A PIS 2, BT I 9 H AT § SIRAT T ST,
forad Saa! aqell & Sedl | denfy |, el 7 fai 31—3—2017 1 SIIET BT Iad osHd gya
T 2 iR qogeand HU- SaRT i ay 2018—19 H PIg AR TH 1 BT 718 |

@) TIERRTE gREET &g dRe

facia ¥ 2018—19 & SR AP 20.11.2009 B SIAET ATSHA HIT 815—100 / BT / 2009—S10H
% e QAR IRATSHT @ foly 9 ¥ Gdfd oRa & 30§ 3 S0 (99 99 I TUY) DI R
o @1 A | s faaRer fEEeR § -

% orar §
9. faa=or 31 ATH 2019 9 | 31 ¥ 2018 & Ry
feIfy & srgaR T IJAR
(@) | DU B A AR I Q@ B FJAR K IO 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72
@) |Swam M A ¥ AR die darsit = S
(Hroa=ar aRRAre) | 3y
(M) | (@) B srarar aRASTRN | U Iod 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72

el o R 39 IRASHT & Heg # SWRad dsHd & e SRt & SifaRad e ferar SAMT
BT IRITSTET T=AT 111116 / SsUd /Tae! 8§ gaiRd fhar SR |

9 gRATST H SIBIET §RT MY Y A, Al Big &, BT 39 99 H oRI—SI@l @l SR, 5
IHD! Al DI T & | AT, B 7 31—-03—2017 BT LA DI Iad A0 Gya AT 3R IqD
qeed HUH SIRT A 99 2018—19 & SRIF Pig ARl Y& ol B g |

45. U URESHT W 9ReEred SHe IRl GRS TR)

TS G YRATTAT W &6 19.07.2011 BT AT Iod WG FART B 98F & BRI & AR, TH
& T RIS @ S & R 1% T ¥ R WA R 9l B & e H gelagi-al AR
A WEnfa #31e & UHIGd faed T9NT, T9ET (SMSUme!) I ARy SrgHie urd 8F &1 uellell ¢ |
A, Qe AvSH | OIS 3TJAGH & SR, "M ShHfCad Hex ARG 3% YagdRT Soldgii-a]

IR AT @] HATAd BT ARG AT & TR & & 1% I &% A AUl GR=ETe A
IR @ vfafe R B 7




46. TS SIET B IR, WS S, ek & dee 7 smmay

T Sfel By, AR TTeh, ool Bl Seagif~ra 3R T Aedifia #3rerg 3R g @ — fasm=
| fa<ia Aerdn | U fBar a1 of &R Jellg, 2011 H S99 BM BRAT Yo DR (AT | R
i |fafd g1 Ry T ogAed @ o R, el &1 URMS 2 auf & foy 800 A ®W & &R 4
A W URATAAHS I AR BT TgH BRAT TS (3707 IRATAATHD I DI GRT 3 & forg et
DI I AT 60 X I 3T UKl b1 off | Siafch Ml =1 2 guf & a1 1 I/ R yRATAAHS
DI YT HAT SINT T |

THERECIATE F U8 AT fhar f6 faid 01.04.2014 & M |, Mol I TET s, AR UTaD,
faeell IR R 9 @AM / Tl @ & IERETE / RTE] SqaRa T 3l Tue UH STeifad el )
800 I ¥U TP URATAAHS T AR T BT R YA fIegd ofiR Siotel TRI / Ieder gRe
g 8 LRI JRI /T TIRI / AIMSTRES TSI/ MHRABAT YHRT & Hae 7 H §RT URH H 3
Y g8 B B YA Bl BT 30 Joic Urag H W 37 9l TMRI & 3% dd aF DI Ufayfd
BT | AR § I el by B WRIUAT Sk & A1 8, el iR g 7wl ures, el
H IR BfeT dg @ o1y &k SHa uRame SR Jda & oy gawer okl &7 &M Y% fhar | Fadr
@ fC9d Heol 7 27.12.2018 BT I(TATIT U1 108 df 98k H 9 W fIarR fHar iR S 01 i
2018 W TR ergAIfea o —

o [l I Ure SR YaHvaR SfeT dal & ol U felT URATST Yol [rar g=rg |

e 39 Tl ST DGl IR AS—ATH Wi & AIH W U I BT YRdrdd gRArer et & aefi=
X7 SITUT |

o 39 T T dal W 3N VS TH @d & gif B IR Ho aEReT & I=19 & forg 3mg ol
ST T ST |

o Il BN WAl U H WM WAl & foly WA fhy S X2 HAISET 60 Xb & 3T,
TSI AT aTel 81 @ oIy 31 US TH @Al @l g &R @ foft 3R o aaRal & I+1d4
& forg gt fAfern arq &= 2q &R &1f¥d X Sie |

o Il faxi 99 2018—19 3R IAS 418 A AR U H 31 S TH Y IR & g H 800 oG
w0 AT a¥ @d T8l BN | gl §RT WA fhU ST aTel 60 Xbl IR 3AA D Yl &
AEEH | AT a9 o fhy Y TSRE BT SUART 31 TS UH & T GRT R AR el qEal &
I & fey fhar g |

o ¥ I AT US TH &I I WM 3R NS U] ol aRa Tl & I+ & |dg H =iy a9
2018—19 3R IAD AT F dIS gRT AFANSd &R & FTAR AUl 7% B X 4 uReAcHS M
IR ggA BT |

Ml 7 TEIIR MRS U 3R Ya=ivdR Ml @ ol I il &g H fa<ig 99 2018—19 ¥ 370+l

3T AR =T T B 2 |

| o1



47  TFOIEE ¥ IR R e sl a1 gg 9 Rawa

ST A IS a9 2010—11 | 2013—14 & IR THRISAl I gfafFgafd w ol T el & wHamial
&1 B o Jar FgH & MR W= gl A RAgd & dde # 189 og U @l ufayfet @l 2 | g
AUSH Bl fQATd 17.05.2006 DI AT IAD] 4941 9% H I gRT AN HaT FRIAT & AR W
HUN gRT 39 RN &1 URYRT &1 78 & IR IW &b 24.00.2010 BT AN 6941 o6 H FIET
o T o, Siifp SIdE / SeAdiq & faenferden iR AiwE & ggl I Rarad F4l & AR T8l
2| I9d 918 39 9ar Ml B FHE §RT 11.11.2014 BT GRWEA 3 TRl / SIS3iCIdrs ol wall
TAT R | IS B AR B AR e fhwdl # @l SREf | et 9 78, 2015 # wHerRal & 999 9@
R B agel B 2 | 39S forg HHAIRA 7 A fieel S =rarer # a¥en @ o arfaer qrR
DI AR A AMC H YA gRT 3ifcd o a1 d& {316 — 00.06.2015 & “3MT<e” §RT HHATRAI
A RN B gl PR & Gdg H IR o <) T 2 | AT H, A ol ST grarery | A
18.03.2016 & 37U Hhdfel H 0l foram o war e, ST srdieted &1 el # gfafgafa oR srde &=
@ forg IRT Bl 2 &R VAR & SINIGHRYT fAded B go= a1 G ue well 8, SH AT I |
R I GiAuT B FAq BY W A ISRAT TN | IASD d1e Gereidl & el § demes fbar 1o w)
1S faare =2 o 6 el & wer Ry qen S 63 T dees o) @ | g aRefR §
& 3l H geeld B 991 @ S 9rell a9gell Bl T A8l ol Ghl | daJaR gfadral i Hadr
Bl 2010 ¥ U4 UAFGAd & Al & AR 3Af&d I o T AR & 9 BRA Dl AT
T © b HIS[ET BO BHATRAT 1 FTST H 3 HRIYRUN fhar ierdr S 2010 & HeMET & Afddhd
2 | 39 AU BT S9 HAT TP A A 2 |

THgATECIAlg o fadid 14.07.2016 & UF & gRT M&HAl &I I8 e f&ar f6 S wHer) f-affid wu
A gel I Ragd &) Gagr of 8 O I AR YA d agell dA o™ | e 7 faie
29072016 & U & GRT UASSNSCIAls DI I8 Gfad fhar b =re] e &1 & #§ wad gy sl
9 gEl I RAFd & BRUT HARAT BT {6y 7Y fda firae & 9l Ufhar 7% I6 dR o ©
3R I SHD HeT H 29.07.2016 DI BT FMUA IR 1 vy forad I a8 gfa far = g &
T8 Il ST 2016 A8 & I A Y& DI ST | gD AT — A1eF IA® 16.08.2016 BT {H
ERT UHSSNSCIATS &l I AT YA [T 1T |

g HHaRl & 29.07.2016 & Ml & I BRI AT & AR dGell Y Yo I AT |
fshar & faRIer & ST TP SRR HRD A fdeell Sead =ArTerd | el TQ o (e do
TSNS CIATs QM I UiIaTal a9/ 7 | THSaMsldrs + 39 AFel W % [GaR fhar 3R el o
fe=ie 17.03.2017 @1 fewoll gRT I el & b a8 39 d¥el § AFHN floedl Swa <RI 4 o
f&T 18.03.2016 & Sh 07T 1 U B | UHATSEIATS & el & meR R el 1 fais
21.03.2017 BT BT U9 SIRI fhar s I8 Seor@ foar a1 {6 gaemsw /et & wHarRa
ERT Bl ATAT NI &1 rar @l 75 AT BT agell 7 bl S AR gHG ATal Iod FHI R Ao
ANfARIRAT BT Ugel Il DI T8 IR B Y a9 I IR | wfariedl 7 Tegar f&i® 21.03.2017
S BT YT B BISIHUl Bl Fga Hb, Qe 23.03.2017 HI U= Fdg H AT foell I
RATA DI 59 0 &1 GaAAT <1 | A1 AIDBT DI 59 TR A 8 O W e fbar
AT 77 3R wfcrartedl @ I8 Fewr f&ar T fb 9 316 21.03.2017 & BRI S0 B deblad AR
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PN | el 7 TR BRATS B AR UG Fdg AHAl DI IGel dI T3 AT DI Aol @l |

9 d19, 39 AW B FRES SR Al ol Wiegd & Hriiad gRT 998 1 IR @ 18 — A9 2014
B T 99 & forg RUIE — &g TRAR (HAR 3R Ga1 WgaRa! &5) — 2015 & G&T 55 § o0fHe
T 41| 39 9HY I8 A 99G H AP oal 9Afd (GYs) @ U g

I A ool ST e @ hdd Bl WA R g THINECEs o SUY™ @ AR FEd
3R HeT oRkgT WIeTd Hraierd bl o fhar | 9@ a18, FRIFS iR Al ofal WRied SR ° A1
T & h¥el o Ui iR Ml & Ja1 Fodl & R & oy SRR & e &I ufd &1 1
$<B] h Bl | Sdid A R @ MU &1 9fd FRIFe iR Hel ol Wied drierd bl Jam
@ T o, IE gHa A mar {6 Ml & war Il & aReles @1 fem § I8 Al 3l TR
@ fIaREN 27| 39 UBR I8 W1, WHR I D & a1 9] & aRenes 7 84 & R 4T
Gl & faRe= & |

48. TS & IRFRET W w9 T el & wiaial o aRaeT i

A 9 A 99 2007—08 ¥ 2013—14 & & foly THeMSH! ¥ HfAFgafa W I8 9 el &
FHHATRAT BT GRATSHT, MR & [T § 211 T TUI B AR BT 1A oo | s9a ifaRaa, gaa
Hag H AT 9y 2014—15 & foTY ol@mell  44.84 TRI FY AR AT 99 2015—16 @ o7 45.80 ARA
ST B AR ya B WA B, S Fewe ded @) fIA® 22.12.2008 BT AT 601 d3F H D
BT AT ol W emenRa 2, siifes s & Arnfeeft Rrgrat & rgaR 781 2| Arteedt fRigral w
FFAGT o @ oy el §IRT 59 A9l 1 T3Sl / THggclals dl WRd fhadm a1 & | uRaATST1
AIcTEd R <1 S1 U @I deldl ardfad YIdE @ GHI B SR | SRGR ¥ ArTeel Rigidl & o 9R,
JTFAG o @I 31l Tchlen 2 g 39 At H onfl a% BIE wiedd Al Aol § sdfey fa<ig ad
2016—17 ¥ 2018—19 & IRM URATSHT Hicdted IR & Hag # P v 721 f&ar T 2| s9a
JfaRad, facia av 2018—19 H, fawiT 99 2014—15 B 44.84 I wUY AR A< a9 201516 2G
45.80 I WUAT & IRATSHT UICATE & Hae H Dlg UIGU el (b1 T |

49 TRTER ¥ MR W e ar Pl @ wHRal a1 T A &R weE R A

SN 7 fQ1d 01.07.2007 | 31.03.2014 TP Bl AT & IRIF T3NSl F AT W W& dTel Fandr
SHHAIRIN BT T8 [T wedl & dae H 17 g B0 AR URde il & Hae H 49 G Ul &
3MMfereR IR BT YA 5T © | SR gRT (32 AvSH B faH1d 17.05.2006 DT AT 4981 d3H
H I g1 SrgHIfad Adl |l & AR R g9 RIRT BT YA fBar a1 8 Sifd qRT AR &
ol & oI R TR € | Ml gRT THens I / UHSssCldars &l fId 11.11.2014 T |aT 1 qRemed
TG Yol T | SHG NI, 39 A | Wiedd HeT U 7 | dnfy, I 99 2018—19 & SRM, 34
Il & Hag H el 7 Feee ded & AgHIGT & JJAR RGN FRHTEel! BT U=l 2 |

50. STIQT eIl IRATSHT 3 STANT 7 1 T [y ) =7t

i ¥ 2011—12 G, HH= URATSTTRI & FoareT & forg TREDGT | | ure @l T [ 3l
IR BRI U & U H I A & dael “UTEdl | U AR IR A4 & 2 AR TGIAR
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RGBT G Bl TART 9 B TR [ R ®I8 = 781 fear Tar |

Q9T Aved o faATd 21.12.2011 &I AT 966 | AEci—e &9 & dbl § gad d9b @l |
SN &6l &R & AJAR FHI—FHI W M Ferddl yRATGTI6N H Suetel T 9 & Tl (g w®
IS &S IR BT ITOAT BRA 3R IAD! AqA] B 8 AR Y& HAT 8 | TE&IIR B
q TREGAT WA BT 6l IR 3 AGaid & & ddbl § gad 9@ @[l ¥ AN Al ol &)
DI IO PR IFDH! IO BT § STdfch MRETDdl WA gRT MGIRT e g 9@l & AR g
AT URATSHRN & TART 9 &1 T AN 0 R Uil arafdd <arst f3 &Y arg=il HRA1 8l |
TREIwdar faamTt 1 fa<fia av 2016—17 T@ Hag uRASHT § wfse fhy U & & WeR & g
IR g ¥ Mfmar RIS ol O 81 718 7 SR S9a @rdl &l fueM &) faar = g | graifa,
Bl ERT IRBR BT SIRST RATHART H 1o &1 o] ¥ BT B9 dR &b deel d 7d 3R
HET OGN WRIeTd Bt | U U7 U1 81 oI 2 | sl 7 39 IR R SR ueH o o oiR I8
il | = 3R A8l ofeT Wi dRifed & faaReE= g |

S 49, Fawe Hedl o faie 28.03.2017 BT SIS 301 10041 4 H, $H A W Y% AR
fBar & 3R ¥l &1 I8 Folte &1 b d WIeHd MER WR A FeRIal R TSl &l gl HY - |

TeaR, faxia a9 2018—19 4, Ml 7 &N R & IR TRAAD AMER TR SISy GRITSHIRA H
T 1ol fHebrell 7, o9 &re &) R Ml F el gui # dafey s o off &k faxiig ad 2018—19
H 3R @ SMUR W, 31.03.2018 TH &I @R & oy R I av 2018—19 & forg Hafera aRATSHT
@ IAF @ # A Ry Y gER e @t e 7

% o
afyy WP 37 STRTSY ART
RIS RASHY
31.03.2018 TH &I 3[AT & forg 1414.74 3351.27 4766.01
fo<ia a9 2018—19 @ forq 77.45 535.60 613.05
AT 1492.19 3886.87 5379.06

31.03.2018 TP BI AA & oY 3rgar Herdl wra uRaArsrre (e gaeys gRarer 1 enfid )
R SEAE 9 @ T8 [ W) ara @ R o, S s v 2018—19 @ fou (Y@ 99 777.72 G
S9, TH TaaH U gRISHT A e 2) 4766.01 ARG ©UY 3iR 613.05 G ©UY &, 4 & foIg &1
AT A HH B AT AT 7 |

51 Wi 999 AR

el TagaRT Ud 9y AR WRGR & A= #3rerdl / favmT /el don Jrsal /| e
g3l 9 9ga—4! g URIISHN SHRIFAT BT © | A [l FadEe (SgwaiR) 3 &3 11 graem=i
@ ATAR, Al BT 40 TR T 3fr@r S UHR B & T3 AH ART BT AR A & folw I
afEfad Sl 2, Safd 9gd & AFel § 9 U 9 3 AT < STSdIR Bl W B o Fa e Al
H T BT B9 J&l DI UGRAT / UfRATIA $H- & YT AR IAD! QI AT Ab BRI TS SIRT B
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BT | ¥l T B arreel H§ 1 T I WAl @ AR fAshdreii Bl YIdE SIRT BRAT BT | §9d
RUTHETY, 980 9 SR W, AR uida Irg A1 & facia fJaren @1 fewoh dwr 9 4 gwrian
T, fEH 31.3.2019 @1 R & SR 27287.68 g ¥U (Qd a¥ 29136.59 ARG ¥WI) B ATIR
It I IR e 7, 579 IR a6l g1 S a¥d ) @ ol Hag faWnT /e 9 FHI—89
W HRATE DI S © |

52. 5 9f #foTe, AT Ure, ool @ Hey # qataf qeawrd

el 7 BRI @ BN @ 918, 5 91 |, T U, el @ forg 39 TR ferfice @t oAl
P far o, fai ad 2016—17 & SRM Tl B B FH & T AT| 91, e grr faciia ad
2018—19 & IRM HAH UAARIRY forfics & sifam ywae f&Har 1 7| degaR, fawig av 2016—17
3R 2017—18 & ToIY 455.22 TRT TUY T I A 99 2018—19 H T Sfdac! & & =Tal b
AT & |

53. G BT T drell FIfad MIRRI— |iew &0 & forg wawm

PUAT BT ol AT & JFAR, WK AFI— AR & FGT H 5% DI & A W@€ fBar 11 2 S o
U B ARG 3 qul | AT S gl I g € | WIS JauNie § I8 Uiy AT § b duel &
Afewer Foll BT WaeE dRA & oy oA T8 Ay # B B

e gRT o aul @ WAl W SS9 BIiad & QU Y SMeards a2l Yivec! o — uer # iy
Y IUYTh D Bl & H Id 8Y, <l # b AR &1 7o fham T o S 9gell @l S
qreft rgwTfad wfeve IRRN & forv =i af 2018—19 @ forv oramRl & Uraum &== & Geer § FHel
N IR S RmIReT TR ¥l |

AT B RABIRYT & MR WRaell BT ST dTell SR wfewe IRl & g 3 fa<iia 99 2018—19
& forg Ml & i § FregaR aEgE A T e —

(et #)

rafyy e A | ufterd § wraemE | R # wraemE

10 991 31fd® 5,105.01 100 5,105.01
5 10 99 7,853.17 50 3,926.59
39 5 a9 3,432.76 25 858.00
3 9yl ddb 9,476.78 Nl g
T 25,867.72 9,889.60

54. IMYfeimatet & forg 1R 89 weRm

focig a9 2017—18 & foIU oRaT — UR¥ETT &R AHY, GIUSSl &1 o€l — TR ¥ I8 Urm a7 o fdh
"IAMYfTHAall BT 984.16 TR ®UA I AR 7 AT I a1e 31\ 3 auf | 1 a1 AT 51 3 &
31feres auf I qRET 89 & HRYT, 39 dae § Waee fHar S | aue 7 $Re & gRumRawy, o
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gReufral &1 e & AT § IR UIaei &1 B Ader dRe & BRI AT BT fE 3ffdher”
g AT 7|

QTS B d@—uier | AU T IuYth AdAih Bl & H ¥ gY, Ml H U FAfd &1 T
forar =, S & argfceaistl &I e fhy SM @ fofg srgwifad IRl & Heay ¥ by ST aret
gaeT R IR 331 &R IHDT  RIBIRE B B D! RABTRE B Fier Hfl iR ra RAwrRer
IR BT |

QAT &1 BRI & AR WR, TS aRIISTHT Bl BledR FueH fby S & fog srwfaa derm 31.
032019 @1 Rerfd & AR 3 I W 3Afdeh aul Tb I8 dTell IHRAT AT & foy fa<i 99 2018—19
& forq gl &1 & S dTell 171220 g w0 &1 JIREN & forg @rdl # graem fbar 1 & |

55. TTe] I IR—=Te], UREUfeadl T SAarsil BT aefiexor
ST R 2o & Aok qid SFATSITaE & AN & AR R A fJeron § aReudaal
3R QIS BT TS TAT IR—ATR & AT SIS B Jiaem ga™ ddl ¢ |

56. faTfAa wmIfTe e (HiTHemR) @ deg § g

T =1 27 faHaR, 2018 BI AT 108 df dI€ B dod & AR, MG FHIGTG fSTERT (CSR)
& Fg D Fag H AT 99 2018—19 (T4 99 198.00 1) & oIy @Il H 176.00 TRG BUYAT BT AT
fopar 2 |

57. SIS WAl URASHIG

IR HETIdT URASHIR & Hag H #oRal # Mfde Meed R w@l & o gaR, SuAl WY BH o
G WRIET B T8 W Ul gRATSHRN @ ofal Ui &R &l © | A1l a9 & oy, THASHed aRASHT @
Bleh, AUl SNIMEU URITSHRBI & Wid bl i@l GRIel fhar Sidr 2, R399 W) eRars ad 8 8 |

58. fore 20 — fSforea sfear vea o @ Fx & forg e s@sRemT o o’

9T Hed 7 feAid 28.03.2017 I JMAIRTT AUAT 100 df dod H 30 RIS R faar fhar iR
RO —1 & Y 9,900 AT BUY & el IR & oY e &A1 e sl gRT Tehal SrRiefy
H A g WE W YT @ AR

T gRATSTT # BIS IIoRa’ Mg &1 8RN, Fifh 39 TS & | Riel $a1 § dael A
IRATTT BT FIIR FH_AT wnfiet B | Ffh, uRASHT & 31 M &1 8l & &R Hufrat = a1 s
J T € 3R 9 & IS Feol § 2, ST Faell T o iR @ ot § @ & wU H 9¥ & IRM
I AT 5804.99 T wUY (T aF 2687.54 ARG HUA) Bl A0 < AR BT A & A1 fI7m 2 |

59. PR 3R AP B anfe & g vraem=

focira a9 2017—18 & foTU olRaT — TR AR T § U ST B olaT — TR | I8 9 7371 {6 faxi
Y 2007—08 H 2014—15 & Hag H B [T H THANT CISIVH /IR B HIRYT 2,281.03 ATRI
SR B AT T 7 | SuYH RN 3 | A1 fde aul | qRA 2, 39 HeY § BU g1 waH

% |



ST | BTelifh, IS WIde el fobar 7 81 g0 R BT Wiaqe= F & @ BRI dlef, TRAURTRAT BT
ST g3 € 3IR WG BT BH (el 811 b DRI 3T Pl b 3cher G © |

UIGEe] @1 e § Ay U IuYh Sfacidd Pl & W Ed gy, MEdl ¥ e 9Afd &7 Ted
B T S RIel fvu S & forg sRiIfId ) arfoRdl, et @R & a¥gen iR SRIvd W &R
AfdeT & Heg W IRRN & fou R av 2018—19 & @@l # by S dTel WTaE ® GHE 3R
RABIRRS &fl | |fffe o Rl & ER W fa<iia 99 2018—19 & fofv <l & wral § F=rgar
raeT fBar T @

(et #)
faor 31 ATE, 2019 BT
A 99
3R 1,646.55
fqml B/ de /ST 117.70
B faer w € 2.34
AT 1,766.59

60. STyaferT W

HUA B U 31—-03—2019 B RAMT & AR 3@ URAURET & §B Wafeld ds © | foxig a9
2017—18 & foy & @& @rdl & FHeT A TG, NUSE! Bl ol@l — URIeT Tef ° Ig U fh 31
A4 o Rt & R swraferd wel @ HeueRia g0 iR S & forg orgaifaa s 1o & dig 8m
qrel IR P Heel H 99 a4 § @ral H big Wrggr o1 fbar | gegar, Medl § ve Afafa @1 1o
far T, S 31.03.2019 @1 Refd & AR Heeid Hed 3R AFAG ! o & e ysraford
Hqal & ey ¥ o< 99 2018—19 @ fory Ml & wral # fhy &9 arel ‘raem=’ &1 S iR S9!
RwrRer S | | 7 RwiRer @ 2 5 31.03.2019 31 WA & AR avraford uRAUREAl @1 A7al
& HeUElId oI 3fid 49.80 ARG WUl BT AFANT [Ih qeg & wu # foar I iR iy, &
Tl § 9 99 & U IS UGU B B AaIGhdl -8l 2 |

61. gafafy A

HU 7 DHad FeAT R gob PI qaiafy & wI H A 2| A a9 A, DIS I A1 IF A8 88 © 3R
sufery, fewol Heem 50 3R 52 # <1 71 RUIE &l Bigdhs, IS gaiafy a7 a1 g 81 & | aifu, e
99 & Gl & G9g H M gRT UIVSEl d@—udiel BrIfed bl QU Y SYETdT & AR, 9l
IR—ferfed a7 onf¥res wu & fnfed I omeil /B Ml B THET & T3 © 3R S9P MR WX
30.06.2017 TH SIRY fhy T TH T h1 3MeT /BRI ST Bl IE AT AT © |

62. HU &I U A ATl AR AaRi &1 bl A Ioa U Bl 81 01 3 2018 A, HUAT 7 A
DI—31T TITI Tgfd BT STANT BB "IRAT T HFD 115 (TR oG A-h115) — TT8DI B
U WIAST W ISIE " UG BT U & S URITHT ARG AT 1 el 2018 T Reafdl & IJaR T 4

| 97



98 |

®I T3 ST IR AN Bl 81 AEJAR, Iod &I Jolied MR 3R dagwul didar aRkeufrr /
SARIRAT BT Ydeamdl ®U | FARISG el fhar a1 21 31 979, 2019 HI 9 g¢ 9§ & forg  faxi
R TR e Il IHGT Y9G T’ B ¢ |

63. I@ qY & 3PS $T TT® FHR0T
Sl F AT g9 & DRI Bl e B & o0 qd a9 & bl BT Y qHipRor fbar 2 |

AR 99 AR RUiE & rgaR YA SHRICTd Aex Afaie 55 B
P AYATA TS I freve Al @ fog iR S ok &
SECIRCICIGIN

Y TolThNoT AT 002405

80,/ — 80/ — 80,/ —
& A AT AR s Yool FAR
TR PECRE G 3TeeT
AT 9. 539439 SI3MTSUH: 07652553 SI3TSUH: 08176055
80/ — g0,/ —
<f. e gaR e e
CRBISIEE ESIRESEIREIN
THHIUE: 6468 g FG! AGHR
M : A9 faeel
faT® : 30—07—2019




AN AJ-TAN216 Bt Raid
Forae smARRew dce IfRior 39 & Tcel 39

RGN AEie 9Me faciy faarol o ae—ader w® Rard

Jrgargel R
I T ShHfeR Yex AfaRkist seRURfes (Bul) & IR o@ih- A faci faavo &
AG—uET B B, TAH 31 A1E 2019 B RAMT & AR a9 A ofdR Iqd! FAING db, Jold 7 3R
Mg 3R &7 @ran, gfaadt # uRads &1 fdavor iR A6hd] yare &1 fJaRor iR AR oEgidhd Ad
fl enfier 21

AR AR # 3R 8RR 98R GEAT & AR a1 AN RUI & SfEdl Wd f[daR & R SIHRT
H gt Al & H9T 99T DI BISHR, B QU T WAV & IR, Yaiadd fawid favor Hu
MfAfRM 2013 @IfAFEM) gRT SMUfEra amT Jorm ruferd dRi% | UG &_d @ dof 31.03.2019 &l Rerfd
@ IATAR HUAT B BRI HART & IR H &R I9 ANG DI FAT 9 & oy IAqD! g1+, it
URaHl TAT SHD! APal FdT8 IR & IR H AR H AT B9 I Wi @l Rigldl & JJwu Uh
el 3R IWYad fIaR ya™ &R & |

JEargYl faR a1 MR

1. ¥E¥d gRT i By MU SR a0 URASHT & Hae H 3fgar Asrdl ur< aRIIsH 1 &
Tl B oIl I TR T BRaATg el el § | JegdR, aY b oY Ul & R oIl JD
o faaxor @ gAaes aRATeRl & W IR okd— IR Wrdl @ AR W Haoferd fhar
TAT 2| U I R U YRS &l oRaT—uRIel a6’ & URUARa®Y, gRAURR /
SHEIRAT 3R/ AT M / & R TS el WG, Jfe BIs ®, BT udl a1 2| (fwoh 57 <)

2. HUA A 9E W@ Tordl §RT HTATIT BT ST AT WOl oi— et &r defid oy famr gd
Y (A< av 2017—18) & SR 01 SeTs, 2017 W SIARUl WD AMFCIIR DI BRI (BT |
Sfer fer # F9Ifad olell # HASINT 8 & RV IR odidh A-d [dwig faavon # gary
Y AR aRHFURTET / SARIRAT IR 3 /& R US dTell 9491, IfS Big 8, BT 39 T
gdT el T |

3. TR fIaR # aRAUdT §I5 3R SUFHR &1 Tdel FAId 6, fdsdr &1 2w IRl a1 gfte /
e &3, fasarl @ sri—fwres, §& TR &1 SR &= @1 Ui, ed! §RT 6 @
H S—TaE & SIRY A T ST AR T IR /37T AR T RN B agell HA & Hay
H HU H A NdRE AV 39S URATAT & AMHR 3R UPHfT & g 81 AT | @rgad
Ealeic)

4. IR I IR & Geg # 99 IRET (ool —18), Wit arg @R (fewefi—9) el & wra
DI T3 ARH IR (fTwoii—20) a1 <1 ARRN @7 wiftaat (fewoii—19), wferfar ST IR
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(fewqofi—17) IR UTEdT ¥ U< &1 T8 e Feral IRMT (fCwoii—20) & Hay § Ay ARmar ay
& g & Rl & o aR ugd 6 aReaomers e &3t iR/ 3ferar ura &1 T8 /a1
B S arell giiedl & garR B8R | VAl e & gRumHRasy aReuRml / <gdrei 3R/ serar
I /T R S dTel PIg I¥ME, X BIS &, P $9 GAI YT 81 © |

YTEHI A U B 73 1R AT, S 1,11,852.70 ART TUA HI AT B, B Fael § WRAT Rgih+
A faxii fqaror &1 fewol w=m 20 o= | Gafda d@msil o GHe R R 980 ¥ TEdH B
IR ¥ I§ YAl Fodl &, S8l W gY Bl FHIG $ AR 3 A 3Afdd auf & forg g el 2y
2 | YRT IRER & HATI] 3R Il &5 & SUPbHl I B ®UY A U BT T8 39 AH
PR &1 ®9 gRT Af=T S # <ot @ A= <R R 9y s ¥l § &fk aRudaar
Mprselt # a9 far mar g |

9 T B &I & gU F Dl | U 1 IRR & ey H U 9BR ST g8 MRl &1
ST el fhar T g 3R S Iafy o At § R fBar g uRe urEdl 9
faeT B deedl fHeee T 2l & YR R U U 1M <1197 3iR Re &) wee g1 aHe
fhd S @Y ST © | Ud U 1 IR & HdY | SUde &1 ST arell Gfaare, Sxdrdoil
IR fIaRol & IMTT H U fIaR0T SUae HRIA 59 & GRUITHERG®Y GRURRIE SImeil fResrerdr
IR & g H Ydadi] WRUTH & Heg H AHAT TR IS dlel YOl 9Id BT 39 FHI Ul el
=

fewoll S 44 < &7 6 Wagd YR & Hae ¥ 32,383.09 ORI FU AR AT Yob D
HaY ¥ 65,445.02 TRI BYY I 311 S §RT UK DI ITg AT B TN DR & Hael H {Ueell oikar
TSI & AR 99 & SR S 3N ST BT A Yoo 3R Wagd PRI & foy Su-t gRT v /
YT BT TS VIR & ey § 2 | YR @ A Hdied T § cfdd 819 dTlel "I Bl ST
# A gU IRANI ofdidd A O faavol R ges arel uRUMIA® 941a, afs ®Is 8, &1
S 99 UdT 8l ® 3R 98 "D © |

RIS T IR BRA FHI AT TT8D] g§RT AT DI WIHid IR IHH] Ugad dR- d dae,
eyl o Aifd (fewofi—2) (vi) <) & Hag H dI5h URgd dRd GHI A1 Bl bl IR I[oRg
D UEAM R B GaT H B (RN SR+ Jd) fHTden 2015 gRT ReiRa “umedt & o
AT I IO IR R ARG A@idT AFd 115 B HUT -1 U el fBa1 8 | AR
AGIHT AFD 115 & FeW H oG RN DI Ygar dRd & URUTHREGRT U Bl GleId 311,
B 3R IREURMT / 3Iamell IR UsH a1l S9Ud U9Td T 39 9T Udl 81 2 |

99 & forg Ul / Saamil iR / 31e@r 3/ &3 JIRMT iR eIl & dde H Iudh IRITH
(1) & (7) # defa 9l & 999 BT udr T8l B |

HU JRAFIH 2013 BT GRT 143 (10) & A M o@m AFST (TF Q) & AR &1 oIl
Wl BT | S AP B AT FARI RTRIRAT 31 89N RUIE & IRAR™ J@id A =i
feROT SIFHTT BT olRaT URIET BRA P T oRgT—uxier &1 for=rariRal # o 3R afofd far
2| B IRd & 9G] AIEThR AR §RT 9N fhy T ®Is & S1RIR dem o rfafem 2013
@ Wl ® I IR @i A A<l fqaron qem 99a sefl| Frdel & gaR 89




T Tt | el AT Serell @ TR Wdd HU © SR B I BIS 3fR g enaif
@ ATEAR AU 3G et RaIRal o qu7 fhar 7| g4 fawa 2 f& &R g1 o< fg g
G-I A& TR SUGH fIaR BT MR I R & forg vafa iR zenfad € |

Al R 9 T

1. ¥ & IRME, Fewe ded 7 fSiiea sfear uga &1 4fd a1 & forg [Ser sraazam &1 e
20 YR " BRI & oY g Ua a1, fael ot uReEd =R 1 & ol 9900 o ¥ &,
fSTA®) DU GRT U "Thal AREC” H A Yfd B SR | G B Il & IJAR, DU
DI DIS AN 91 el BT 3R GRoTd @1 78 deTodl IREUREN 7 a1 SHS! AU 81 3R 4
Ig ¥l & deol ¥ BT | TGJAR BUAT o 5804.99 TRI BUI (Td aY 2687.54 TRI SY) DI FYOT
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NOTICE
24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) that its
24th Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 26th September, 2019 at 12.00 Noon at
Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6,
CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, to carry out the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 371st March, 2019, the Income and
Expenditure Account of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Directors’ Report along-
with the Auditor’s Report and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon, and

2. ToFixthe Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2018-19 appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Anju Syal)
Company Secretary
Place: New-Delhi
Date: 12.09.2019
NOTE:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/
herself.

2. Asperrule 19(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a member of a company
registered under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956)
shall not be entitled to appoint any other person as his / her proxy unless such other person is also a
member of such company.

3. Thisform of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office
of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Anju Syal)
Company Secretary

Place: New-Delhi
Date: 12.09.2019
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NICSI-CS/24*" AGM/300

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the adjourned 24th Annual General Meeting of National Informatics Centre Services
Inc. (NICSD will be held on Monday, the 30th September, 2019 at 5.00 p.m. at Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6 CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New
Delhi-110003.

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Anju Syal)
Company Secretary
(Additional Charge)

To:

The Chairman, NICSI
All the Shareholders of NICSI
All the Members of the Board
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fourth Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2019.

The Summarized Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2019, as compared with the earlier year 2017-
18, is as under:

(1)  Financial Highlights

(Rupees in Crores)

S. No. Description 2018-19 2017-18
(A) |Receipts:
1 Sales 194.74 384.83
Services & Support 954.79 873.53
3 | Interest / Other Income 90.80 78.08
Total (A) 1240.33 1336.44
(B) |Payments:
1 Purchases *241.40 *395.71
2 Services & Support 852.53 767.20
3 Employees Remuneration and Benefits 10.92 8.29
4 Other Expenses **182.49 74.37
5 Depreciation 50.86 40.21
Total (B) 1338.20 1285.78
Gross Surplus (A) - (B) (-)97.87 50.66
Provision for Tax 12.64 19.62
Net Surplus (-) 85.23 31.04
Reserves and Surplus as per last year Balance Sheet 636.82 605.78
Less: Differential interest in GIA Projects/ Depreciation for (-)52.21 0.00
prior period.
Total Reserves and Surplus 499.38 636.82

* Includes Rs.26.88 crore in FY. 2017-18 & Rs.58.05 crore in FY.2018-19 towards augmentation of District
Infrastructure.

**Includes Rs. 95.88 crore towards provision for Doubtful Debts, Rs.17.12 crore towards provision for Advances
to Suppliers and Rs.1.18 crore towards provision for Sales Tax / VAT,

Note:

Expenditure on Data Centres at Bhubaneswar, Pune and Shastri Park are included in Fixed Assets under Assets.
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(1) Operating Margin

The Board of Directors in its 103rd meeting held on 29.09.2017 has approved the modification in the rates
of NICSI's Operating Margin (Earlier known as “Administrative Charges”) for all types of Projects / Services ie.
hardware/software/manpower etc. as under:

Project Value % of Project Value

Up to Rs. 50 Crore 7%
[While implementation of the project, if value of the project decreases or equivalent to Rs.
50 Crore, NICSI will charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 7% only]

Above Rs. 50 Crore 5%

[While implementation of the project, if value of the project increases Rs. 50 Crore, NICSI
will charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 5% only on the value in excess of
Rs. 50 Crore]

Above rates are effective with immediate effect. However, all existing MoUs/Agreements, Proforma Invoices (Pls)
issued up to 31.10.2017 would be honored as per existing slab rates of Operating Margin.

The Office Order No.129/05-06/NICSI-CS dated 01.11.2017 had superseded the NICSI Office Order No. 129/05-
06/NICSI-CS dated 15.01.2015.

(2) Dividend

The company is registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956, (Now Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013) and as per the provisions of the Section, the Company is prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

(3) Transfer to reserves

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

(4) Grading By DPE

(i) Process for Evaluation

° DPE issues Guidelines every year to the CPSE’s to enter into MoUs with Administrative Ministry (i.e.
Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY) in case of NICSD).

o DPE set up Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) on MoU consisting following:

1 Secretary, DPE Chairman

2 Secretary of concerned administrative Ministry / Department or his | Member
representative not below the rank of Joint Secretary.

3 Secretary, Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation or his | Member
representative not below the rank of Joint Secretary.

4 Additional Secretary, NITI Aayog or his representative not below the rank of | Member
Joint Secretary.

5 Secretary DPE may co-opt any officer who is a Finance Expert in case the need is felt.

6 Joint Secretary / Adviser (MoU), DPE would provide secretarial support to the committee.
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. Draft MoU, consisting of Financial and Non-Financial Parameters, is submitted by NICSI to its Board
for approval before forwarding through MeitY to DPE.

° IMC negotiates the Parameters and fix the targets in the MoU in the meetings, in which JS Level
Officer from MeitY/NIC and NICSI officials are present.

. MoU is signed between NICSI and MeitY.

. After closure of Financial Year, the Audited Accounts, duly approved by the Board, are submitted to
DPE along with the details in the prescribed proforma.

° Based on above, DPE evaluates actual performance of NICSI against targets in the MOU and declare

grading.
(i) Grading of NICSI by DPE
Financial Year Grading by DPE as per
MoU Composite Score based on Audited Data
2017-18 Fair
2016-17 Excellent
2015-16 Excellent
2014-15 Excellent
2013-14 Very Good
2012-13 Very Good
2011-12 Very Good
2010-11 Poor

(iii) Actual Performance on optional parameters against targets - MoU for F.Y. 2018-19

° Increase in number of Projects in difficult states like N/E, J & K, Uttarakhand, HP over previous years
(%age) (10 Marks) : =2 () 14.60%
(193 projects received in 2018-19, against 226 in 2017-18)

o Introduction of New products and Services (Nos.) (10 Marks): = 09

° % age increase in Number of e-Governance Projects from Central/ State/UT Governments/
Organizations over previous year (%) : (10 Marks): = (-)16.95%
(2395 projects received in 2018-19, against 2884 in 2017-18)

o Trade receivables (Net) as number of days of Revenue from Operations (Gross) (No. of Days) (10
Marks) : = 55.24

o Setting up of Centre of Excellence and its Certifications (Date) (10 Marks): - 28.09.2018
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(5)

(6

Ongoing Activities in F.Y.2018-19

National Knowledge Network (NKN Project)

Initiated in March, 2010, NKN Project is approved by the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology
(MeitY) for a period of 10 years at a cost of around Rs.5990 crore. NIC is the Implementing Agency for
this project, while NICSI is assisting in procurement and providing IT Support. The Project is to establish
high speed data communication network which would inter-connect institutions of higher learning and
research to enable creation, acquisition and establishing of knowledge resources amongst them. It would
also facilitate collaborative research, countrywide classrooms etc by commissioning links to the institutions
connectivity to NIC District Centres, setting up Centres in the States/UTs. During FY.2018-19, NICSI has
received Rs.320 crore from MeitY for this project, with total fund received till 31.03.2019 being Rs.3776.06
crore. The project is to close in March, 2020 as per the existing approval.

NICSI Data Centre (NDC) at Shastri Park, Delhi

NDC at Shastri Park, Delhi has been providing the services with disaster management facility to the
Government Departments and their Organizations with State-of-art tier-Ill facility. The activities continued
to function smoothly and successfully during the year. NICSI has upgraded some of the racks at the centre
with Cloud facility, on which the expenditure of Rs.33.47 crore incurred in FY.2018-19 and Rs.104.50 crore
incurred in previous 3 years, out of the total approved outlay of Rs.191.83 crore. The remaining expenditure
would be incurred in next year.

Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, Delhi

NICSI has its own Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar with 62 racks. It is providing services to various government
Ministries / Departments and their organizations in maintaining their data. A proposal has been under
consideration to upgrade these racks with Cloud facility.

National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar, Odisha

NIC is having Data Centre Bhubaneswar with 96 racks. NICSI has provided Cloud facility on 48 racks thereat
at a cost of Rs.97.76 crore, with Rs.44.62 crore incurred in FY.2018-19, Rs.6.18 crore in previous year and
the balance of Rs.46.96 crore to be incurred in future.

NICSI Development Centre

The Development Centre on the 2nd floor at DMRC'’s IT Park, Shastri Park, Delhi with 417 workstations
continued to provide services to the users towards implementation of the projects smoothly and
satisfactorily.

Other Projects

During F.Y. 2018-19, NICSI had received 2395 new projects for implementation, some of which are as under:
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Projects From MeitY

During the year, NICSI continued the activities under various projects from MeitY, as under:

Project Name

Aadhar Enabled Biometric Attendance System (AEBAS)

Development of Common Minimum Framework (CMF)

Security Enhancement of NICNET

Establishing Security Evaluation Research & Exploratory Testing Centre

Augmentation of facilities for Cyber Security Product Assurance

Website Quality Evaluation to support e- Governance Implementation in India

Web Internationalization, Standardization and W3C India Initiative.

Pro-Active Governance and Time Implementation (PRAGATI)

e-Mail Solution

Securing the e-Mail Infrastructure for Government of India

Roll-out and Promotion of Open Government Data Platform for NDSAP.

National e-Gov AppStore at National Data Centre.

e-Hospital under Digital India Programme Training.

e-Taal

(ID  Projects from Departments / Organizations (Other than MeitY)

Department / Organization NICSI Project Code Description

Department of Consumer Affairs C180380MPND Hiring of Manpower by Department of Consumer
Affairs

RajComp Info Services Ltd. S181195MPRJ Hiring of Manpower by RajComp Info Services Ltd.

eCourts MMP (Department of Justice) C182210GNND Procurement of Various items at eCourts MMP
(Department of Justice)

National Informatics Centre, Delhi N180292GNND Securing the e-Mail Infrastructure

Ministry of External Affairs, Delhi C182098SWND Procurement of S/W Items by Ministry of External
Affairs, Delhi

RajComp Info Services Ltd. S181113GNRJ Procurement of Various items by RajComp Info
Services Ltd.

Department of Food & Public C180649GNND Procurement of Various items by Department of Food

Distributions & Public Distributions

Guijarat State Civil Supplies Corporation | S181066GNGJ Procurement of Various Items by Guijarat State Civil
Supplies Corporation

Indian Qil Corporation Ltd Refineries HQ | P181744EPND GepNIC Application Support Charges for Indian Oil
Corporation Ltd Refineries HQ
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Panchayat Raj Division, Rural S180652GNJH Procurement of various items at Panchayati Raj

Development Department, Jharkhand Division, Rural Development Department, Jharkhand

Unique ID Authority of India, Delhi C181914MIND SMS Services at Unique ID Authority of India, Delhi

Energy Efficiency Services Limited, UP | P181285MPUP Hiring of Manpower by Energy Efficiency Services
Limited, UP

Department of School Education & C181416GNND Procurement of Various Items by Department of

Literacy, Delhi School Education & Literacy, Delhi

RajComp Info Services Ltd. S182381WDRJ Website Development at RajComp Info Services Ltd.

Directorate of Information Technology, | S182330WDMH Website Development at Directorate Of Information

Mumbai Technology, Mumbai

(7)  Setting-up of new Business Divisions in NICSI.

Products Business Division (PBD)

To explore market in South Asean, African, Latin American etc. countries for Applications / Products developed by NIC.
MEA consent to be obtained for each foreign project. Cost to be flexible as its development is met out of NIC Budget.

Central of Excellence for Data Analytics (CEDA)

Kick starting & fast tracking adoption of advanced analytic /machine learning capabilities by making it locus of expertise &
excellence in Data Analytics field. It would provide quality data analytic services to Government Departments at all levels
by identifying appropriate tools, technologies, deploying people with right expertise & help in solving complex policy
issues.

Cloud Services & Data Centre Business Division

NICSlisimplementing Cloud services from NDCs at Shastri Park, Pune & Bhubaneswar. Bhopal Center is also being created
in next 3 years. New division is set up to ensure more efficient & effective management of existing Cloud services & for
future.

(8) Highlights for F.Y.2018-19

April 2018 to April 2017 to
March 2019 March 2018
(a) Segment - wise-breakup 1. Hardware Items 35 126
of new projects received: > Software ltems 01 13
3. Manpower 1120 1547
4. Web/Soft Dev 66 119
5. Network 72 111
6. General Projects 492 545
7. Otheritems 609 423
Total 2395 2884




(b) Segment-wise number of April 2018 to April 2017 to
Work Orders issued: March 2019 March 2018
Hardware Items 19 1457
Software Items 164 132
Manpower 7357 8107
Network & Misc. 2664 1158
Total 10204 10854
(c) Proforma Invoice Issued No. of Pl Issued April 2018 to April 2017 to
March 2019 March 2018
Hardware 543 1002
Software 165 31
Manpower 5925 7299
Network 1056 703
Miscellaneous 3391 2035
Total 11080 11070
(d) Tenders Floated April 2018 to April 2017 to
March 2019 March 2018
No. of Open Tenders 19 12
No. of Limited Tenders 01 01
Total 20 13
(e) MoU’s/ Agreements April 2018 to April 2017 to
March 2019 March 2018
Entered into by NICSI with different 57 61
Departments/ Organisations

(9) Manpower

As per the manpower profile approved by the government through notification in the Gazette of India dated
03.03.1998, manpower in NICSI will be on temporary rotational deputation basis along with their posts from NIC.

The total staff strength in NICSI from NIC as on 31st March 2019 was 29.

(10) Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

(11) Corporate Social Responsibility

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) is a Section 8 Company (Erstwhile Section 25 Company). NICSI's
objective is to promote ICT Solutions and Technology and to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting
its objects and prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.
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The Board in its 99th Meeting held on 26th December, 2016 had constituted the CSR Committee, with the terms
of reference as per below:

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shallindicate the activities to be undertaken
by NICSI as per the Companies Act, 2013;

. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by
the company;

. To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

° Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or
as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the CSR Committee.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting shall be one-third of its total strength (any fraction contained in that
one third be rounded off as one) or two members, whichever is higher.

TheBoardinits 102nd Meeting held on 8th September, 2017 had re-constituted the CSR Committee. Subsequently,
the CSR Committee was again re-constituted by the Board in its 106th meeting held on 28.06.2018, comprising

the following:
Sr.No. Name & designation Designation
1 Shri Sanjay Kumar Rakesh, Joint Secretary, MeitY Chairman
2 Shri Nagesh Shastri, DDG, NIC Member
3 Shri D.C. Misra, DDG, NIC Member
4 Dr. (Mrs.) Ranjna Nagpal, DDG, NIC Member

As per the provisions in the CSR Policy, the Board, in its 109th meeting held on 27.03.2019, had approved in-
principle the expenditure of Rs.1.76 crore to be incurred on the CSR activities for FY.2018-19.

The CSR Committee, in its meeting held on 15.04.2019, had considered the proposals and recommended
to contribute Rs.1.76 crore through CSR to the Poor Patients Fund known as "ARPAN” (AIIMS Raipur Patients
Assistance for Needy) of AIIMS, Raipur established by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India
under Pradhan Mantri Swasthya Suraksha Yojna (PMMSY). The Board, in its 110th meeting held on 30.07.2019,
had considered the same and approved.

(12) Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an
organization’s brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting business
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with a firm commitment to values. At NICSI, it is imperative that our company affairs are managed in a fair and
transparent manner. This is vital to gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders.

Number of Board Meetings and General Meetings Convened in Financial Year 2018-19

Sr. No. F.Y.2018-19 Date Venue
1 Extraordinary General 14.06.2018 | National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex,
Meeting Lodhi Road, New Delhi —110003.
2 106" Board Meeting 28.06.2018 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003.
3 107" Board Meeting 26.09.2018 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.
4 23" Annual General Meeting | 26.09.2018 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.
5 108™ Board Meeting 27.12.2018 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
6 Adjourned 23™ Annual 27.12.2018 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
General Meeting Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003.
7 Extraordinary General 28.02.2019 | National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex,
Meeting Lodhi Road, New Delhi—110003.
8 109" Board Meeting 27.03.2019 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,

Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4™
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003.

(13) Audit Committee

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute an
Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. However, the Board of Directors in its 99th meeting held on 26th December,
2016, keeping in view of good governance practices, had constituted the Audit Committee in NICSI to review its
Financial and Audit matters and ensure that NICSI follows prescribed financial rules and regulations. The Company
Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.”

The Board, in its 103rd meeting held on 29th September, 2017, had re-constituted the Audit Committee with the
above Terms of Reference and also, towards strengthening the Internal Control System in NICSI.

Subsequently, the Board, in its 106th meeting held on 28.06.2018 and 109th meeting held on 27.03.2019,
had re-constituted the Audit Committee due to relieving of Chairperson or Member of the Committee owing to
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retirement on superannuation or repatriation to parent organization from time to time. The Audit Committee at
present comprises of the following:

Sr. No. Name & designation Designation
1 Smt. Kiran Soni Gupta, AS & FA

(Additional Charge), MeitY Chairperson
2 Shri Sanjay Kumar Rakesh,

Joint Secretary, MeitY Member
3 Shri Nagesh Shastri, DDG, NIC Member
4 Shri Vishnu Chandra, DDG, NIC Member

The 3rd meeting of Audit Committee was held on 18.09.2018, in which the Annual Accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2018 were considered and recommended for submission to the Board of Directors and the AGM.

The 4th meeting of the Audit Committee was held on 26.07.2019, in which the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31st March, 2019 were considered and recommended for submission to the Board of Directors and the
AGM.

(14) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

(15) Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters
provided under sub-section (3) of section 178

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under
Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(16) Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014. Form MGT 9 i.e. Extract of Annual Return is placed at Annexure.

(17) Material Changes and Commitments affecting financial position between the end of financial
year and date of the Board report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.
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(18) Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of business of the company.

(19) Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2018-19 as per Ind AS

Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2018-19 have been prepared as per Ind AS. In this regard, the Certificate
was received from M/s. S. Vaish, Chartered Accountants, 169, Golf Links, New Delhi-110003.

(20) The Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

The information on Conservation of Energy and Technological Absorption is NIL. Foreign Exchange earnings was
NIL and outgo of the company during the year was also NIL.

(21) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments.

(22) Related Party Transactions

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 in the
form AOC-2 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil

(23) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

(24) Subsidiary Company
As on March 31, 2019, the Company does not have any subsidiary.

(25) Auditors

M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0O604), Chartered Accountants, I-79, 7th Floor, Himalaya House, 23, KG.Marg, New
Delhi-110001 were appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory Auditors of the
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Company u/s 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, to audit the accounts of NICSI for the year ended 31st March
2019.

(26) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
company hereby state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)  the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

o) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irreqularities;

d)  the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e)  theDirectors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(27) Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its gratitude to acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and guidance extended to
the Company by Central and State Government Ministries/Departments / Organizations and PSUs etc. including
NIC and MeitY. The Directors are also grateful to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and Auditors for their
cooperation. The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the members, bankers and clients for their continued
support. The Board also wholeheartedly acknowledges with thanks the dedicated efforts of all the staff and
employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September, 2019
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

U74899DL1995NPLO72045

ii)

Registration Date

29.08.1995

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

il | Name of the Company National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated

iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Private Limited Section 25 (Now Section 8 Company)
Company under National Informatics Centre, Department
of Electronics and Information Technology, Ministry
of Communications and Information Technology,
Government of India.

v) | Address of the Registered office and contact | Hall No. 2 & 3, 6™ Floor, NBCC Tower, 15, Bhikaji Cama

details Place, New Delhi-110066

Tel:91-11-26105054, 26105193

vi) | Whether listed company Yes / No No

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of Nil

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sr.No. | Name and Description of main products | NIC Code of the Product/Service | % to total turnover of
/ services the company

1 ICT Solutions — Hardware and Software | - 16.94

2 | Manpower, Network and Others | - 83.06
lll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.No. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares Applicable

ADDRESS OF SUBSUDUARY/ held Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATES
NIL
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Iv.

(i)  Category-wise Share Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the

beginning of the year

the year

No. of Shares held at the end of

Demat

Physical | Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (1)
(2) Foreign

a) NRlIs -Individuals
b) Other Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (2)
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+A)(2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

200000 | 200000

NIL NIL

200000 | 200000

100

NIL

100

NIL

NIL

NIL

200000

NIL

200000

200000

NIL

200000

100

NIL

100

NIL

NIL

NIL

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flis

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable




2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding

nominal share
capital in

excess of Rs 1 lakh
¢) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(2)

Not Applicable

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)>=B)(1+(B)(2)

Not Applicable

C. Shares held by
Custodian for

Not Applicable

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total NIL | 200000 | 200000 100 NIL | 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the year
No. Name of the year
No. of % % No. of % % %
Shares of total of Shares Shares of total of Shares Change in share
Shares Pledged / Shares Pledged / holding during
of the encumbered of the encumbered the year
company | to total shares company | to total shares
1 | President of India | 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL
through NIC
Total | 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

SL. Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. the year the year
1 No. of shares | % of total shares of | No.of shares | % of total shares
the company of the company
2 At the beginning of the year
3 Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters  Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase No Change
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
4 At the End of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs):
SL. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. of the year the year
At the beginning of the year No. of shares % of total No. of shares | % of total shares
shares of the of the company
company
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / .
bonus / sweat equity etc): Not Applicable
At the End of the year ( or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. Shareholding at the Beginning of Cumulative Shareholding
No. the year during the Year
For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares | % of total shares No. of % of total shares of
of the company shares the company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for NIL
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of ASQ
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

® Addition

® Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Not Applicable




VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

Shri Manoj Kumar Mishra Rs. 38.61 Lakh p.a.
(01.04.2018 t0 31.03.2019)

Gross salary

(@) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-Tax Act, 1961

NICSI is promoted by Government of India through National Informatics
Centre (NIC), as a Private Limited Section 25 Company (Now Section 8
Company). As per Article 59() of the Articles of Association of the company,
the Managing Director shall be appointed by the Director General, NIC on
behalf of the President of India by deputing suitable officer of NIC.

The Managerial Remuneration for Financial Year 2018-19 to the Managing
Director (01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019) of the Company was Rs.38.61 Lakh (PY.
Rs.34.47 Lakh) only.

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

Not Applicable

Remuneration to other directors

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount

1. Independent Directors

® Fee for attending board / committee
meetings

® Commission

® Others, please specify

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

e fee for attending board / committee
Meetings

® Commission

® QOthers, please specify

Not Applicable

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEQO Company Secretary CFO Total
1 Gross salary The Remuneration for | Not Applicable | Rs. 10,07,574/-
(a) Salary as per provisions Financial Year 2018-19 to
contained in section 17(1) of Company Secretary of the
the Income-tax Act, 1961 Company is Rs.10,07,574/- (Py
(b) Value of perquisites u/s Rs.9,17,000/-)
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
() Profitsin lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income tax
Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit Not Applicable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please
specify
Total | Rs.10,07,574/-
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description Penalty / [RD/ if any
Act Punishment/ NCLT/ (give Details)
Compounding COURT]
fees imposed
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL

Compounding

Place: New Delhi

Date: 26th September, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

sd/-
Chairman




National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI)
Addendum to the Directors Report for Financial Year 2018-19
Replies to the Observations of the Statutory Auditors Report

from M/s. Agarwal & Saxena, Chartered Accountants
on the Accounts of NICSI for F.Y.2018-19

AUDIT OBSERVATION NICSI REPLY

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre Services INC. ("the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019, and Income and Expenditure account, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2019 and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

1. Asinformed by the management the audit of the
accounts of the grants in aid project with respect
to NKN Project is still in process. Accordingly, the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year have been compiled based on such unaudited
accounts of NKN Projects. Impact, if any, on the
assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure
consequent to the audit of such grants in aid
projects is presently not ascertainable. (Refer to
Note. 57)

The audit of all the Grants in Aid Projects for FY.2018-
19is complete and certificates received from the Audit
firm, except for NKN Project. However, it is in process
and would be completed shortly.

2. The Company implemented the ERP accounting
software wef July 01, 2017 during the previous
year without being validated by a Systems Audit
carried out by an external independent agency.
Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ or
income/ expenditure as disclosed in the Ind AS
Financial Statements on account of possible
system weakness in the data integrity is presently
not ascertainable.

NICSIhad given a Work Order to M/s. Rolta India Limited
on 22.03.2013 to procure, customize, implement and
maintain the Oracle e-Biz ERP application on the
certified framework. While customizing the same,
the firm had migrated Trial Balance as on 31.03.2016
from Tally to ERP and did parallel run both in the Tally
Package and ERP upto 30.06.2017.

As the above had functioned satisfactorily to the
maximum extent, NICSI had completely disbanded the
working of Accounts in Tally package from 01.07.2017
and the Accounts for FY.2017-18 had been prepared
in the ERP. FY.2017-18 having been the first year of
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completely working in the ERP, some shortcomings
had been noticed, which were subsequently got
rectified. Any deficiency being noticed therein is
immediately getting rectified by an internal team in
NICSI as per the ERP modules.

. In our opinion, the internal controls existing in

the Company with respect to physical verification
of Property Plant & Equipment, reconciliation/
confirmation of vendor balances, process
of releasing the Vendors Performance Bank
Guarantees, direct deposits by clients into the
bank account through e-payment/ otherwise
and recovery of dues should be commensurate
with the size and nature of its operations. (Refer to
Annexure "A”)

The existing internal control systems towards Fixed
Assets, Vendor Balances Confirmations, Performance
Bank Guarantees, Un-identified Funds and Recovery
of Outstanding Debtors are in existence. However, as
per the observation of Audit, these activities would be
more strengthened for future.

. Balances relating to Trade Payables (Note 18),

Trade Receivables (Note 9), Advances received
from customers (Note 20), Earnest Money Deposits
receipts(Note 19), Security deposits(Note 17)
and Grants-in-aid received from customers(Note
20) are subject to the confirmations having been
obtained/ received and/ or the consequential
reconciliation being drawn up as at the year
end. Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/
or income/ expenditure consequent to such
confirmation and reconciliation is presently not
ascertainable.

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issued
towards the balances as on 31.03.2019. It is regular
features that such letters areissued to the Departments
/ Organisations etc. but very negligible response is
received against the same.

. Reference is invited to Note No. 20 of the Ind

AS financial statement with respect to the
Advances received from customers amounting
to Rs. 1,11,852.70 lakhs. Review of individual
accounts reveal numerous customers wherein
the balances have remained outstanding for more
than 3 year as at the year end. These advances
received mostly from Public Sector Undertakings
(PSUs) and Government of India Ministries have
been invested by the Company in Fixed deposits
with various banks at varied rates of interest and
maturity profiles.

NICSI receives thousands of new Purchase Orders from
the various Government Departments / Organisations
/ Public Sector Enterprises. After completion of the
activities against those orders, NICSI prepares the Final
Settlement of Accounts statement and send the same
tothe concerned user, to reimburse the amount against
the excess expenditure or to intimate the Bank details
for refund of the unspent balances therein. While some
of the users provide the Bank details, in many cases
these are not received and thus, the unspent amounts
remain with NICSI. However, as per Audit Observation,
NICSI would take further efforts on priority to review
such cases and to refund the unspent amounts to the
users at the earliest.
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In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect
to the Advance from Customers have remained
unutilised and invested in Fixed Deposits, the
management needs to review each such Advance
and return the same based on the corresponding
terms and conditions of the contract with each of
the customer. In the absence of the documents,
contracts and details being available in respect of
each such Advance, the overall impact of matters
referred to in the preceding paras on the assets/
liabilities and/ orincome/ expenditure consequent
to such details being available is presently not
ascertainable.

6. Reference is invited to note no. 44 regarding the
Company having provided/ paid for the Licence
Fee and Spectrum charges to DOT during the year
as per the past accounting practice with respect
to calculation of the demand raised by DOT of
Rs. 65,445.02 lakhs towards License Fee and Rs.
32,383.09 lakhs towards Spectrum Charges. In
view of the matter being pending in the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India the consequential impact,
if any, on the Ind AS financial statement is presently
not ascertainable and quantifiable.

MeitY has been taking-up the matter with the
Department of Telecommunications (DoT) from time
to time on behalf of NICSI. However, the matter is still
sub-judice in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. As
per interim decision in the matter, the charges are to
be paid as per the provisions in the Agreements / initial
approvals by the DoT. NICSI had however, surrendered
the Licence to the DoT on 31.03.2017, with no activity
having been performed thereafter against the same
and the Licence Fee and Spectrum Charges upto
31.03.2017having been paid as per DoT approvals.

7. The Company has not complied with Ind AS 115
on “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
prescribed by the Companies (India Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 with respect to erroneously
recognising revenue on Sales of goods at the time
of generating the invoice in terms of the Significant
Accounting Policy (Refer to Note 2 (vii)) instead
of recognising the same at the time of transfer
of “control” i.e. on acceptance of goods by the
customer. Impact of the same on the reported
income, loss and assets/ liabilities of the Company
consequent to recognising revenue in terms of Ind
AS 115 is presently not ascertainable.

As per NICSI Policy, it has been recognising its revenue
at the time of generation of Invoice towards Sale of
Goods. The company has duly complied with all the
provisions and requirements of applicable Ind AS,
while preparing the financials for FY.2018-19 and
as per matching concept described by Ind AS 18 on
Revenue recognition.

The impact of matters referred to in the above paragraphs (1) to (7) on the assets/liabilities and/or income/

expenditure and loss for the year is not ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
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India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

1. The Board of Directors during the | NICSI had been set-up in 1995 as a Section 25 Company (now

year approved the "District 2.0
Augmentation of District Infrastructure
to cater to Digital India Initiative” at
a total outlay of Rs.9900 Lakhs for
Phase-l to be met by the Company
out of its “Cash Reserves”. In terms of
the approval, no income is to accrue to
the Company and the corresponding
assets created are neither owned
nor in possession of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has
expensed the entire expenditure of Rs.
5804.99 Lakhs (PY Rs. 2687.54 Lakhs)
with a resultant impact on the loss
reported in the Income & Expenditure
Account for the year. (Refer to Note
58)

Section 8) under National Informatics Centre (NIC), with main
objective being promoting utilisation of information technology
in the Government Sector. In the year 2016, MeitY / NIC had
reviewed the status of surplus funds with NICSI to be used
for its objectives. A Committee was constituted for the same
consisting of representative from Meity / NIC. The Committee,
amongst others had recommended “Augmentation of District
Infrastructure to Cater to Digital India Initiative” as District 2.0
project in January, 2017 for upgrading 708 NIC District Centres
across Indiain 3 years period at the Estimated Cost 0of Rs.296.78
crore bifurcated in 3 Phases i.e. Rs.99 crore per annum. NICSI
Board of Directors, in its 100" meeting held on 28.03.2017,
had considered and approved Phase-I only of the District 2.0
project at Rs.99 crore without any return on investment. NICSI
has made expenditure accordingly.

. Reference is invited to note no. 45

of the Ind-AS financial statement on
Revenue from operation relating to
income having been recognized @ 1%
of the expenditure incurred on NKN
Project as administrative charges. The
same is subject to the corresponding
approval from the Ministry of
Electronics & Information Technology
(‘MeitY’) which is still awaited.

NKN High Level Committee, in its 11™ meeting held on
19.07.2011, had agreed in principle for NICSI Administrative
Charges @1% in the project, with the view that NIC to send a
proposal in this regard to be examined by IFD, MeitY within the
overall approvals by the CCl. NIC had sent the proposal to IFD,
MeitY for examination and concurrence. However, there had
been some observations from the IFD, MeitY, which are under
consideration. NICSI Board of Directors, in its 69" meeting
held on 24.09.2010, had also approved charging of 1% in the
project and NICSI has been taking the same accordingly, since
FY.2010-11 itself.
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3. Reference is invited to note no. 46

whereby on account of the direction
of the Ministry of Electronics &
Information Technology, Department
of Information Technology during the
year, the Company’s Operating Margin
with effect from FY 2018-19 was co-
related and approved at 7% of the O&M
expenditure and up-gradation cost of
the basic / ICT infrastructure. This has
resulted in a substantial decrease in
the operating margin accruing to the
Company during the year with respect
to the Shastri Park and Bhubaneswar
National Data Centre with a resultant
impact on the loss reported in the
Income & Expenditure Account for the
year.

The matter had been considered by NICSI Board of Directors, in
its 108" meeting held on 27.12.2018. The Board after detailed
deliberations had approved as under:

» NICSI may create a separate project pool account for
NDCSP, Delhi and NDC, Bhubaneswar, Odisha;

» Income generated through Data Centre collocation
services at NDC, SP, Delhi and NDC, Bhubaneswar, Odisha,
shall be pooled under the proposed project head(s);

» This income shall be used for meeting the O&M
expenditure and upgradation of both the National Data
Centres basic infrastructure;

» Inaddition to existing 60 racks being used for co-location
service at NDCSP by NICSI, NIC may add more racks to
generate enough funds to meet the O & M expenses
for years to come and also for upgrading of the basic
infrastructure.

»  NICSIwould not incur Rs. 8 Crore per annum towards O &
M expenditure of NDCSP from FY 2018-19 onwards. The
revenue generated per annum through said 60 Racks
and more racks to be added by NIC, would be utilized
for meeting the O & M expenditure and upgradation of
respective National Data Centres basic infrastructure.

» NICSI as per their norms would charge @7% Operating
Margin and Taxes as applicable from FY 2018-19
onwards on the above mentioned O & M expenditure and
expenditure to be incurred on upgradation of respective
National Data Centres basic and / or ICT infrastructure.

NICSI has been charging its Operating Margin plus applicable
taxes thereon accordingly since 01.04.2018 as per the said
approved process by the Board.

. We draw attention to the note no. 50

of the Ind-AS financial statements
whereby, the management has
computed the interest on unutilized
funds of the Grant-in-Aid projects
(including NKN Project) for the period
upto March 31, 2018 to the tune of
Rs.4766.01 lakh and reduced the said
amounts from the opening reserves
and surplus.

There had been audit observations and also, the Draft Audit
Para (DAP) from the P&T Audit Office continuously for the last
3-4 years on less refund of interest in grants in aid projects.
The differential interest had been worked out by the P&T Audit
Office at Rs.5281 lakh since inception of NICSI till 31.03.2018.
The matter had been considered by the Board of Directors, in
its 109™ meeting held on 27.03.2019 and NICSI was advised
to re-calculate the same and refund. Accordingly, NICSI has
re-calculated the figures, based on which the differential
interest works out to Rs.4766.01 lakh and the same has been
provided in the Accounts . Refund of the same to the grantor
departments is in process.
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5. We draw attention to the note No. 40 | NICSI has been following-up with the National Building
of the Ind-AS Financial Statements | Construction Corporation (NBCC) to get the Sale Deed
whereby the conveyance/ title deed | registered for Hall Nos. 2 & 3 at the 6™ floor of NBCC Tower,
in respect of the building at Bhikaji | Bhikaji Cama Place, Bew Delhi purchased by NICSI in the years
Cama place, New Delhi amounting | 2003 and 2000 respectively. The matter is still pending with
to Rs. 931.50 lakhs is pending for | NBCC.
registration as at the year end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters reported in paragraphs (1) to (5) above.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s Report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon). The Directors
Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation

e Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have not been commented upon since the said order is not applicable to the Company in view
of the exemption available to a company licensed to operate under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

)

d

e)

f)

a

h)

3.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account:

Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above , in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification
No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our
report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being
a Government company, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Government company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. ~ The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements (Refer Note no. 22 to the Ind AS financial statements);

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Reporton
the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics
Centre Services Inc. for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Referred to in paragraph under “"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” Section of our Report of even date)

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Informatics Centre Services
Inc. ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ("Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, we have qualified our audit
opinion on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 in respect of the following matters
wherein the existing internal controls need to be strengthened:

Audit Observations

NICSI Reply

Reconciliation/confirmation of vendor balances as
the same could potentially result in material mis-
statement of the outstanding balances;

The audit observation has been noted and the
letters to the vendors to reconcile / confirm the
balances would be sent in future.

Release of the Performance Bank Guarantees of
the vendors as it could potentially result in non-
recovery of damages from defaulting vendors;

The audit observation has been noted and the
status towards outstanding Performance Bank
Guarantees (PBGs) would be reviewed. Based
on the same, the amounts against the PBGs, for
which the empanelment periodicity is over, would
be refunded / released.

Accounting of the amounts directly deposited /
electronically transferred in the bank account of
the Company by the clients/departments to avoid
possible inefficient utilization of the available funds;

The user departments/organisations transfer the
funds to NICSI through electronic mode. While
most of such receipts are linked to the Purchase
Orders, some of them remain un-identified
despite various efforts. The audit observation has
been noted and more efforts would be put-in in
future to reconcile such amounts.

Recovery and follow up of the dues from clients
and advance to vendors as this could possibly result
in a material misstatement of the outstanding dues
from the Clients and Advance to Vendors; and

The audit observation has been noted and more
efforts would be made in future to pursue with
the clients and the vendors towards recovery or
settlement of such amounts.

Physical verification of Property Plant & Equipment
which could materially impact the accounting,
classification and disclosure of the aforesaid.

Physical verification of all the fixed assets is being
carried out every year by the management.
However, more care would be taken in future
towards accounting, classification and disclosure
of the same.

144 |




A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual Ind
AS financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31,2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31,2019 Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.
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Annexure ‘B’to the independent auditor’s report on the

Ind as financial statements of National Informatics Centre

1.

Services Inc. for the year ended March 31,2019

Report on Directions issued by the comptroller and auditor general of India
under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has an accounting system in place to process all the accounting transactions through an
ERP accounting software which was implemented during the previous year we.f. July 01, 2017. However,
the ERP software was implemented during the previous year without being validated by a Systems Audit
by an external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure as
disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements on account of possible system weakness in the data integrity
is presently not ascertainable.

Further more Fixed Assets accounting with respect to addition/deletion/depreciation is currently being
done manually and thereafter uploaded into the ERP system as no automation module is available in the
ERP. Itis advisable that the said process is also automated at the earliest to avoid possible errors on account
of manual intervention.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/
loans/interests etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Not applicable as the company did not have any outstanding loan during the year 2018-19. Accordingly,
there was no case of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by any lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

During the year 2018-19 no funds were either received or receivable by the company from any Central/
State agencies. Hence the question of their proper accounting and utilization does not arise.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.07.2019
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No.

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Financial assets:

(a) Loans

(b) Others Financial Assets
Deffered Tax Assets ( Net )
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Financial assets:

(a) Trade receivables

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Bank balances other than '(b)' above

(d) Others Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity

Note
No

o N O w

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

Zin lakhs

As at As at
31-03-2019 31-03-2018
5,405.80 5,741.46
7,065.06 3,693.68
72842 686.16
325.06 322.62

3,516.83

1,650.48 2,539.99
17,398.08 28,835.15
62,678.42 40,298.20
87,350.17 114,724.37
4.612.61 3,923.41
14,034.31 11,164.64
23,947.46 2794712
228,712.70 239,876.81
200.00 200.00
49,937.83 63,682.41
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SL.  Particulars
No.

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(a) Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:

(a) Trade payables

(b) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies

Note
No

18
19
20
21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/-

Akshay Sethi

Partner

Membership N0.539439
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019

X in lakhs

As at As at
31-03-2019 31-03-2018

4045 4045
145.62

3493217 47,192.00

1,466.94 132117
142,060.79 127,220.64
74.52 74.52

228,712.70  239,876.81

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Mishra

Managing Director
DIN: 07652553

Sd/-

Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary

FCS: 6468

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar
Chairman
DIN:08176055

Sd/-
Deepak Saxena
FA&CA
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SL
No.

Vi

Vi

VIl

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045
Statement of Income and Expenditure for the period ended 31.03.2019

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Il Total Income (I+)

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Services Support Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses (IV)
Income/(loss) before tax (llI-1V)
Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Tax for Earlier Years adjusted/(Written back)

Note
No.

22

23

24

25

26

Income/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (V-VI)

Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended
31-03-2019

114,952.84
9,080.50

124,033.33

24,139.51
85,252.84
1,092.63
5,086.44
18,248.79
133,820.21
(9,786.87)
(1,263.53)
752.37
(3,662.45)
1,646.55

(8,523.35)

Zin lakhs

Year ended
31-03-2018

125,836.36
7,806.36

133,642.72

39,571.03
76,779.95
828.84
4,020.75
7,377.05
128,577.62
5,065.10
1,960.83
2,268.01
(361.69)
54.51

3,104.27
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T in lakhs

SL.  Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. No. 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
IX  Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising (8,523.35) 3,104.27
Income/ (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
X Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs.100):
(1) Basic 27 (4,261.67) 1,552.13
(2) Diluted 27 (4,261.67) 1,552.13
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/-

Akshay Sethi

Partner

Membership N0.539439
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Mishra
Managing Director
DIN: 07652553

Sd/-

Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary

FCS: 6468

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar
Chairman

DIN:08176055

Sd/-

Deepak Saxena

FA&CA




National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2019

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax and extraordinary items
Adjustments for:

Depreciation on fixed assets

Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets

Interest expense

Interest income

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provision against Advances

Provision against Sales Tax & TDS & WCT

Operating Surplus /(Deficit) before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable & other liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

Income tax Paid

Income tax for Previous Years

Interest of Earlier Year related to GIA Project

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating activities (A)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of fixed assets

Interest received

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities (B)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

T in lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

(9,786.87) 5,065.10
5,086.44 4,020.75
(1.49) 3.06
543404 77772
(9,094.45) (8,285.61)
9,588.17
1,712.20 -
120.04
3,058.08 1,581.02
1,848.91 (705.02)
(546.65) (5,940.70)
2,7126.08 19,786.19
7,086.42 14,721.49
(752.37) (2,268.01)
(1,646.55) (54.51)
(4,766.01)
(78.51) 12,398.97
(8,582.47) (5,728.25)
6.59 1.10
9,094.45 8,285.61
518.57 2,558.46
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Interest paid (5,434.04) (777.72)

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities (C) (5,434.04) (777.72)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (4,993.98) 14,179.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 155,314.18 141,134.48
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year 150,320.19 155,314.18
Notes

1) Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year consist of Cash and Balances with Banks. The detail of
these is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2019 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks 28,395.00 13,294.98
Imprest Account 0.50 0.07
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposits 121,924.69 142,019.13
150,320.19 155,314.18
As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Akshay Sethi Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.539439 DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829

Sd/- Sd/-

Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
A. Equity share capital for issued, subscribed and paid up equity share of Re. 100/- each

Particulars

Asat 1 April 2017
Changes during the year
As at March 31 2018
Changes during the year
As at March 31 2019

B. Other equity (Refer note 16)

As at 1 April 2017

Net income / (loss) for the year
As at March 31 2018

Effece of Prior Period Error

Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings

Interest related to GIA Project other than NKN (Refer Note No. 50)
Interest related to GIA Project NKN (Refer Note No. 50)
Depreciation for earlier years (Refer Note No. 52)

As at March 31 2018 Restated
Net income / (loss) for the year
As at March 312019

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/-

Akshay Sethi

Partner

Membership N0.539439
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019

Tin lakhs
Note Amount
15 200.00
15 200.00
15 200.00
Tin lakhs
Total other
equity
60,578.14 60,578.14
3,104.27 3,104.27
63,682.41 63,682.41
(3,351.27)
(1,414.74)
(455.22) -
58,461.18 63,682.41
(8,523.35) (8,523.35)
49,937.83 55,159.06

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Manoj Kumar Mishra
Managing Director
DIN: 07652553

Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary
FCS: 6468

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar
Chairman
DIN:08176055

Sd/-
Deepak Saxena
FA&CA
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Corporate Information

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (The Corporation’) was incorporated on August 29, 1995 under
Section-25 of the Companies Act, 1956 (Now section 8 of Companies Act, 2013) under National Informatics
Centre (NIC), Ministry of Communications & Information Technology, Government of India. The Corporation is
engaged to provide total IT Solutions to the Government Ministries/Departments/Organizations.

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
dated July 30, 2019.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

i. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting
standards(herein after refer to 'Ind AS") as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

° Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments).

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest to lakhs rupees as per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated. Rounding of
errors has been ignored.

ii. Current Vs Non-Current Classification of Assets & Liabilities:

An Asset is treated as Current when it is;

° Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
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Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

Cash or Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A Liability is treated as Current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets & Liabilities.

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realization in cash
& cash equivalents. The Corporation has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation

(a)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind-AS, the
company had elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP
carrying value (deemed cost)

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discount and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent cost is included in
the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the company. When significant
parts of plant and machinery are required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them
separately based on their useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment are replacement if the recognition
criteria is satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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(b) Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful live)

Depreciation on the items of PPE has been provided on the Written Down Value Method & at the
rates as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporation has determined the
useful life of all the items of PPE in alignment with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

(c) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset
is derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

The intangible assets have been initially measured at costs. The intangibles assets have been subsequently
measured at costs less accumulated amortization & accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of the
intangible assets may be finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives have been amortized over their
useful economic life as per the Written Down Value Method. The amortization period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognized in the statement of Income and Expenditure unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

As per companies act, costs relating to computer software and server are capitalized and amortized on
straight line method over their estimated useful economic life of three years and six years respectively.
Costs relating to ERP software are capitalized and amortized on straight line method over its estimated
useful economic life of ten years.

Financial instruments

a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through income or loss are added
to the fair value on initial recognition. After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debtinstruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS103 (Business Combinations) applies are classified as at FVTPL. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OClI
to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The respective company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed
the obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement And

Either the Company:
(@  has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b)  has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have
transferred control of the asset.
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Vi.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the continuing involvement of Company. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balances.

The company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Vii.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets
and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies of the
Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related
disclosures are given in the relevant notes as following:

. Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: -

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/service

Revenueisrecognized to the extent thatitis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation
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&the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, taking into account the contractually defined terms of payment & excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/stock & sale items is recognized at the time of generation of invoice
or at the time when controls of the goods have passed to the buyers, usually on delivery of the goods and
proof of delivery. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns & allowances, trade discounts & volume rebates.

Revenue in respect of sale of service is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when
service completed to the buyers, usually on proof of service. Revenue from the sale of service is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Corporation recognizes operating margin at the slab rates prescribed from time to time depending
upon the project costs. Usually the operating margin rates are inversely proportionate to the project costs
i.e. higher the project costs, lower the operating margin rate. Any subsequent decrease in operating margin
rate on account of an increase in project costs is accounted for by issuing corresponding credit notes at
the yearend or at the time of project closing. The Credit Notes so issued are netted off from the respective
heads of income.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interestincome is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

viii. Advance for Grant- in- project from different Ministries/Departments of Government.

NICSIreceived advance for Sales of good and service from different Ministries/ Departments of Government.
These transactions are normal trading transaction of the entity. Advance received for Ministries disclosure
in the financial statements has been made separately under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities” as ‘Grant
in Aid received from Customers’, as these are normal trading transactions. These advances are utilized for
the purposes of execution of respective projects and if there is balance available with NICSI at the close of
the respective Project, the same is refunded to the Grantor Institution along with the interest (if any). All the
grant in aid amounts are received for the Projects only.

NICSI implements various orders from the government departments/ organizations towards procurement
of hardware/ software and providing manpower. It takes Operating Margin on the total cost of each order, as
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Xii.

per the rates approved by its Board of Directors from time to time. NICSI receives fund against those orders
from the departments/ organizations as advances. No other form of government assistance is received by
NICSI, from which it is directly benefited. There is no grant of monetary or non-monetary asset given to
NICSI at concessional rate or free of cost.

NICSI fulfils all the terms & conditions attached to the administrative approvals/ sanctions towards release
of grants-in-aid by the Ministries/ Departments.

Inventories

The Cost of Inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costincurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories (including inventory of software’s) have
been valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method.
Consumable stores have been charged to revenue in the year of purchase, being negligible.

Retirement Benefits

As per arrangement with NIC, the amount towards leave salary and pension contribution are calculated on
basic pay and grade pay of the respective employee based on the percentage prescribed by Government
of India and passed on to NIC. The Company is not liable to pay any other retirement benefits to employees,
which shall entirely be borne by NIC in future.

Prior Period Items

Prior Period items are omissions/misstatements in an entity’s earlier period financial statements, including
balance sheet misclassifications. Ind AS 8 requires the rectification of prior period errors retrospectively in
the first set of financial statements approved, after their discovery, by restating the comparative amounts
for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. However, if such restatement is impracticable
i.e. when an entity can’t apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so, then Ind AS doesn’t require
restatement of such prior period items in comparatives of earlier periods.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Corporation, in each year, is in receipt of a few expenditure invoices pertaining to the reporting period,
after the reporting period. The expenditure invoices, pertaining to a reporting period, which are received
by the Corporation after the reporting period but before the management approved cut-off date or the
approval of audited financial statements by the Corporation’s Board of Directors are considered as adjusting
events after the reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting period to which they pertain. The
corresponding income on such expenditure invoices is also accounted for in the same reporting period.
The expenditure invoices, pertaining to a reporting period, which are received by the Corporation after the
reporting period & even after the management approved cut-off date or the approval of audited financial
statements by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, are considered as non-adjusting events after the
reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting period in which they are received. The corresponding
income is also accounted for in the reporting period in which the expenditure invoices are received &
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accounted for.

xiii. Leases- As a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Arrangements containing a lease have been evaluated as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April 2016 in
accordance with Ind-AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for classification as finance
or operating lease as at the date of transition to Ind AS basis the facts and circumstances existing as at that
date.

xiv. Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

In situations where company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961, enacted in India,
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the
tax holiday period.

Deferred taxes in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period are recognized
in the year in which the temporary differences originate.

However, the company restricts the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
OCl or equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl
or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits
in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing

164 |



evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the
Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

xv. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assess, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimate the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre -tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as an increase in revaluation.

xvi. Impairment of Financial Assets/Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

A provision (@5% is recognized towards Trade Receivables which are outstanding for more than three years
at Balance Sheet date.

xvii. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
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2.1

proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of
the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning
of the period, unless issue data later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors."

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Long term provisions may be discounted to their present values at an appropriate
risk adjusted discounted rate. Short term provisions are not required to be discounted. The provisions are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. Provisions
are also required to be created in respect of constructive obligations. However, the Corporation was not
having any constructive obligations in the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Cash and Cash-Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts are form an integral part of Company's cash
management."

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
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accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments
and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
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(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilized.

Recent accounting pronouncements Ind AS 116:

On March 30,2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from April 1, 2019.
Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
for both parties to a contract i.e,, the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting
model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently,
operating lease expenses are charged to Income & Expenditure accounts. Ind AS 116 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

As per Ind AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on
lease liabilities in Income & Expenditure accounts. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease
arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
on account of implementation of Ind AS 116 which would be insignificant impact on income & loss and
balance sheet.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

X in Lakhs
Buildings | Plantand | Furniture | Vehicles Office Computers Total
equipment and Equipments
Fixtures
Cost
As at April 1,2017 1,985.85 14737 561.88 7.02 2,26891 6,589.97 | 11,561.01
Additions i 126.43 3.09 i 1,443.69 480.57 | 2053.78
Disposals - - 1.27 - 9.17 130.11 140.55
As at March 31,2018 1,985.85 273.80 563.70 7.02 3,703.43 6,940.44 | 13,474.23
Additions - -1 1,028.07 - 339.72 7783 | 1,44556
Disposals - - - - 18.35 88.72 107.07
As at March 31,2019 1,985.85 273.80 | 1,591.71 7.02 4,024.80 6,929.55 | 14,812.72
Depreciation
As at April 1,2017 962.58 119.77 43792 5.90 1,499.89 390148 | 692755
Depreciation charge for the year 50.06 82.37 34.30 037 47393 300.36 941.41
Impairment Loss - - - - -
Disposals - - 1.21 - 8.79 126.19 136.19
As at March 31,2018 1,012.65 202.14 471.01 6.27 1,965.03 4,075.65 | 7,732.76
Depreciation charge for the year 47.61 51.13 288.55 0.25 720.61 212.76 1,320.91
Depreciation for earlier years 455.22 455.22
(Refer Note No. 52)
Impairment Loss - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - 17.44 84.54 101.98
As at March 31,2019 1,060.26 253.27 | 1,214.79 6.52 2,668.20 4,203.87 | 9,406.92
Net book value:
As at March 31,2019 925.60 20.52 37692 0.50 1,356.59 2,725.67 | 540580
As at March 31,2018 973.21 71.65 92.69 0.75 1,738.39 2,864.78 | 574147
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4. Intangible assets

%in Lakhs
Software Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2017 4,064.34 4,064.34

Additions 3,674.45 3,674.45

Disposals

As at March 31,2018 7,738.80 7,738.80

Additions 7,136.90 7,136.90

Disposals

As at March 31,2019 14,875.70 14,875.70

Amortisation

As at April 1, 2017 965.77 965.77

Amortisation charge for the year 3,079.34 3,079.34

Impairment Loss

Disposals

As at March 31,2018 4,045.12 4,045.12

Amortisation charge for the year 3,/65.53 3,/65.53

Impairment Loss

Disposals

As at March 31,2019 7,810.65 7,810.65

Net book value:

As at March 31,2019 7,065.05 7,065.05

As at March 31,2018 3,693.68 3,693.68
5-Loans

%in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good

728.42

686.16

TOTAL

728.42

686.16

Note: - Non-current Security Deposit have been discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate

of 10.85% per annum.




6 - Other Financial Assets

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Non-current

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposit having maturity more than 12 months* 291.60 291.60
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Interest Accured 33.46 31.02
TOTAL 325.06 322.62
* Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee.
7 - Income Taxes
The major components of income tax expense for the year.
A. Income and Expenditure Account:
X in Lakhs
Particulars Year End Year End
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(i) |Income or Loss Section
Current income tax charge 752.37 2,268.01
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 1,646.55 54.51
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,662.45) (361.69)
Income tax expense reported in the Income and (1,263.53) 1,960.83
Expenditure Account
(ii) | Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the -
year:
TOTAL (1,263.53) 1,960.83
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B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for

FY ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019:

%in Lakhs
Year End Year End
March 312019 | March 312018
Accounting Income before tax from continuing operations (9,786.87) 5,065.10
Income before tax from a discontinued operation -
Accounting Income before income tax (9,786.87) 5,065.10
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 March 2018: 34.608%) (3,419.93) 1,752.93
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 1,646.55 54.51
Government grants exempted from tax -
Exemptincome -
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 509.85 153.39
At the effective income tax rate of 12.91% (31 March 2018: 37.34%) (1,263.53) 1,960.83
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (1,263.53) 1,960.83
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation -
TOTAL (1,263.53) 1,960.83
C. Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following: %in Lakhs
Particulars Balance sheet Statement of Income &
Expenditure
As at As at Year End Year End
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (20.10) (324.90) (304.80) (354.32)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,455.43 104.32 (3.351.11) 0.63
Provision for Employee benefits -
Present valuation of Security Deposits (assets) 81.51 74.96 (6.55) 8.00
Deferred tax expense/(income) (3,662.45) (345.69)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3,516.83 (145.62)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: %in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Deferred tax assets (continuing operations) 3,536.93 179.28
Deferred tax liabilities (continuing operations) 20.10 324.90
Deferred tax Assets/(liabilities), net 3,516.83 (145.62)




8 - Other Non-Current Assets

T in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31,2018

Deferred Lease Expense 640.41 711.25
Advances to Suppliers 1,010.07 1,828.74
1,650.48 2,539.99
9 - Trade Receivables
X in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Unsecured, considered good 17,398.08 28,835.15
Unsecured, considered doubtful* 9,889.60 301.43
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (9,889.60) (301.43)
Total 17,398.08 28,835.15

* Provision for Doubtful Debts amounting to Rs. 3,01,43,419/- of F Y 2017-18 has been reversed during FY 2018-
19. Further, during FY 2018-19 provision for doubtful debts has been made as per committee recommendations
instead of @ 5% towards which are outstanding for more than 3 years at Balance Sheet date refer Note No. 53.

10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Current Assets

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

a. Balances with banks

Saving Account 28,395.00 13,294.98
b. Others
Imprest Account 0.50 0.07
Fixed Deposit (Maturity less than 3 months) 34,282.92 27,003.15
Total 62,678.42 40,298.20
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11 - Other Bank Balances

%in Lakhs
Particulars Current Assets
As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Fixed Deposit* 83,073.38 112,975.19
Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee 4276.79 1,749.18
Total 87,350.17 114,724.37
12 - Other Financial Assets
%in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest Accured 4612.61 3,923.41
Total 4,612.61 3,923.41
13 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Income tax paid (Net of provision Rs.10,454.36 Lakhs (Previous Year

Rs.9,701.99 Lakhs)) 15,680.86 11,164.64
Less: -

Provision for Income Tax (Refund Not Received) (1,646.55)

(See Notes to Accounts No. 59)

Total 14,034.31 11,164.64




14 - Other Current Assets

%in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Advances to Employees
Unsecured, considered good 36.11 31.19
Total 36.11 31.19
Other advances
Unsecured, considered good
GST on Advances and Others 20,066.86 19,271.52
Prepaid expenses 336.28 318.98
Taxes Recoverable* 3.21 120.04
Total(B) 20,406.35 19,710.54
Advances to Suppliers 5217.21 8,205.39
Less: -
Provision for Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) 1,712.20 -
(See Notes to Accounts No. 59)
Total (C) 3,505.01 8,205.39
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 23,947.46 27,947.12
* Break-up of Taxes Recoverable
%in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Sales Tax/DVAT Recoverable (1996-97 to 2013-14) 120.71 117.70
TDS On Works Contract 2000-2001 2.54 2.34
Less: -
Provision for Sales Tax/ VAT (Not refunded back) 117.70
Provision for TDS on WCT (Not refunded back) 2.34
(See Notes to Accounts No. 59)
Total 3.21 120.04
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15 - Equity Share Capital

%in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Authorised

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00

TOTAL 200.00 200.00

a. Information on shareholders*

Name of Shareholder Relationship As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
No. of Equity | Percentage | No.of Equity | Percentage
shares held (%) shares held (%)

President of India through DG, NIC Shareholder 199,995 99.9975 199,995 99.9975

Sh. Shyam Bihari Singh Shareholder 1 0.0005 1 0.0005

Sh. Nagesh Shastri Shareholder 1 0.0005

Sh, Deepak Chandra Misra Shareholder 1 0.0005

Sh. Sanjay Singh Gahlout Shareholder 1 0.0005

Dr. Ambreesh Kumar Shareholder 1 0.0005

Sh. Vishnu Chandra Shareholder 1 0.0005 1 0.0005

Sh.R S Mani Shareholder 1 0.0005 1 0.0005

Total 200,000.00 100.00 | 200,000.00 100.00

* Held on behalf of Government of India

b. Reconciliation of the paid up shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

%in Lakhs
Particluars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000.00 200.00 | 200,000.00 200.00
Add: - Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 200,000.00 200.00| 200,000.00 200.00

(o Rights, Preference and Restriction attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share.

d. Over the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2019, neither any bonus shares were issued nor
any shares were allotted for consideration other than cash. Further, no shares were brought back during the said

period.
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16 - Other Equity

T in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Surplus as per Income and Expenditure Account

Opening balance 63,682.41 60,578.14
Effece of Prior Period Error
Interest related to GIA Project other than NKN (Refer Note No. 50) (3,351.27)
Interest related to GIA Project NKN (Refer Note No. 50) (1,414.74)
Depreciation for earlier years (Refer Note No. 52) (455.22)
Opening Balance Restated 58,461.18 60,578.14
Add: - Surplus for the year (8,523.35) 3,104.27
TOTAL 49,937.83 63,682.41
17 - Other Financial Liabilities
%in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Security Deposits Payable 40.45 40.45
Total 40.45 40.45
18 - Trade Payables
%in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Trade Payables

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises* 466.66

- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 34,465.51 47,192.00
Total 34,932.17 47,192.00
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19 - Other Financial Liabilities

%in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Earnest Money Deposit Payable 931.11 921.36
Employee Benefits Payable 274.45 147.57
Expenses Payable 19.00 9.87
Retention Money (Performance Bank Guarantee) 242.38 24237
Total 1,466.94 1,321.17
* Refer Note No.58
20 - Other Current Liabilities
Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Statutory Dues and Taxes 413.85 1,992.35
Advances received from customers 111,852.71 115,804.50
Grants-in-Aid received from customers 29,518.24 9,225.79
Corporate Social Responsibilities 276.00 198.00
Total 142,060.79 127,220.64
21 - Provisions
%in Lakhs
Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Provision for Stamp Duty 74.52 74.52
Total 74.52 74.52
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22 Revenue From Operations

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31,2019

Year ended
March 31,2018

Revenue from operations

Sale of Traded Goods 19,433.70 38,476.45
Service Income 95,479.47 87,352.48
Total (A) 114,913.17 125,828.93
Administrative Charges 39.66 743
Total (B) 39.66 7.43
Total Revenue from operations (A)+(B) 114,952.84 125,836.36
23 Other Income
X in Lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Interest Income* 9,094.45 8,285.60
Other non-operating income 598.77 250.56
Less: -
Interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects (other than NKN) 587.22 428.48
Interest on NKN Projects (Grants-in-Aid) 77.45 34923
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 5196 47.28
Gain on de-recognition of financial assets 0.63
9,080.50 7,806.36

*Includes Rs. 120.69 Lakhs (PY Rs. NIL) towards interest on refund of Income Tax.
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24 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

T in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31,2019

Year Ended

Year Ended
March 31,2018

Purchases: -

Hardware 17,145.55 34,239.03
Software 1,188.97 2,644.47
Augmentation of District Infrastructure 5,804.99 2,687.53
Total 24,139.51 39,571.03

25 Employee Benefits Expense
X in Lakhs
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Salaries and incentives 1,057.11 794.41
Staff Welfare 3552 34.43
Total 1,092.63 828.84
26 Other Expenses
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Audit Fees (2018-19) 7.22 722
Bank Charges 4.29 13.14
Board Meeting Expenses 0.20 0.34
Books & Periodicals 1494 10.05
Business Promotion 8.22

Call Centre charges -

GST (Non-Cenvatable) 28.42 22.23
Conference Seminar W/Shop Expenses 133.99 68.22




Consumable Stores 41.14 43.56
Conveyance Expenses 7.71 479
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses 176.00 198.00
Diesel for D.G. Set 2.29 4.69
Doubtful Debts 9,588.17

Electricity & Water Charges 561.75 613.92
Foreign Exchange Variation - 0.38
Hire Charges 7.04

House Keeping & Cleaning Charges 327.70 291.05
House Lease Charges 437 7.24
Internal Audit Fee 0.25 0.60
Krishi Kalyan Cess & Swachch Bharat Cess (Non-Cenvatable) 1.28 613.74
Membership & Subscription Charges 143 1.01
Miscelleneous Expenses 7.43 13.31
News Paper 0.95 0.86
Office Expenses 1,804.48 1,289.18
Office Rent 2,186.94 2,585.51
Printing & Stationery 6.98 9.22
Professional & Consultancy Charges 220.83 234.56
Rent for DTH 0.45 0.45
Rent Rates & Taxes 9.94 4.27
Repairs & Maintenance 59797 385.88
Service Tax (Non - Cenvatable) 30.49 222.37
Taxi Hire Charges 27337 328.60
Telephone Expenses 4272 52.31
Travelling Expenses 315.92 348.48
Vehicle - Petrol 1.69 1.45
Vehicle Maintenance 0.42
Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) 1,712.20

Provision Sales Tax/ VAT 117.70 -
Provision TDS on WCT 2.34 -
Total 18,248.79 7,377.05

The figures under the head Electricity & Water Charges and Housekeeping & Cleaning Charges are shown after net of

reimbursement.
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27 - Earning per Share

T in Lakhs

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Earning per share

Surplus attributable to Equity shareholders (8,523.35) 3104.27
Weighted average number of equity shares 2.00 2.00
Basic earning per share (4,261.67) 1,552.13
Diluted earning per share (4,261.67) 1,552.13
Face value per share 100.00 100.00

28. Fair values measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Trade receivables - 17,398.08 - 28,835.15
Cash and cash equivalents - 62,678.42 - 40,298.20
Other bank balances - 87,350.17 - 114,72437
Interest Accrued (current) - 4,612.61 - 3,923.41
Security deposits - 72842 - 686.16
Fixed deposits - 291.60 - 291.60
Interest Accrued (non-current) - 33.46 - 31.02
Total financial assets -| 173,092.75 -| 188,789.92
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 3493217 - 47,192.00
Other financial liabilities (current) - 1,466.94 - 132117
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 40.45 - 40.45
Total financial liabilities -| 36,439.55 -| 48,553.62
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(i)  Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements
as awhole.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : valuation technigues for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value
measurement is not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities, other
than those whose fair values are close approximations of their carrying values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, short term borrowing, trade payables and
other current financial liabilities the management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted
cash flows (DCF) method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting
period. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable
inputs including counterparty credit risk.

29. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, security deposits, earnest money deposits
and employee liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, security deposits,
fixed deposits, cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the Board of Directors that
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board
provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks, which are summarised below.

. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include fixed deposits.
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A. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s investment in fixed deposits with banks. The company’s fixed deposits are carried at
fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount
nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

B. Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity is the impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk
as it does not have any foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities.

Il. Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly.

Credit risk management
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Credit risk Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk bank balances 12 month expected credit loss
Moderate credit risk | Trade receivables and other financial assets credit loss

Payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit
loss experience and considering.

Rin Lakhs
Credit rating Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2019 | March 2018
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, banks deposit and other bank 150,757.01 155,708.74
balances
Moderate credit risk | Trade receivables, Loan and other financial assets 22,739.11 33,444.72

Concentration of trade receivables
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across various states in India with no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk exposure Provision for expected credit losses The Company provides for 12 month expected credit
losses for following financial assets —
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R in Lakhs

Particulars Gross carrying | Expected credit Credit losses
amount losses

As at 31 March 2019

Trade Receivables 27,287.68 (9,889.60) 17,398.08
As at 31 March 2018

Trade Receivables 29,136.59 (301.43) 28,835.15
Reconciliation of loss provision — lifetime expected credit losses

Zin Lakhs

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Trade Receivables

Loss allowance As at March 31, 2017 303.28
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year (1.85)
Amounts written of

Loss allowance As at March 31,2018 301.43
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year 9,588.17
Amounts written of

Loss allowance As at March 31,2019 9,889.60

IIl. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in

which the entity operates.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Zin Lakhs
Ondemand | Lessthan 3to12 1to5 >5years Total
3months | months years

Year ended

As at March 31,2019

Trade payables 3493217 - - 34,932.17
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - - - 40.45 40.45
Other financial liabilities (current) 1,466.94 - - 1,466.94
Total 36,399.11 - - 40.45 - | 36,439.55
Year ended

As at March 31,2018

Trade payables 47,192.00 - - - -| 47,192.00
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - - - 40.45 - 40.45
Other financial liabilities (current) 132117 - - - -1 1,32117
Total 48,513.17 - - 40.45 - | 48,553.62

30. Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity
within the Company to carry out committed work programme requirements. The Company monitors the long
term cash flow requirements of the business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure
to meet that objective and to maintain flexibility.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital, issue new shares for cash, repay debt, put in place new debt facilities or undertake

other such restructuring activities as appropriate.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 March 2019.

%in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31March2019 | 31 March2018

Borrowings

Trade payables 3493217 47,192.00
Other payables 143,642.69 128,656.78
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (62,678.42) (40,298.20)
Net Debt 115,896.44 135,550.58
Total equity 50,137.83 63,882.41
Capital and Net debt 166,034.27 199,432.99
Gearing ratio (%) 69.80% 67.97%




31. Contingent Liabilities

As at Balance Sheet date, the contingent liability in respect of offsite warranty provided by the company to the
users is not considered since all the equipments supplied towards projects are covered under AMC from the

vendors/suppliers from time to time, after warranty period.

Contingent liabilities, other than the above, not provided for are as under: -

% in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 99.66 69.72
Guarantees 1848.84 1493.32
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2010-11) 791
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2012-13) 14.90
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2015-16) 350.60

Total 2299.10 1585.85

i Rs.65,445.02 Lakhs towards License Fee and Rs. 32,383.09 Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges for the period
2009 to 2016 against DoT licence has been provisionally assessed by DOT (Refer Note No.44). No further

communication is respect of above for FY 2016-17 onwards.

iii Penalty @ 2% on Income from V-sat Services (CSC Project and NDRF Project) towards said DOT license

since surrendered by NICSI to DoT on March 31, 2017.

\% No provision against the above has been made as management believes that there would not be any

actual payable/demand in future also.

32. Commitments

The Company has made commitment to procure the trading goods and to avail the services in the subsequent
period based on the purchase orders and agreements made with suppliers. Those commitments can be amended
as per the agreed terms. However, the amount of such revenue commitments towards internal projects of the
company is Rs.23.23 Lakhs (PY Rs.21.32 Lakhs) as at March 31 2019. In addition, Commitment towards capital

expenditure out of “Reserves” is as follows:-
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T in Lakhs

SL.No. |Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2019 31,2018

1 National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar 4,696.00 9,248.00
2 Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services 5,386.00 12,034.00
3 District 2.0-Augmentation of Digital India Initiative 1,407.00 7,213.00
4 NICSI Centre for Excellence 2,650.00
5 Up-gradation of Laxmi Nagar Data Centre 816.00
6 Development Centre at IT Park, Shastri Nagar 2,480.00

Total 11,489.00 | 34,441.00

33. Information pursuant to Para 5(viii) of the General Instructions for preparation to the Income &

Expenditure Account given under schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013.

. Value of Imports on C.IF Basis: NIL (PY Rs. NIL)

i, Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Year Ended March 31,2019

Year Ended March 31,2018

Travelling - Staff (Foreign) NIL NIL

Total NIL NIL

jii.  Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis): Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil)
34. Auditor Remuneration*

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Auditor Fee including Tax Audit Fee 7.21 7.27

For Reimbursement of expenses 1.99 1.99

Total 9.12 9.12

* Exclusive of applicable taxes. Further, Rs.2.30 Lakhs (PY Rs. 3.42 Lakhs) are paid for certification work for various
projects which are directly debited in the respective projects.

35. Disclosure pursuant to Ind-As 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’

i Contribution to Provident Fund
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The company is not having any Provident Fund scheme as the employees of the company are on deputation from
NIC, along-with their posts, as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998. The Provident




Fund is deducted from their salary every month as per the rates prescribed for the purpose and government
guidelines thereon subsequently, passed on to NIC as its entire account is maintained by them. There is thus, no
liability of the company towards any payment to the employees on Provident Fund Account.

iii. Leave Salary

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March,
1998, the leave salary contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is
calculated / provided by the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability
is thus, there on the company towards payment of leave salary/encashment.

iii. Pension Contribution

Since the employee are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the pension contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is
calculated / provided by the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability
is thus, there on the company towards payment of Pensionery benefits.

iv.  Gratuity

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the company is not liable to pay any Gratuity, as the same shall entirely be borne by NIC.

36. Related Party disclosures

I List of related parties

Name of the Party Relationship

Sh. Manoj Kumar Mishra (Managing Director) Key Managerial Personnel

ii Transactions with Related Parties:

% in Lakhs
Name of Party Nature of Year ended Year ended
Transaction March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Sh. Manoj Kumar Mishra Managerial Remuneration 38.61 34.47
Total 38.61 34.47

Balance payable as on March 31,2019 to Related Parties: Rs. 2.59 Lakhs (PY Rs.2.37 Lakhs)

37. Operating Lease

The Company has hired office space under operating lease. Further, as per IND AS-17 * Leases’ the details of total
future minimum lease payments is as under: -
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T in Lakhs

SL. No. Particulars As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
i Not Later than one year 1,425.11 1,302.78
i, Later than one year and not later than five years 7,809.99 7,578.28
i Later than five years 12,275.94 13,932.76

38. Disclosure pursuant to IND AS- 108 ‘Operating Segments’

The company is providing services in ‘Information Technology’ segment only from a centralized office in Delhi.
Considering the same as one segment only, no disclosure according to Ind AS— 108 ‘Operating Segments’ have
been made in the financial statements.

39. Balance Confirmation

The balance confirmation letters have been issued under various heads. The response there against is awaited.

40. Non-execution of Conveyance/Title Deed

The Company had purchased Hall No's 2&3 at 6th Floor, NBCC Towers, Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi from M/s.
NBCC Limited in the year 2003 and 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deed / Title Deeds towards
the same amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs (PY 931.50 lakhs) have not yet been got registered by NBCC despite
several requests from the company. M/s. NBCC is being reminded regularly in the matter by the company. Hence,
the initial provision of Rs 74.51 lakhs (PY Rs 74.51 lakhs) towards amount of Stamp Duty has been kept in the
financial statements and the differential amount, if any, shall be provided for in year the same got registered.

41. Inthe opinion of the Management, the current assets, loans and advances & trade receivable have a value
on realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

42. Disclosure u/s 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006

X in Lakhs
SL Particulars As at As at
No. March 31, | March 31,
2019 2018
1 | The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any | 466.66 NIL
supplier.
2 | The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, NIL NIL
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier.
3 | The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making NIL NIL
payment but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.




4 | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. NIL NIL

5 | The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

43. Disclosure pursuant to IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

As per IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, the assessment of impairment of Assets has been carried out during
the FY 2018-19 in respect of Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, National Data Centre at Shastri Park towards investment
on “Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services” and Development Centre at Shastri Park locations, which are cash
generating units of the company and no impairment loss has been identified thereon.

44. Revenue Generation (GR/ AGR) towards VSAT Projects against DOP License No. 815-100/
NICSI/2009-DS dated 20.11.2009 and payment of License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT thereon

NICSI had entered into a commercial VSAT License Agreement with DOT on 25.11.2009 and had been paying
the License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT accordingly. During the year, two projects i.e. CSC and NDRF have
been implemented against this License. C&AG Audit in October, 2015 had pointed out that Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India, in its Order dated 11.10.2011, had stated that “If the wide definition of Adjusted Gross Revenue
so as to include revenue beyond the License was in any way going to affect the Licensee, it was open for the
Licensees not to undertake activities for which they do not require License under clause (4) of the Telegraph Act
and transfer these activities to any other person or firm or company”. NICSI thereafter, took up the matter with
DQOT through MeitY that the DOT charges in respect of NICSI should be levied on the revenue generated through
these projects only and not on whole revenue of the Company, as per the initial agreed terms. DOT, vide DO
No. 32-4/ CCA-Delhi/2015-LFP (KW-2) dated 10.05.2016, has informed that the AGR matter is presently under
“Appeal” in Hon'ble Supreme Court and in the hearing on 29.02.2016, the Court has stated that “The Union of
India will continue to raise demands as per its understanding, however, the same will not be enforced till the final
decision of the controversy by this Court”. DOT has further stated that the assessment shall continue to be made
in accordance with the terms & condition of the relevant License Agreements and the guidelines/ instructions/
clarifications issued from time to time, as is being done hitherto, until further orders. However, DoT, vide its letters
No. 7-16/ 2009-LF/ VSAT 2015-16/ 107 dated 09.02.2017 and No. WPF-1000/ NICSI/ Comm. VSAT/ 2010-11/
107 dated 09.02.2017, had sent a provisional assessment to NICSI at Rs.65445.02 Lakhs towards License Fee
and Rs. 32383.09 Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges for the period 2009 to 2016. Against the demand, NICSI had
taken-up the matter with MeitY and with DoT. Further feedback in the matter is awaited. NICSI had however, paid/
provided the charges to DOT for FY.2016-17 as per past practice. Project-wise position is as under:

(a) VSAT for CSC Project

During FY 2018-19, an amount of Rs. NIL (PY. Rs.NIL) has been generated as revenue towards V-Sat for CSC
in North East Project against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI/2009-DS dated 20/11/2009. The details are as
follows: -
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T in Lakhs

S.No. |Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(@ Total Revenue as per Income and Expenditure A/c of the 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72
Company
(b) Income from V-sat Services (CSC Project) towards said DOT NIL NIL
license*
(© Revenue from Projects other than at (b) 1,24,033.33 1,.33,642.72

The additional fee of DOT or Penalty against the above license towards this project on NICSI's revenue would be

charged to the project No.80752/GEN/ND.

Penalty, if any, to be imposed by DOT in the project would be accounted for in the year in which it would be levied.
However, NICSI had surrendered the said licence to DoT on 31.03.2017 and thereafter, no activity had been

undertaken by the company during FY.2018-19.

(b)  VSAT for NDRF Project

During FY 2018-19, an amount of Rs. NIL (PY. NIL) has been generated as revenue towards V-Sat for NDRF Project
against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI/2009-DS dated 20/11/2009. The details are as follows: -

T in Lakhs
S.No. |Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(a Total Revenue as per Income and Expenditure A/c of the 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72
Company
(b) Income from V-sat Services (NDRF Project) towards said DOT NIL NIL
license*
@ Revenue from Projects other than at (b) 1,24,033.33 1,33,642.72

The additional fee of DOT or Penalty against the above license towards this project on NICSI's revenue would be

charged to the project No. 111116/GEN/ND.

Penalty, if any, to be imposed by DOT in the project would be accounted for in the year in which it would be levied.
However, NICSI had surrendered the said licence to DoT on 31.03.2017 and thereafter, no activity had been

undertaken by the company during F.Y.2018-19.




45. Operating Margin (Administrative Charges) on NKN Project

As per the minutes of the High Level Committee meeting held on 19/07/2011 towards NKN Project, specific
approval from Integrated Finance Division (IFD) of Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY)
towards levying 1% Operating Margin on the expenditure under NKN Project is awaited. However, as per the
approval from the Board of Directors, the company has been booking its Operating Margin @1% of expenditure,
subject to Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY’s) approval.

46. Income/Expenditure on National Data Centre Project, Shastri Park, Delhi

National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi had been set up with financial assistance from MeitY and NIC and
had become operational in July, 2011. As per approval by the Standing Finance Committee, NICSI was to
bear Operational Expenditure thereon (@ Rs.800 Lakhs per annum for initial 2 years. To meet its Operational
Expenditure, NICSI was to get income from 60 Racks allotted to it. While NICSI continued to meet Operational
Expenditure thereon even after 2 years, MeitY had approved that from 01-04-2014 onwards, NICSI would be
incurring operational expenditure headwise on the National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi upto Rs.800 Lakhs
on the heads Rent & Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure O & M Manpower and
NIC would reimburse the expenditure from its Budgetary Provision to NICSI towards Electricity & Diesel Charges/
Physical Security & Housekeeping Charges/ Water Charges/ Logistics Support/ Contingency Charges upto 3%
of all these charges, after these expenditure are initially incurred by NICSI. With the setting-up of National Data
Centre at Bhubaneswar, NICSI and NIC had worked out an arrangement for operation and management of the
same and also, for National Data Centre at Shastri Park, Delhi. NICSI Board of Directors, in its 108th meeting held
on 27.12.2018, had considered the same and approved as under with retrospective effect from 01 April 2018: -

° NICSI may create a separate project pool account for Shastri Park and Bhubaneswar Data Centres

° Income generated through Co-location Services at both these Data Centres shall be pooled under the
proposed project heads.

. Income shall be used for meeting the O&M expenditure and upgradation of basic infrastructure at both
these Data Centres.

° In addition to existing 60 Racks being used for co-location service at Shastri Park by NICSI, NIC may add
more Racks to generate enough funds to meet O&M expenses for years to come and also for upgrading the
basic infrastructure.

° NICSI would not incur Rs.800 Lakhs per annum towards O&M Expenditure at Shastri park from FY.2018-19
and onwards. Revenue generated per annum through said 60 Racks and more Racks to be added by NIC,
would be utilized for meeting O&M expenditure and upgradation of basic infrastructure.

. NICSI would charge its 726 Operating Margin and Taxes as per Board approved rates from FY.2018-19 and
onwards on the said O&M Expenditure and upgradation of basic / ICT infrastructure.

NICSI has accordingly booked its Income & Expenditure in FY.2018-19 both for Shastri Park & Bhubaneswar at
National Data Centre.
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47. LTC to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The company had reimbursed an amount of Rs. 189 Lakhs towards LTC, based on the Service Rules of NICSI to
the NICSI employees deputed from NIC during the Financial Years 2010-11 to 2013-14. This amount had been
reimbursed by the Company based on the Service Rules approved by the Board of Directors in its 49th meeting
held on 17.05.2006 and amended in 69th meeting held on 24.09.2010, which were not in line with DPE/ DOPT
guidelines & CCS LTC Rules. These Service Rules had thereafter, been sent by NICSI to NIC/MeitY on 11.11.2014
for ratification. As per Board approval that the recovery be made in installments, NICSI had recovered the amount
from the salary of employeesin May, 2015. Against the same, the employees had filed a Writ Petition in the Hon'ble
Delhi High Court against the recovery and the Court, vide “Order” dated 09.06.2015, had granted the “Stay” on
the recovery of amount from the employees, pending the final decision by the Court in the matter. Finally, the
Hon'ble Delhi High Court, in its judgment dated 18.03.2016, had decided that “Service conditions which induce
the present appellants to apply for NICSI for deputation and continue their held out a liberalized LTC option. That
option was availed of continuously. The LTC regulations were amended further-it is not in dispute that the original
regulations of NICSI and the amendments continue in force. In these circumstances, the recovery sought to be
made without altering the conditions of service could not have been upheld. Accordingly, the respondents are
permitted to recover only amounts paid in excess of the deputation terms either pre-2010 as existing with some
of the employees joined the organization or those which are contrary to the 2010 amendments. The Appeal is
allowed to that extent”.

MeitY, vide letter dated 14.07.2016, had directed NICSI to continue recovery of over-payment to the employees
who had irregularly drawn LTC. NICSI, vide letter dated 29.07.2016, informed MeitY that in view of the current
directives, NICSI has re-started the process of recovery of over-payment made to the employees on account
of LTC and an Office Memorandum was also issued towards the same on 29.07.2016 itself, informing that the
recovery would start from the salary for the month of August, 2016. The matter was simultaneously submitted
by NICSI to MeitY on 16.08.2016.

The affected employees had then gone to Hon'ble Delhi High Court by filing a contempt petition against the
re-started process of recovery as per the said NICSI O.M. dated 29.07.2016, in which NICSI and MeitY were both
made Respondents. MeitY had re-considered the matter and advised NICSI, vide note dated 17.03.2017, to adhere
to the said decision dated 18.03.2016 from Hon'ble Delhi High Court in the matter. Based on MeitY directive,
NICSI issued O.M. dated 21.03.2017 mentioning “not to effect recovery of LTC claims by NIC/ NICSI employees
and further, the recovery of amounts already made to be paid back to concerned officers in due course. The
Respondents accordingly, informed the decision to Hon'ble Delhi High Court in its hearing on 23.03.2017 by
handing over a photocopy of the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. The contempt petition was thus treated as disposed off
as satisfied and the respondents were directed to forthwith give effect to the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. NICSI had
accordingly taken action and refunded the recovered amount to each individual.

In the meantime, the matter was included by the C&AG Office in its “Report for the year ended March, 2014 —
Union Government (Communications & IT Sector) — No. 55 of 2015” presented to Parliament. It is currently with
Public Accounts Committee (PAC) of Parliament.
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MeitY had informed the C&AG Office as per above, including the said Hon'ble Delhi High Court decision. The C&AG
Office had thereafter, desired the copy of the Hon'ble Court decision and also, the Government approval towards
ratification of NICSI Service Rules. While the copy of Hon'ble Court decision was provided to the C&AG Office,
it was informed that the matter towards ratification of NICSI Service Rules was still under consideration of the
Government. The para is thus, still under consideration of the PAC for want of ratification of NICSI Service Rules
from the Government.

48. Project Incentive to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The Company had paid an amount of Rs. 211 Lakhs towards Project Incentive to the NICSI employees deputed
from NIC for the Financial Years 2007-08 to 2013-14. In addition, an amount of Rs. 44.84 Lakhs had been
provided in the Accounts for FY. 2014-15, Rs. 45.80 Lakhs for F. Y. 2015-16 towards the same, based on the
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors in its 60th meeting held on 22.12.2008 which are not in line with
DPE guidelines. Matter had been taken up by NICSI with NIC/ MeitY to approve the guidelines. TDS on Project
Incentive was to be deducted at the time actual payment. Approval to the guidelines from the Government is still
awaited. Since no feedback in the matter is yet received, no provision towards Project Incentive has been made
during financial years 2016-17 to 2018-19. Further, in the financial years 2018-19, the provisions towards Project
Incentive of Rs.44.84 lakhs for FY.2014-15 and Rs.45.80 lakhs for FY.2015-16 have been reversed.

49. Transport Allowance and House Rent Allowance to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The Company has paid an excess amount of Rs. 49 Lakhs towards Transport Allowance and Rs. 17 Lakhs towards
House Rent Allowance to the NICSIemployees deputed from NIC duringthe period from 01.07.2007 to 31.03.2014.
This amount has been paid by the Company based on the Service Rules approved by the Board of Directors in its
49th meeting held on 17.05.2006 which is not in line with GOl Rules. These Service Rules have been sent by NICSI
to NIC/ MeitY on 11.11.2014 for ratification. Further feedback in the matter is awaited. However, as per approval
by the Board of Directors, NICSI has followed Government Rules towards these allowances in FY.2018-19.

50. Interest on Un-utilized fund of Grant in Aid projects

Till FY. 2011-2012, the Company was treating the amount received from Grantor Institution for execution of
projects as ‘Advances received from customer’ instead of treating them as Grant in Aid receipt and accordingly, no
interest was provided on un-utilized fund to Grantor Institution.

Board of Directors, vide meeting dated 21-12-2011, had approved to calculate and refund the interest earned
on un-utilized fund available in Grant in Aid Projects from time to time as per the rate of interest applicable in
the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public Sector Banks. Accordingly, the Company had calculated and refunded
the amount of interest to the Grantor institution i.e. rate of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the
Public Sector Banks, whereas as per terms and conditions laid down by the Grantor Institution, the actual interest
earned on un-utilized balance of Grant in Aid projects is to be refunded. The grantor departments have accepted
the interest as credited to the individual project till FY.2016-17 and most of these projects are since completed
and their accounts settled. However, a para is continuing from the C&AG Office towards less refund of interest
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in GIA Projects by the company to the Government. NICSI had provided the reply on the para and it is still under
consideration of the C&AG Office.

In the meantime, the Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on 28.03.2017, had re-considered the matter
and advised NICSI to refund the interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects on actual basis.

Accordingly, in F. Y. 2018-19, NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects on actual basis as per the interest
rates on which NICSI had made FDs in the past and also, in FY.2018-19 and based on that, has provided the
differential interest in each ledger of the respective project for the period upto 31.03.2018 and for FY.2018-19,

as per below:
% in Lakhs
Period NKN Project Other GIA Proejcts Total
For the period upto 31.03.2018 1414.74 3351.27 4766.01
For FY.2018-19 7745 535.60 613.05
Total 1492.19 3886.87 5379.06

The interest on unutilized fund on Grant-in-Aid projects (including NKN Project) for the period upto 31.03.2018
amounting to Rs.4766.01 lakh and Rs.613.05 kakh for the F. Y. 2018-19 (P. Y. Rs.777.72 Lakhs including NKN
Project) has been reduced from interest income for the year.

51. Trade Receivables

NICSlimplements alarge number of new projects every year from various Ministries/ Departments / Organizations
of the Government of India and States / UTs. As per the provisions in the General Financial Rules (GFRs), they
restrict the release of advances to NICSI to 40% or so, whereas in many cases mainly related to procurement
of ICT Hardware, NICSI has to release the work orders to full extent and after delivery / installation of those
items, NICSI has to release the payments to the vendors as per the payment terms in the work orders. This, on
many occasions, result in Trade Receivables, disclosed in note no. 9 of the financial statements, amount of trade
receivables of Rs. 27287.68 Lakhs (PY Rs. 29136.59 Lakhs) as at March 31, 2019, which is followed up by NICSI
from time to time with the concerned Departments /Organizations to recover the same.

52. Prior Period Depreciation towards 5th Floor, Shastri Park, Delhi

NICSI had given interior work to M/s NBCC Ltd. for 5th Floors, Shastri Park, Delhi after completion of works, the
floors had become operational during F Y 2016-17. However, the final payments to M/s NBCC Ltd. has been made
by NICSI during FY 2018-19. Accordingly, the Depreciation of Rs.455.22 Lakhs for FY 2016-17 & 2017-18 has
been charged under other equity in FY 2018-19.

53. Provision for Doubtful Debt amounts un-likely to be recovered.

As per Accounting Policy of the Company, a provision @ 5% is recognized towards trade receivables which are
outstanding for more than 3 years at balance sheet date. P&T Audit has observed that the adopted policy for
provision for doubtful debts of the company is deficient.
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Considering the above observation of P&T Audit and assurance given by NICSI to that office on previous year’s
accounts, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations towards making provision
in the Accounts for FY.2018-19 for the doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered.

Based on the recommendations of the Committee, the “Provision” has been made in NICSI Accounts for F. Y.
2018-19 towards doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered as per below: -

% in Lakhs
Duration Outstanding amount Provision in % age Provision in amount
More than 10 years 5,105.01 100 5,105.01
5to 10 years 7,853.17 50 3,926.59
3to 5 years 3,432.76 25 858.00
Upto 3 years 9,476.78 NIL NIL
Total 25,867.72 9,889.60

54. Provision for Advances to Suppliers.

P&T Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “Advances to Suppliers amounting to
Rs.984.16 Lakhs are more than 3 years old. Being more than 3 years old provisioning should have been created
in this respect. Non-provision has resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provisions
leading to overstatement of profit”.

Considering the above observation of P&T Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their
recommendations to consider and recommend the provision to be made towards Advances to Suppliers un-
likely to be settled.

Based on the Committee recommendations, the provision towards Advances to Suppliers amounting to Rs.
1712.20 Lakhs has been made in Accounts for F. Y. 2018-19 for amounts outstanding for more than 3 years as on
31.03.2019 and un-likely to be settled, except for NKN Project.

55. Classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and non-current

The company provides the bifurcations of Assets & Liabilities into ‘Current” and ‘Non-Current” in the financial
statements on the basis of estimation of recoverability/payment within operating cycle.

56. Expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

NICSI has made a provision of Rs.176.00 Lakhs in the Accounts for FY.2018-19 (PY 198.00 Lakhs) towards
Expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per 108th Board Meeting held on December 27, 2018.
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57. Grants-in-Aid Projects

As per the terms & conditions stipulated in the sanctions towards grants in aid projects, the Company is getting
the accounts of all such projects audited from a CA firm. For the current year, the accounts of all the GIA Projects
are since audited, except for NKN project, which is in process

58. District 2.0 - Augmentation of District Infrastructure to cater to Digital India Initiative”

The Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on March 28, 2017, had considered the project and approve at
a total outlay of Rs.9,900 Lakhs for Phase-I to be met entirely by NICSI out of its “Cash Reserves”. However, there
would be no “Revenue” income in the project, as it involves augmentation only of ICT Infrastructure at NIC's some
District Centres. Since, no income is there in the project and the assets created neither belong to NICSI nor in its
possession, NICSI has directly routed the entire expenditure of Rs. 5,804.99 Lakhs (PY Rs. 2687.54 Lakhs) towards
it during the year to Income & Expenditure Account as an expense.

59. Provision towards Income Tax & Sales Tax etc.

P&T Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “an amount of Rs. 2,281.03 Lakhs
on account of TDS/Income Tax recoverable pertaining to FY 2007-08 to 2014-15 is pending from Income Tax
Department. The above amount being relating to more than 3 years old, provision in this regard should have been
created by the company. However, no provision has been created. Non provision of this amount has resulted into
overstatement of current assets and understatement of provision leading to overstatement of income”.

Considering the above observation of P&T Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give
recommendations on the provision to be made in Accounts for FY.2018-19 for the amounts towards Income
Tax refund, Sales Tax recoverable and TDS on Work Contract un-likely to be recovered. Based on the Committee
recommendations the provision has been made in NICSI accounts for FY 2018-19 as per below: -

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2019
Income Tax 1,646.55
Sales Tax/VAT/DVAT 117.70
TDS on Works Contract 2.34
Total 1,766.59

60. Obsolete Items

The Company has certain obsolete items of Fixed Assets as on 31-03-2019. While conducting review on NICSI
Accounts for FY.2017-18, the P&T Audit team had observed that the provision was not made in Accounts for
that year towards difference between Depreciated Value of the Obsolete items as on 31st March and Estimated
Sale Value against the same. Accordingly, a Committee had been set up in NICSI to examine and recommend
the “Provision” to be made in NICSI Accounts for FY.2018-19 towards Obsolete items as on 31.03.2019 between
the Depreciated Value and the Estimated Sale Value. The Committee has recommended that the Depreciated
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Value of the Obsolete Asset items as on 31.03.2019 i.e. Rs.49.89 Lakhs be taken as the Estimated Sale value and
therefore, no Provision on this account is required to be made in the Accounts for that year.

61. PriorPeriod Items

The company has treated only errors and omissions as prior period. In current year no error or omission is there
and hence, no prior period expense or income is there except as reported in Notes No. 50 and 52. However, as per
assurance given by NICSI to the P&T Audit Office on the Accounts of Previous year, all the un-executed or partial
executed Pos/WOs have been reviewed and based on that all such Pos/WOs issued till 30.06.2017 have been
treated as cancelled.

62. The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of goods and services. Effective 01 April 2018, the
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) -'Revenue from contracts with customers’
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as on the transition
dateie. 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and the corresponding contract assets /
liabilities have not been retrospectively adjusted. Similar impact on the financial results for the year ended March
31,2019 is Rs. "Nil".

63. Previous year figure reclassification

The company has reclassified previous year figures to confirm current year classification.

As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Akshay Sethi Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.539439 DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre Services INC. ("the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019, and Income and Expenditure account, the Statement
of Changes in Equityand the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the

effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial

statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2019 and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.

As informed by the management the audit of the accounts of the grants in aid project with respect to
NKN Project is still in process. Accordingly, the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
have been compiled based on such unaudited accounts of NKN Projects. Impact, if any, on the assets/
liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure consequent to the audit of such grants in aid projects is presently
not ascertainable. (Refer to Note. 57)

The Company implemented the ERP accounting software w.e.f July 01, 2017 during the previous year
(FY 2017-18) without being validated by a Systems Audit carried out by an external independent agency.
Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure as disclosed in the Ind AS Financial
Statements on account of possible system weakness in the data integrity is presently not ascertainable.

In our opinion, the internal controls existing in the Company with respect to physical verification of Property
Plant & Equipment, reconciliation/ confirmation of vendor/user balances, process of releasing the Vendors
Performance Bank Guarantees, direct deposits by clients into the bank account through e-payment/
otherwise and recovery of dues should be commensurate with the size and nature of its operations. (Refer
to Annexure “A”)

Balances relating to Trade Payables (Note 18), Trade Receivables(Note 9), Advances received from
customers(Note 20), Earnest Money Deposits receipts(Note 19), Security deposits(Note 17) and Grants-
in-aid received from customers(Note 20) are subject to the confirmations having been obtained/ received
and/ or the consequential reconciliation being drawn up as at the year end. Impact, if any, on the assets/
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liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure consequent to such confirmation and reconciliation is presently not
ascertainable.

5. Reference is invited to Note No. 20 of the Ind AS financial statement with respect to the Advances received
from customers amounting to Rs. 1,11,852.70 lakhs. Review of individual accounts reveal numerous
customers wherein the balances have remained outstanding for more than 3 year as at the year end. These
advances received mostly from Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) and Government of India Ministries have
been invested by the Company in Fixed deposits with various banks at varied rates of interest and maturity
profiles.

In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect to the Advance from Customers have remained
unutilised and invested in Fixed Deposits, the management needs to review each such Advance and return
the same based on the corresponding terms and conditions of the contract with each of the customer.
In the absence of the documents, contracts and details being available in respect of each such Advance,
the overall impact of matters referred to in the preceding paras on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/
expenditure consequent to such details being available is presently not ascertainable.

6. Reference is invited to note no. 44 regarding the Company having provided/ paid for the Licence Fee
and Spectrum charges to DOT during the year as per the past accounting practice with respect to
calculation of the demand raised by DOT of Rs. 65,445.02 lakhs towards License Fee and Rs. 32,383.09
lakhs towards Spectrum Charges. In view of the matter being pending in the Hon'ble Supreme Court of
India the consequential impact, if any, on the Ind AS financial statement is presently not ascertainable and
quantifiable.

7. TheCompany has not complied with Ind AS 115 on “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” prescribed by
the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 with respect to erroneously recognising revenue
on Sales of goods at the time of generating the invoice in terms of the Significant Accounting Policy (Refer
to Note 2 (vii)) instead of recognising the same at the time of transfer of “control” i.e. on acceptance of
goods by the customer. Impact of the same on the reported income, loss and assets/ liabilities of the
Company consequent to recognising revenue in terms of Ind AS 115 is presently not ascertainable.

The impact of matters referred to in the above paragraphs (1) to (7) on the assets/liabilities and/or income/
expenditure and loss for the year is not ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

1.

The Board of Directors during the year approved the “District 2.0 Augmentation of District Infrastructure to
caterto Digital India Initiative” at a total outlay of Rs.9900 lakhs for Phase-I to be met by the Company out of
its “Cash Reserves”. In terms of the approval, no income is to accrue to the Company and the corresponding
assets created are neither owned nor in possession of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has
expensed the entire expenditure of Rs. 5804.99 Lakhs (PY Rs. 2687.54 Lakhs) with a resultant impact on
the loss reported in the Income & Expenditure Account for the year. (Refer to Note 58)

Reference is invited to note no. 45 of the Ind-AS financial statement on Revenue from operation relating
to income having been recognized @ 1% of the expenditure incurred on NKN Projectas administrative
charges. The same is subject to the corresponding approval from the Ministry of Electronics & Information
Technology (‘MeitY”) which is still awaited.

Reference is invited to note no. 46 whereby on account of the direction of the Ministry of Electronics &
Information Technology, Department of Information Technology during the year, the Company’s Operating
Margin with effect from FY 2018-19 was corelated and approved at 7% of the O&M expenditure and
upgradation cost of the basic/ ICT infrastructure. This has resulted in a substantial decrease in the operating
margin accruing to the Company during the year with respect to the Shastri Park and Bhubaneshwar
National Data Centre with a resultant impact on the loss reported in the Income & Expenditure Account for
the year.

We draw attention to the note no. 50 of the Ind-AS financial statements whereby, the management has
computed the interest on unutilized funds of the Grant-in-Aid projects (including NKN Project) for the
period upto March 31,2018 to the tune of Rs.4766.01 lakh and reduced the said amounts from the opening
reserves and surplus.

We draw attention to the note No. 40 of the Ind-AS Financial Statements whereby the conveyance/ title
deed in respect of the building at BhikajiCama place, New Delhi amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs is pending
for registration as at the year end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters reported in paragraphs (1) to (5) above.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s Report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon). The Directors
Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

Matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have not been commented upon since the said order is not applicable to the Company in view
of the exemption available to a company licensed to operate under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c)  The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account:

d Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS
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e)

f)

o),

h)

a)

b)

financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphabove , in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification
No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewithare
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our
report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being
a Government company, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Government company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements (Refer Note no. 22 to the Ind AS financial statements);

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

3. Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN002405C)

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019

Akshay Sethi
Partner
Membership No.: 539439

UDIN:-19539439AAAACC3829
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Reporton
the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics
Centre Services Inc. for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Referred to in paragraph under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Require-
ments” Section of our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Informatics Centre Services
Inc. ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ("Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act 2013,Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
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effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IND
AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, we have qualified our audit
opinion on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 in respect of the following matters wherein
the existing internal controls need to be strengthened:

a. Reconciliation/confirmation of vendor balances as the same could potentially result in material
misstatement of the outstanding balances;

b. Release of the Performance Bank Guarantees of the vendors as it could potentially result in non-recovery
of damages from defaulting vendors;

C. Accounting of the amounts directly deposited/electronically transferred in the bank account of the
Company by the clients/departments to avoid possible inefficient utilization of the available funds;
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d. Recovery and follow up of the dues from clients and advance to vendors as this could possibly result in a
material misstatement of the outstanding dues from the Clients and Advance to Vendors; and

e Physical verification of Property Plant & Equipment which could materially impact the accounting,
classification and disclosure of the aforesaid.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual Ind AS
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportingissued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2019 Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN002405C)
Place: New Delhi
Date: July 30,2019
Akshay Sethi
Partner

UDIN:-19539439AAAACC3829
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on
the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics
Centre Services Inc. for the year ended March 31,2019

Report on Directions issued by the comptroller and auditor general of India under
section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1.  Whetherthe company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has an accounting system in place to process all the accounting transactions through an
ERP accounting software which was implemented during the previous year we.f. July 01, 2017. However,
the ERP software was implemented during the previous year without being validated by a Systems Audit
by an external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ orincome/ expenditure as
disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements on account of possible system weakness in the data integrity
is presently not ascertainable.

Further more Fixed Assets accounting with respect to addition/deletion/depreciation is currently being
done manually and thereafter uploaded into the ERP system as no automation module is available in the
ERP. Itis advisable that the said process is also automated at the earliest to avoid possible errors on account
of manual intervention

2.  Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/
loans/interests etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Not applicable as the company did not have any outstanding loan during the year 2018-19. Accordingly,
there was no case of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by any lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay the loan.

3.  Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

During the year 2018-19 no funds were either received or receivable by the company from any Central/
State agencies. Hence the question of their proper accounting and utilisation does not arise.

For: Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN-0024050)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: July 30,2019
Akshay Sethi
Partner
Membership No.: 539439
UDIN: 19539439AAAACC3829
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) for the year ended
31st March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013(Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor/Auditors appointed
by the Comptroller & Audit General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act are/is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with
the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 30th July 2019.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of NICSI for the year ended 31st March 2019 under Section143 (6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of
some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section 143
(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

Balance Sheet

Assts-Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note-3) Rs.5405.80 lakh

The above head does not include the material purchased for enhancement of NIC Cloud Services during the
year 2018-19 amounting to Rs.245.00 lakh inspite of the fact that it was received by the Company along with the
invoice on 07.03.2019. The same has been accounted for in the year 2019-20.

This has resulted into understatement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Trade payable by Rs.245.00 lakh.

Equity and Liabilities
Current financial liabilities

Trade payable (Note No. 18) Rs.34932.17 lakh

The above head does not include Rs.880.28 lakh amount payable by the company to various parties on account
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of expenditure of revenue nature related to the Services received from them during the year 2018-19. This
includes the following two categories of expenditure.

(@  The services worth Rs.210.50 lakh for which invoices were raised between 26th December 2018 and 31st
March 2019.

(b)  The services worth Rs.669.78 lakh for which invoices were raised between 9th April 2019 and 30th June
2019.

This has resulted into understatement of Current Liabilities (Trade payable) and understatement of expenses/
losses by Rs.880.28 lakh.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.09.2019

Sd/-

(Saurabh Narain)

Principal Director of Audit
(Post and Telecommunication)
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